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I. INTRODUCTION. 

The only real Issue before the Court In this motion is whether the Board ot the 

Chino Basin Mun.icipal Water District ('CBMWD') while purportedly acting as the 

Watermaster Board followed the procedures required by the Judgment and by the 

Watermaster Rules and Regulations befi:>re voting to commit Watermaster funds for 

payment of a. special audit of Wafermaster Services. It is clear beyond question that the 

requirements of the Judgment and the Rules and Regulations were llil1 followed, even 

though the Cl:!MWO Board was repeatedly adVlsed, both In writing and orally, of those 

requirements. 

Because the CBMWD Board acted outside the scope of the Judgment and the 

Rules and Regulations, its actions With respect to the aUdit were total,Y ultra Vims of any 

authority it may have as the Watennaster Board. Aocordingly, the cost of the audit is not 

property a Watermaster expense and the Court has been asked and is asked to issue an 

order to that effect. 

In its Opposition, CBMWD makes many assertions and raises issues completely 

irrelevant to the issue of responsibility for the cost of the audit. · The assertions are, in 

addition to being irrelevant, also erroneous. To clarify the record, those erroneous 

assertions will also be addressed briefly in this Reply Memorandum. 

II. TH!; APPROVAL OE THE AUDIT BY THE CBMWD BOARD WAS COMPLETELY 
OUTSIDE THE SCOPE OF THE JUDGMENT AND IS NOT AND CANNOT BE A 
WAJERMASTEB EXPENSE. 

· · ·· 1c · '. The CBMWD Board falledto Comply With the R&guJrements of the 
Judgment Before Taking Acti.on to Direct That the Audit Be Done. 

In its Opposition, CBMWD accurately states that in its meeting on January 14, 

1997, it voted to direct that an audit be done. CBMWD neglects, however, to state key facts . 

concerning the background and context in which that meeting took place. 

.. , .. First of.all, the concern over whether an audit wasevenneeded arose because in 
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December 1996 it had been discovered that forged checks, amounting to approxim~tely 

$26,000 had been dr<1wn on Walermasler's checking account. By the time of the Janual)f 

14th meeting, those funds had been fully restored by the bank and the issue was under 

investigation by law enforcement authorities. Those law enforcement authorities had 

appeared at a meeting of the Advisory Committee and told the Committee that such 

fraudulent activity was, unfortunately, not uncommon, and that there was no indication that 

it was the result of anything that Watermasterhad; or had not, done. 

Secondly, the Adviso,y Committee had met and by a 91.43% majority, voted to 

approve a motion that Watermaster take no action directing that a special audit be done 

until an internal review board, consisting of financial officers and representatives of various 
_,.; 

parties hatf met, reviewed the circumstances, and made a ~commendation as to whether 

an audit was necessary and, if so, what the proper scope of an audit should be. The 

Advisory Committee action and direction was conveyed to the CBMWD Board. Pursuant to 

the Judgment,. an Advisory Committee recommendation supported by an 80% or greater 

vote becomes •a mandate for action consistent therewith." (Judgment ,r 38(b)(1}.) 

Even if CBMWD's decision to conduct the audit had not been subject to an 

.. Advisory Committee mandate, it still would have been improper. If the Watermaster Board 
f4,-, ,, 

wishes to take action on a matter which has not been the subject of an Advisory Committee 

vote, the Watermaster Board must give 30 days notice of the meeting at which it intends to 

take action and in such notice to state 1he action proposed to be taken. (Judgment 'l] 

38(b)(2}.) 

If the Advisory Committee has voted on a matter, by a majority vote less than 

· · · · c·cc c.· , · z;,~ •ccc=80%,~ the..Watermaster-8oard.mayJake.action.whicfl-is.<:Ontrary to ~at vote. But before it 

24 

25 
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28 

may do so, the W;;itennasfer Board must first "hold a public hearing, which shall be followed 

by written findings and decision." (Judgment 1f 38(b)(1).) Finally, an Watermaster meetings 

are to be held in public pursuant to Watermaster Rules and Regulations No. 2.06. 

In this situation, the Watermaster Board violated a clear Advisory Committee 

·"-""manaate•;·didnot'gilte30days notieeofitsimenfto"iipproi.ie'ali audif;·did ·not hold a public 
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hearing or adopt findings and a decision and acted contrary to its own rules in conducting a 

closed session.1' It did not, even though it was acting contrary to a mandate by the 

Advisory Committee, seek a Court hearing and a Court ruling. 

Before i1s decision to direct that !he audit take place, the CBMWD Board was 

repeatedly advised of these requirements of the Judgment. It failed absolutely to meet, or 

even attempt to meet, these requirements. rn light of ifs knowledge of these requirements, 

ifs failure to comply was clearly intentional. 

B. The Watmmaswr.BJ).<lrd rs Limited as to pjscretionary Actions ff May 
Take. D11'9Ctioo to Conduct the Special Audit Js a Discmtfooary Action. 

CBMWD asserts that as .Watennaster it has authority to retain the servioes of 

professionals, that day to day administrative responsibilities· are vested ·exclusively" within 

. the Watermaster, that the decision to direct the audit to take place was not a "discretionary" 

decision as defined by the Judgment, that suclt decision was within the •sole purview of the 

Watermaster", and that "neither the Advisory or Pool Committees are vested with the 

authoritY to overrule such decision by 80% vote or otherwise.' CBMWD's position misstates 

the nature of its decision, the extent ofWatermaster's authority under the J'udgment, and 

the extent of the authority and control of the Advisory Committee under the Judgment. 

1/ CBMWD's Opposition states that the closed session was held in lightof 
"threatened litigation." In fact·there was no such 'threatened litigation." What 
had been stated at the prior meeting was that some parties might seek Court 
review of Watermaster action with respect to the audit. (See Stewart Deel. ,r 18. 
That is not "threatened litigation", that it an exercise of a process and right clearly 
and explicitly set forth in the Judgment. ft is part of the process established by 

-_, ______ --the . .Judgment- Watennaster action is :always subject to review upon the request 
of any party. If the possibility of Court review constituted "threatened litigation· 
then Watermaster business could always be conducted in secret. In fact, the 
Rules and Regulations require that all Watermaster meetings be oonducted in 
public. It is by conscientiously adhering to the requirements of the Judgment 
and by conducting Watermaster business in an open and public forum that the 
interests of the parties, and the public are best served and protected. The 
CBMWD Board has disregarded both in its rush to have this audit conducted 
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The Judgment clearly and expressly states that Watermaster may not take any 

"discretionary action, other than approval or disapproval of a Pool Committee action or 

recommendation property transmitted, or execute any agreement not theretofore within the 

scope of an Advisory Committee recommendation" without first giving 30 days advance 

notice of the meeting at which Watennaster action would be taken, and advising the parties 

of the intended action. The decision to conduct the special audit is a discretionary action 

and the agreement with the accounting firm to conduct the audit is the execution of an 

agreement not theretofore approved by the Advisory Committee. The Watermaster Board 

did not have authority to di~ the au<frt or sign the agreement with complying with the 

requirements of the Judgment21 

. . . CBMWD's argument that directing the speclafaudlt to be conducted was not a 

discretionary action is totally _insupportable. A decision by an agency to take a particular 

action is "discretionary• if the agency has a choice to either take or not take the action or as 

to how ihe action is to be undertaken,3' An action is not discretionary If the party is 

compelled by law to do it. Nothing in the Judgment compelled the Watermaster to order 

that this audit be done. 

2/ Moreover, as noted above, since the Advisory Committee had· voted' by a greater 
than 80% vote to delay taking action on an audit, the Watermaster Board was 
mandated to act consistent therewith. 

3f See "Discretion: power of free decision or latitude of choice within certain legal 
bounds." (Webster's Jhjrd New Jntematjonal.Djctionary (1993).) 
A discussion of what constitutes discretionary action can be found in the CEQA 

22 context. The California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") (Pub. Resources 
Code§ 21000, et seq.) appfies to "discretionary projects• (Pub. Resources Code 

···· · ·--23= ··~=·,~cc=•§·2·1080{8})-am:f,thestatutesand,easeclaw·have-discussed what "discretionary" 
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means.· • . 
"A 'discretionary project' is one that 'requires the exercise of judgment or 
deliberation when the public agency or body decides lo approve or disapprove a 
particular activity. as distinguished from situations where the public agency or 
body merely has to determine whether there has been conformity with applicable 
statutes, ordinances or regulations.' [Citations.]" (Remy, Thomas, Moose & 
Yeates, Guide to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (1994) p. 38.) 
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The decision to have a special audit, the decision regarding what the scope oHhat 

audit should be, and the decision to hire a specific firm to do the audit, were .each 

discretionary decisions. As discretionary decisions they were subject to the requirements of 

the Judgment. CBMWD failed to meet those requirements. 

CSMWD argues that the decision to conduct an audit was not discretionary 

because it was an 'administrative• matter. (Opposition, 7:25 - 8:15, 10:5-6.) Butthe 

pertinent distinction to be drawn is between discretionary action and action which is required 

under the Judgment, not between discretionary action and administrative action. 

Administrative action is not a category that is separate or distinct from discretionary action. 

Administrative action may or may not be cfiscretionary. Administrative merely means having 

· ••· to ·do with the·adminiStration-or the Judgment Webster's defines administration as having 

to do with "performance of executive duties." {Webster's Third New lotemationalDlction:azy 

(1993).) But .all of the actions of Watermasler have to do with administration of the 

Judgment. That is Watermaster's only reason for being. Under CBMWD's analysis an 

actions would be administrative, and thus none of them would be discretionary. That would 

render Paragraph 38 of the Judgment meaningless. 

Finally, even "day to day administrative" actions of the Watermaster are subject to 

mandated action by the Advisory Committee. Nothing in the Judgment limits the subjects 

on which the Advisory Committee may vote and give direction to the Watermaster. 

CBMWD fails to distinguish between tasks which Watermaster is obligated under 

the Judgment to take from actions in which Watermaster has discretion regarding whether 

or how to act. For example, the Judgment gives Watennaster authority to enter into 

contracts, (Judgment 1120.) However the decision about when to enter into a contract, the 

termi< of the contract and the party with whom to contract are all discretionary; one cannot 

tum to the Judgment to find answers to those questions. 

CBMWD's position ignores and is contrary to Judge Turner's July 1989 orcter 

2 7 which clearly and unambiguously identifies the Advisory Committee as the ·controlfing body" 

• ,.,-,,~ 0 ·"-~'8·,, •·,~~in thebasin:•·{0rderr,7:12-14}CBMWD's position is also contrary )o Watermaster's own 
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Rules and Regulations. Rule 1.03, entitled "Powers and Duties - Limited" slates in part: 

•No policy decision shall be made by Watennaster until the question involved has been 

raised for discussion and a vote thereon taken by the Watermaster AdviSOl'f Committee and 

· the recommendations thereof received by Watermaster. • CBMWD's position is also 

inconsistent with the interpretation of the Judgment by CBMWD and the Advisory 

Committee as reflected in the Services and Facffities Agreement which directed the Chief of 

Watermasfer Services and Watermaster staff to take direction from the Advisory 

Committee'. (See Exhibit D.) 

CBMWD asserts that the only "discretionary" power given to Watermaster under 

the Judgment are those identified in Paragraph 41 which give Watermaster the power to 
. 

develop an optimum_ basin management program. That is a misre~ding of that paragraph. 

Paragraph 41 identifies an additional discretionary power of Watermaster. It does not 

detract from authority granted elsewhere in the Judgment to the Advisory Committee, nor 

does it tum other Watermaster discretionary powers into mandated actions. For example, 

· paragraphs 19 through 30 of the Judgment outrme the powers ofWatermaster. Many 

expressly state powers that Watermaster "may" exercise. Just because the Judgment gives • 

Watermaster the ability to ·do something, does not mean that the Judgment requires that 

Watennaster do it, and ~rtainly does not state the manner in whictt the authority may be 

exercise. Such powers are discretionary. This includes contracting and budget issues. 

CBMWD's assertion that an audit is required as part of the annual report is 

misle~ing·. (Judgment 1148) An annual audit has in fact been conducted each year. 

Indeed it was the recommendation of the Ad Hoc. Fmance Committee that the annual audit 

audit ordered by CBMWD however is nm part of the annual audit. It is a special audit 

separate and apart from the audit being conducted for purposes of the annual report. No 

special audit of this type has been done in the pasl It is not part of Watermaster's required 

duties under the Judgment; it is: a !:eparate and distinct audit. {See Stewart Deel. 1119.) 

The decision to do that audit, the decision abouf lhii'scopif of that ~udit and the decision 

LA\970570001 . 6. 
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about what firm to retain were each discretionary actions. 

The decision to have this audit done was discretionary and it was CQOtrary lo U1e 

mandated direction of the Advisory Committee. The CBMWD Board failed to foITow the 

requirements of the Judgment with respect to the audit. 

C. Exen If the Audit "Addresses Watermaster Bqsiness Only". as Alleged, 
It is Not a Proper Watermaster Expense Because It Was Not Properly 
Authorized. 

CBMWD asserts that the costs of the audit is a proper Watennaster expense 

because the audit only looked at Waterrnaster operations. This argument misses the entire 

point The issue is whether the requirements of the Judgment were followed in supposedly 

committing Watermaster funds to pay for the audit Those requirements were not followed. 

Under CBMWD's theory, anyone who conducted an audit ofWa!ermaster business could 

obtain payment for the audit from Watermaster funds. Such a result would obviously be 

absurd and unworkable. Watermaster funds have to be controlled in accordance with the 

provisions of the Judgment. Decisions about those fullds have to be made in accordance 

with the provisions of the Judgment. If the Judgment is not adhered to, Watennaster funds 

cannot be expended. 

lfl. NATURE OF WAIEBMASTER AND ALLOCATION OF AUTHORITY UNDER THE 
JUDGMENT. 

CBMWD rests much of its argument on its characterization of the atrocation of 

authority untler the Judgment and on its characterization of the intent or purpose of the 

. Judgment. As notecLbelow, fBMWD's position does not reflect the language of the 
.. ., 

Judgment, the historY of its drafting or the manner in which the Judgment has been 

interpreted and applied. 

lA\970570001 7. 



1, 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

1.2 

13 

14 

lS 

16 

17 

1B 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

A Too Advisory QQWmittee Is. and Has Betm Aclmowfedged by the couct 
as Being, the Decision Making and Policy Making Body Under the 
,llldqmant. 

The Judgment in this case estabrished a unique management structure, 

specifically tailored to meet the circumstances and needs of the Chino Basin, ifs various 

parties and interests. It established a Watermasler, an Advisory Committee, an 

Appropriative Pool Committee, an overlying (Agricullural) Pool Committee, and an 

Overlying (Non-Agricultural) Pool Committee. Each is given certain power, authority, duties 

and obligations under the Judgment. In its Opposition CBMWD argues that CBMVVD, as 

Watermaster, has "exclusive authority" to conduct Watermaster business. That is palpably 

not true and, moreover, is contrary to prior decisions of the Court interpreting tfle Judgment. 

'·· ··•· · ···"···As has been noted ·in this Court before, the.role of the Advisory Committee was 

discussed at length by Judge Turner ill his order of Ji!IY1989. (A copy of the Order is 

attached hereto as Exhibit A.) !n that order Judge Turner acknowledged the power of the 

Advisory Committee to change Watermaster, staling that Watennaster "should be changed 

if the request is supported by a majority of the voting power of the Advisory Committee.• 

(Order; 2:5-7.) 

Judge Turner noted the representative nature of the Advisory Committee and the 

key role of the Advisory Committee in decision making, staling: 

"All decisions are first submitted to the various pool committees. 

After they have acted on a matter, the matter is referred to the 

Advisory Committee which is basically made up of almost all of 

the members of the Appropriative Pool and elected 

representatives of the Overlying (Agricultural) Pool and Overlying 

(Non-Agricultural) Pool." (Order, 2:21-26.) 

Judge Turner further stated; 

"The Advisory Committee takes action on all matters considered 

by the various pools and submits its recommendations to the 

·. ···i8- --···-----, .... ,,Watermaster~TheAdv:isory.,Committee is the poUcY:maklng 
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group for the Basin. Any action approved by 80 percent or 
more of the Advisory Committee constitutes a mandate for 

action by the Watermaster consistent therewith." (Order, 3:4-

9, emphasis added.) 

Judge Turner further referred to the Advisory committee as the ·controlllng body 

of the ground water basin.• (Or9er, 7:12-14.) He stated: 

"The purpose of having the poof committees and the Advisory 

Committee is to have a representatiVe assembly where the parties 

most interested can discuss the needs of the basin and vote on 

the best way of meeting those needs." (Order, 7:22-25.) 

. . Finally, he stated: "The Waterrnaster ... acts under tile policy direction of the 

Advisory Committee." (Order, 12:26-28.) 

B. Background -Creation of the Chino Basin Judgment 

To understand the "intent' of the parties under the Judgment. certain facts 

regarding the formation of the Chino Basin Judgment must be kept in mind. The Judgment 

was entered in January 1978. For many years prior to that, the Chino Basin had been in 

overdraft. (Lipson, p. 74.)4' However, it was not until 1969, when a judgment was entered 

adjudicating rights in the Santa Ana River Watershed between the upper and lower areas 

that the groundwork was present for the introduction of a groundwater management plan in 

4/ Upson, "Efficient Water Use fn California: The Evolution of Groundwater 
Management in Southern California", at p. 74. This study was published by the 

- -·- -· · ··· Rand Corporation· in November1978·fortheCallfomia State Assembly Rules 
Committee. Part of the study focuses on seven specific groundwater basins in 

-Southern California, one of which is the Chino Basin, and exarntnes ,n detail the 
management plan used in those basins. The study was published not long after 
the Judgment had been enterod In the Chino case, and is based upon intP.Niews 
with many of the producers, consultants, and attorneys involved in the 
negotiations which led up to the Judgment A copy of the pages from the study 
which discuss the Chino Basin is attached to this Memorandum as Exhibit B. 
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the Chino Basin. (Lipson, pp. 74-75.) 

Discussions regarding Basin managemeITt were wnducted by the Chino Ba&in 

Municipal Water District ('CBMWD") and by the Chino Basin Water Users Association. 

(Lipson, p. 75.) These discussions continued for several years before any court action was 

filed. As Lipson reports, CBMWO filed an action In January 1975 to ·stimulate resolution of 

outstanding issues.• The purpose of filing the action was to "act as a unifying mechanism 

for an producers within the basin' to develop a long-term basin plan under Watermaster 

management.·· (Lipson, p. 77.} 

A number of alternative management plans were considered. One aHemative 

was to have no controls at all. Under this plan, an assessment would be placed on alf 

·groundwater pumped from the Basin and the·nmdswoufd•neused·to purchase replacement 

water. This alternative was rejected because the major producer groups wanted a 

management plan which would recognize and give economic value to their water rights. 

(Upson; p. 77.} 

A second alternative which was considered was to simply limit production of water 

to the safe yield of the Basin. This was rejected "primarily because it would involve major 

cpntested litigation expense, delay, and major uncertainty as IQ QUtcome.' (Upson, p. 78.) 

The alternative which received the support of the parties, and which was 

ultimately written into the Judgment, was a negotiated physical SQ!ution, which recognized 

water rights, imposed assessments for pumping above specified limits, and which provided 

for purchases of supplemental water. This was favored by both public entities and private 

parties. Lipson repQrts: 

--1--~--___jll.ppr_opJ:i,;Jtors,J?U.911 as the cities of PomQna and Chino, several 

water districts {e.g. Cucamonga County Water District and Monte 

Vista County Water District), and private water companies (e.g. 

Fontana Union Water Company), spearheaded the effort to arrive 

27 at an acceptable physical solution." (Upson. p, 78.) 

·.:2a:'." ----~::.Thephys!cat:solution:wassupported~~ropriators;a!llicultural interests and 
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industrial interests in the basin. (Upson, pp. 78-79.) Wrth the consensus reached among 

the parties, the stipulated Judgment was entered in January 1976, three yeal'S after tile 

case had been filed. 

Thus the Judgment was the result of the collective efforts of the producers Within 

the Basin, represented the consensus of the producerS, and was, in effect, an agreement . 
among the producers to assess themserves in order to achieve balance io the Chino Basin. 

The parties negotiating the terms of the Judgment considered, and rejected, a 

number of alternatives for the posltlon of Waterrnaster. (See Blomquist, The Performance · 

of rnstitutions for Groundwater Management, Vol. 7, Chino Basin, pp. 28-29. (Attached as 

Exli. C hereto.)) The negotiations were funded largely through monies collected by 

· ·csMWD under a special statutory authority. (Blomquist, p. 33.) C6MWD also hatJ a staff 

and facilities in place and its boundaries included much, though not all, of the Chino Basin. 

For these reasons it was suggested that CBMWD be named the Watermaster in the 

Judgment. Many parties had a concern about having CBMWD as the Watennaster. 

However, as a matter of administrative convenience, and also because CBMWD threatened 

to stop its funding if it were not named Watern1aster, the parties agreed to name CBMWD 

as the initial Watermaster. (Blomquist p. 43.)5' 

Thus, CBMWD was chosen as the initial Watermaster primarily as a matter of 

administrative convenience. The Watermaster was not envisioned as a control on or 

supervisor of the Advisory Committee. On the contrary, the Advisory Committee was given 

5/ Professor Blomquist, at p. 43, states: "[T)here was apparently some expression 
of concern about the selection of the District as Watermaster from those Chino 
Basin water producers in Riverside and Los Angeles Counties (and thus not 
within the District and unable to vote for its Board of Directors), because during 
the consideration of the Watermaster designation in the negotiations 
accompa_nying the adjudication, the District 'also made known that it would drop 
the adjudication if it were not selected.'" 

lA\970570001 11. 
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powers fo ensure that it would control and direct the Watennaster. (Blomquist, p. 43.)61 

AmOng the powers given to the AdVisory Committee is lhe power to name a new 

Watermaster. This can be accomplished at any time by a majority vote of the Advisory 

Committee. The Judgment contains no limitations on who the Advisory Committee may 

name. 

Thus, CBMWD's assertion of its •exclusive" authority is totally unfounded. 

IV.. THERE IS NO CONFLICT OE INTEREST ON THE PART Of WAIERMASWR 
~QUNSEL 

CBMW_D argues that the motion should be dismissed because of an alleged 

·· · · ·· · •· · •• ---·" ~'· -~ , conflict of interest on the part of the Nossaman finn •. Once again, I.he response is two fold. 
11 

1 ?. 

13 

14 

lS 

16 

17 

l8 

19 

20 

21 

22 

First; this motion was joined by-many individual parties. Regardless of the role or 

posrtion of this finn, the Court has an obrigatioi:i to enforce the provisions of the Judgment 

and. to protect the rights of the parties. 

Secondly, the assertion of conflict of interest is simply a revisiting of the motion 

made and ruled upon by this Court last June. CBMWD's argument that there is a .conflict 

between representation of the Advisory Committee and representation of the Watermaster 

Board is no more valid now than it was when the Court denied the previous motion to 

recuse counsel. The argument itself is based on a basic misunderstanding of the nature of 

.Watennastcr. As noted above, the Judgment established a unique managen,ent structure, 

with authority, duties and obligations given to different bodies which were estabrished under 

· -=-:---23:-,1----ru-_. -:--:cProfessor-Blomquist, atp.c.43,~lltinues:..!Whlle . .agreeing to the desi'gnation of 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

the Chino Basin Municipal Water District Board of Directors as the Chino Basin 
Watermaster, the producers also placed a representative structure around the 
Watermaster, requiring the approval of the Watermaster Advisory Committee 
before the taking of any su_bstantive basin management actions. This allows all 
producers, within the District boundaries and without, to exercise a check upon · 
the district's actions as Wat'ermaster. 'lo fact there is little the Watermaster can 
do without producer approval.'" (Emphasis added.) 

; ' 

tA\970570001 12. 
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2S 

the Judgment, specifically the Watermaster, Advisory Committee, Appropriative Poot 

Committee, overlying (Agricultural) Pool committee, and Overlying (Non-Agricultural) Pool 

Committee. 
; 

The Judgment established policy making authority in the Advisory Committee. 

This was confirmed by the Court in its 1989 order. This puts tile Advisory Committee fn a 

position equivalent to that of a Board of Directors of a corporation. The Watermaster is 

responsible for implementing the policies adopted by the Advisory Committee, much the 

same as an officer of a corporation would carry out the directions of the Board of Directors. 

And, like the relationship between the Board of Directors and the corporate officers, the 

Advisoi)I Committee has the authority, by a majority vote, to name a new Watermaster. 

Such majority action by the Advisory Committee mustbefollowed by the court, absent 

compelling reasons to the contrary. (Judgment §1116.) 

All of these entities, Watermaster, Advisory Committee and Pool Committees, act 

at the direction of and as extensions of the Court itself in administering tt1e Judgment under 

the Court's continuing jurisdiction. Watermaster staff, much like any corporate staff, carries 

on the day to day functions of the operations. 

In this situation Watermaster legal counsel is placed in a situation not unlike that 

of a corporate counsel. The client is the office of Wa!ermaster. The entity may have 

several different decision making bodies. Counsel's role is to advise each body as to the 

requirements it must follow. If there is a disagreement between the different bodies, there is 

no conflict of interest on the part of counsel in advising each body as to the procedures it 

must follow. 

In representing an entity, counsel is guided by Califomic1 Rule of Professional 

Conduct 3-000{A) which states: 

LJ\\970570001 

"in representing an organization, a member shalt conform his or 

her representation to the concept that the client is the organization 

itself, acting through its highest authorized officer. employee, 

body, or constituent overseeing the particular engagement." 

13. 
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22 

If, such as ·in the present case, a corporate officer acls outside of his or her 

authority, the duty of counsel Is to refer the matter to the next highest internal authority 

within the organization. Rule 3-600(8) of California Rules of Professional Conduct states: 

·cs> If a member acting on behalf of an organization knows that 

an actual or apparent agent of the organization acts or intends or 

refuses to act in a manner that is or may be a violation of law 

reasonably Imputable to the organization, or in a manner 

which is liKely to result In substantial Injury to the organization, 

the member shall not violate his or her duty. of protecting the 

confidential information as provided in Business and 

···Professions Code section 6068?' subdlvfslon (e). Subject to 

Business and Professions Code section 6068, subdivision (e), the 

member may take such actions as appear to the member to be in 

the best lawful interest of the organiZation. Such actions may 

include among others: 

(1) Urging reconsideration of the matter while explaining 

its fikely consequences to the organizatron; or 

{2) Referring the matter to the next higher authority in the 

organization including, if warranted by the seriousness of the 

matter, referral to the highest internal authority that can act on 

behalf of the organization." (Emphasis added). 

In the coll)Orate context the next highest authority would be the Board of 

2r. -Directors~ln.thepresentcase, . .wheI1?Jhe. Watermaster Board .has acted outside the scope 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

of ~ authority, the obligstion of counsel is to refer the matter to the Advisory Committee, 

7/ Business and Professions Code §6068 requires an attorney "to maintain inviolate 
the confidence, and at every peril to himself or herself to preserve the secrets, of 
his or her client.• 

LA\970570001 14. 



1 the ·controlling body" and "policymaking body" under the Judgment, and to foUow the 

2 direction of the Advisory Committee. Thi& is in fact consistent with the direction given to the 

3 Nossaman firm when it was retained as Watermaster counsel. 

4 In July 1994, Nossaman starting serving as general counsel to the Chino 

5 Watermaster. It was selecied after an interview process with the Advisory Committee. The 

6 Watermaster Board never involved itself in the process. The Advisory Committee instructed 

7 Nossaman that it would report to and receive its direction from the Chief of Watermaster 

s Seivices. Pursuant to the 1992 Services and Facilities Contract, the Chiof ofWatcnnaster 

9 Services in turn receives direction from and reports to the Advisory Committee. (See 

10 Exhibit D he°reto. The terms of that Agreement have been extended during the transition 

l l · , • period to a new Watermaster pursuant to an interim agreement. This is reflected in the 

12 Watermaster minutes of July 10, 1996. See Exh(bit H hereto.) The instruction to 

13 Nossaman never changed. Nossaman has in fact received its instructions from and has at 

14 all times acted at the direction of the Chief of Watermaster Services in accordance with the 

15 vote and direction of the Advisory Committee. 

16 The relationship between Nossaman in its role as Watermaster counsel with the 

1 7 Advisory committee and with the Watermaster Board rs a continuation of the relationship 

1 A which past Watermaster Counsel has had, as is reflected by Watermaster's own records. In 

19 · 1980, for example, Donald Stark was retained was Watermaster Counsel after meeting with 

2 o and receiving the recommendation of the Advisory committee. (See Exhibit E, excerpt of 

21 Watermaster minutes of December 31, 1980.) tn the 1988 and 1989 Court proceedings the 

22 Advisory Committee gave direction to Watermaster Counsel, then Guido Smith, to make 

2 3 recommendations and to take action. (See Exhibit F, excerpt of Watermaster minutes of 

2-1 December 7. 1988.) 

25 

26 

27 

Y. CBMWD'S ACTIONS ARE ALSO IMPROPER IN LIGHT QE ITS INTERIM ROLE. 

In the June hearing, and in the Court's subsequent ·written order the Court 

--,·~· -·"2a ··· · "' ·appointed CBMWD as Watermaster, not to a fulHerm, but only.on an interim basis. At that 

!A\970570001 15. 
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time the Court set a further hearing dale in September to rule on the motion for change of 

Watermas!er. (Transcript of Hearing, June 18, 1996, 106:10-22.) 

Many of the issues which CBMWD addresses as pr:oblems stem directly from the 

lack of cooperation from CBMWD in effecting a smooth transition to a new Watermaster in 

accordance with the wishes of the majority of the Advisory Committee. 

Following the June 1996 hearing the parties held two meet and .confer sessions 

as well as holding wort<shops. The parties agreed upon a three member Watermaster 

Board made up of one representative each from Western Munlclpaf Water District, Toree 

Valleys Municipal Water District, and Chino Basin Municipal Water District, the three 

municipal water districts located in the basin. This was explained to the Court at a hearing 

in september 1996i All ttiat remained at that time was for CBMWD to name ltS 

representative. It refused to do so, thus prolonging the interim transition status. Since 
' 

·. CBMWD refused to cooperate the parties have again requested the Court to approve a nine 

member watermaster Board, modified from what was previously submitted to the Court 

That issue is scheduled for hearing on March 11th. It is apparent that CBMWD fs trying to 

use the audit which it itself commission~ as a basis for opposing a change in Watermaster. 

Such actions are improper. The cost of the audit is not a proper Watennaster expense. To 

the extent lhere are valid issues raised in the audit, those issues should be brought to the 

attention of the new Watermaster. 

VI. cBMWD'S USE OE THE AUDIT JN IT$ opposlTION IS MJSl EA.DING AND 
IMPROPER. 

A. CBMWO's· Post Hoo Rationaljzations For the Audit Ara Groundless and 
Po Not Justify CBMWP'S unauthorized Actions. 

When it ordered the audit in January, CBMWD indicated that it was acting in such 

lA\970570001 16. 
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1 haste because of the fraudulent transfer that had occurred.8' CBMWD's motives are now 

2 called into question. As notod bolow, the audit fails to discuss tho circumstanoes of the 

. 3 fraudulent transfer in any meaningful respect and in fact devotes only a few sentences of its 

4 45 page report to that issue. The declarations of Bffl Hill and Larry Rudder which 

5 accompany CBMWD's Opposition appear to state other grounds on which CBMWD wishes 

6 to now retroactively base its hasty action. In fact, rather than justifying CBMWD's actions, 

7 the issues raised by Mr. Hill and Mr. Rudder have ttre opposite effect. 

8 Mr. Hill states a concern that the Wa!errnas!er budget had increased 700% in six 

9 years. (Hill Deel. 1f 6.) Mr. Rudder makes a similar statement. (Rudder Deel. ,i 7.) What 

1 o neither gentleman points out is that during that time period CBMWD was Watermaster and 

· ··• ·• "··1:t· .,, CBMWD approved each and every budget.. In additionJ1> receMng.Waterrna&ter approval, 

12 the budget fnformalion was available· for review and disclissiori at any time. This historical 

13 information hardly justifies acting without proper notice and without following procedures 

14 estabfished by the Judgment. 

1s Mr. Rudder states that he had a number of concerns over a period of time. 

16 (~udder Decf. ml 6-10.) He faUs to explain why during the multi-year period over which he 

1 7 had thOSe concerns he did not raise them at a meeting of Waterrnaster, or the Advisory 

18 Committee or before the Court. He expresses a concern about the lease executed for the 

19 present Waterrnaster staff facilities (Rudder Deel. '19), but fails to explain why he did not 
. 

2 0 raise this concern at the April 1996 meeting at which the Waterrnaster Board ratified the 

21 lease. 

2 2 In short, the declarations of Messers Hill and Rudder appear to be post hoc 

23 ralionafizations which, if they were accurate, would merery demonstrate the need for a new 

24 and more responsive Watermaster. 

25 

26 

27 

28 

8/ Even though by the time of the CBMWD action all funds had been restored.and 
bank and law enforcement investigations were already under way. 

LA\970570001 17. 
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6. CBMWP failed to proyldo tho AUdjt to the Parties, 

Although it cites the audit numerous times, CBMWD did not attach a copy of the 

audit to the pleadings which it served. Indeed, although a copy was obviously available to 

CBMWD for purposes of p1eparing ils opposition, its pleadings had In place of the audit a 

single page which stated that the audit would be provided at a later date. In fact 

Water:master staff was able lo obtain a copy only after demanding one from CBMWD. The 

cover page for the audit, interestingly, is dated February 12th, eleven days before CBMWD 

served Jls opposition. It strains credurrty to believe that CBMWD was not able to provide 

copies of the audit together with its opposition. 

The audit fs, In any event, not relevant to the issue before the Court in this motion. 

The issue is.wnet~er:_\IVa!El.rl'TJ<!st~r funds may be used to pay for the costs of the audit. 
-· - •. 

.. ·,- .That in tum depends upon whether proper procedureswere followeQ in accordance with the 

provisions of the Judgment in deciding to conduct the audit. The procedures were not 

followed. The content of the audit cannot change that fact. 

C. The Audit fails to Meaningfully Address the Issue fur Which It was "··· · 
Su!)posedly Commrssfoned. Toe Audit Falls to PrQYide Explanation or 
Basis for Its Conclusions and It MJslntprprets the Judgment. 

The audit itself is most notable for what it does not discuss. The purported reason 

for conducting the audit in such a rush was the fraudulent transfers which had occurred to 

Watermaster's account. That is not addressed in the audit in any meaningful way. The 

audit report is 46 pages long. Yet in only one place does it address that key issue. At page 

17 the event was described. The audit then states:. "Because this engagement was not 

intended to be a fraud investigation, we did not pursue the matter." The audit tlwn slates 

that bank and law enforcement investigations are underway. There is no further 

discussion. 

Beyond its failu11;a to discuss lhe main issue for which it was supposedly . 

commissioned, the audit addresses other issues incompletely, or with a flawed approach or 

.... , ····--:z1,-- -· -undersmnding..Jhe.auditraises_ques.ticins.abQ!Jt,Jv!)iqi p_arty has fi~uciary responsibifity, 

lA\970570001 18. 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

·11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

1.8 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

but fails to acknowledge that such issues are addressed, and answered, in the Judgment 

and in the Watermaster Rules and Regulations. Such issues are further addressed and 

answered in Judge Turners 1989 Order, which is not mentioned in the audit. 

The audit ignores the fact that Wafermas!er is now in a transition stage. Many of 

· the procedural issues addressed stem directty from that fact. The audit also fail$ to 

acknowledge that that transition stage has been prolonged due directly to C13MWD's faUure 

to cooperate in the process. The audit does, however, acknowledge right of Advisory 

Committee to change Waterma:ster by a majority vole. (Audit, p. 5.) 

The audit identifies selected CBMWD policies (Audit p. 23) and states: •tn the 

Handbook the following policies and procedures were represented as being applicable to 

· !he Walermaster·, . t No indication is given of how such.a determination was made, when 

it was made, whether it was valid, and whether it still applied in fight of the transition which . 

has been underway since before June 1996. This calls into question all of the audit 

dfscusslon, conclusions and recommendations based upon such policies. 

The audit notes Watermaster is creation of Judgment, but then goes on .to 

analyze Watermaster in same manner as if it were a standard public agency created by 

staMe. yvatermaster is created by a Judgment and many of the rules, requirements, and 

limitations which would apply by statute to a public agency are contained in substance in 

various provisions of the Judgment. It is to the Judgment that Watermaster must look for 

direction. The critical controls over the operation of Watermaster are to be found in the 

Jw:!gment All decisions are "first submitted to the various pool committees•, and reviewed 

by the Advisory Committee which ·submits its recommendations to the Watermaster." The 

recommendations are then considered and acted upon by Watennaster. (Order, pp. 2-3.) 

Thus. there is a highly redundant control process over the operation of Watermas!er that is 

not considered or analyzed by the audit 

Vil. Qil:IEB SPURIOUS ACCUSATIONS BY CBMwP. 

lA\970570001 19. 
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raises sever other issues having nothing to do with the issue of whether the cost of the audit · 

is a proper Waterma&!er expense. Some of those other issues are addressed below. 

CBMWD asserts that Watermaster counsel had not attended some Watennaster 

Board meetings. In fact, the standard practice ofWatermaster counsel for many years 

preooding the hiring of thie firm was that @uneel did not attend such meeting. Most 

Walermas!er meetings simply approved matters submitted by the Advisory Committee. 

Some meetings lasted as little as 5 minutes. Counsel attended whether expressly directed 

or requested to attend. 

CBMWD asserts that Watermaster services have failed to follow written or 

approved polices and procedures in day to day operations. (Opposition, 8:22-23.) The 

·'-~1.1·"' ~" policies in questiOn are riot identified and apparently were never included in the 

12 Watermaster Rules and Regulations. The applicabitity of any CBMWD policies in light of 

13 . the transition is, in any event, subject to question. (See Lichti Deel. ffll 5-9, 11.J 

14 CBMWD asserts,lhat the Chief of Watermaster Services has hired persons under 

1s the guise of independent contractors who in fact were acting as employees (Opposition, 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

8:24-25.) As indicated in the Declaration of Traci Stewart, the individuals involved are 

fndepen<!ent contractors and an opinion of counsel to that effect will be available shortly. 

CBMWD asserts that outside engineering firms have complained about 

interference with contract for services (Opposition, 8:27-28.) This is addressed at 

paragraph 14 of Ms. Stewart's declaration. 

CBMWD asserts that the Chief of Watermaster Services did not have authority to 

_ sign a multi-year lease. The lease was specifically ratified by Watermaster at its meeting cin 

April 3, 1996. _ (5-~-§!:~lbit G, Watermas!er minutes of April_3, J9f?S.) The assertion in the 

audit that the lease is somehow improper indicates both an incomplete study and 

understanding and a lack of communication on the part of those preparing the audit 

Moreover, the lease and the move to the new facility were discussed before the Court at the 

27 June 1996 hearing. No party raised any objection or concern at that time, even though all 

.,=,,-•~----·-z~ -information-about the,mo:ve-and the I.ease. had been given·to-an paf\ies and was avallable 
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for further review. 

CBMWD asserts that the Watermaster budget has increased significantly. 

(Opposition, 13:27-28.) As noted above, CBMWD, as Watermaster, approved all the 

budgets of which it now complains. 

CBMWD asserts that car allowances are being dl'!lwn without being property 

reported (Opposition, 14:2-3.) This is addressed at paragraph 6 of Ms. Stewart's 

declaration and paragraph 10 of Ms. Lichti's declaration. 

CBMWD asserts that the Advisory Committee is trying to avoid paying for clean 

up of nitrates in southern portion of the Basin. (Opposition, 14:10-20.) There is no 

evidence to support this allegation. CBMWD is obviously just trying to cause division 

· ·· · ··1r·· , ... ,, between the agricultural and non-agricultural producers within the basin. The Advisoiy 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

Committee had indicated its commitment to high standards of water quality throughout the 

. basin. in fact, the Advisory Committee has recently approved an agreement to supply 

12,000 acre feet of water per year to support a desalting operation. At current market rates 

this represents a contribution of approximately $3 minion per year for basin clean up. 

CBMWD notes that the Advisory Committee has moved to replace Watermaster. 

(Opposition, 14:6--7.) Tills Is true. Toe AdVlsory committee exercising i1s authority under 

the Judgment has voted to name a new nine member board as Watermaster. Given !he 

failure of CBMWD to fulfill its obligations as Watennaster, the need for a replacement is 

obVious. 

VIII. REPLY IQ QPPQSJTIQN BY CJIY PE CHINO. 

The City of Chino has filed an opposition. To the extent it raises the same issues 

as the opposition by CBMWD, the ~ply to those issues will not be repeated. In addition. 

however, the City of Chino implies (City of Chino Opposition, 1 :27 - 2:6) that persons 

charged with administration of Watermaster funds may have been involved in the theft of 

those funds and further alleges that the Chief of Watermaster Services has •attempted to 
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There is absolutely no indication that persons involved with the administration of 

Watermaster funds were involved in any wrongdoing. It is; °irresponsible of the City of Chino 

to suggest so. 

The Chief of Watermaster Services has not hindered any audit. The Advisory 

Committee direc!ed that an audit should not take place until after the review and report by 

the Ad Hoc Finance Committee. In fact, the Chief of Wa!ermaster Services and the entire 

Watermaster staff has cooperated fully with the firm which conducted the audit requested by 

CBMWD .. Once again, it is irrespo~ib!e of the City of Chino to suggest otheiwisa. 

IX. CQNCWSIQN. 

the decision about what firm to hire to do the audit were each discretionary decisions. 

CBMWD failed, indeed made no attempt, to comply with the requirements of the Judgment 

in making those decisions. The cost of the audit cannot properly be-considered a 

Watermaster expense. 

LA\970570001 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 

NOSSAMAN, GUTHNER. KNOX & ELLIOTT. LLP 
FREDERIC A. FUDACZ 
JOHNOSSIFE 

By;~__::4-_~~=::::~~t,._ __ 
John iff 

eys for Chino Basin 
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DECLARATION OF TRACI STEWART 

I, Traci Stewart, declare as follows: 

1. I am the Chief of Watermaster Services for the Chino Basin Watermaster ("Watermaster"). I 

6 have held that position since August of 1994. In that position I am familiar with the records and operations of 

7 Watermaster, and if called as a witness I would be competent to testify thereto. In addition, I serve as Secretary to1 

8 the Advisory Committee which was established pursuant to the Judgment herein. I am familiar with the records 

9 and operations of the Advisory Committee. From February 1994 to August 1994, I assisted the Watermaster 

1 o Committees as Acting Director of Water Resources and as Water Resources Engineer for the Chino Basin 

11 Municipal Water District ("CBMWD"). From January 1992 through August 1994, I was employed as the Water 

12 Resources Engineer for the CBMWD. My professional experience in water resources and water rights began in 

13 1981 as a Water Resources Engineer for the Bureau of Reclamation. In that capacity, I was specially assigned to 

14 work with the Regional Solicitor's Office and the U.S. Justice Department to protect the water rights of the United 

15 States regarding the Central Valley Project and the Bay/Delta, along with other related areas along the 

16 Sacramento, San Joaquin, Stanislaus, American and Klamath rivers and with regard to the Lake Cachuma. 

17 3. I reviewed the "Opposition to the Motion for Order of Court that Audit Commissioned by CBMWD 

18 is not a Watermaster Expense" ("Opposition") and the supporting declarations upon receipt and reviewed the audit 

19 report after demanding a copy be provided as follows. I reviewed the herein referenced Opposition and it 

20 contained numerous references to the audit report. I had Michelle Lauffer contact the CBMWD attorney firm to 

21 obtain a copy immediately. The firm representative indicted all copies were in the possession of CBMWD, and 

22 that they should be contacted to obtain one. It is apparent that the report was available to be filed with the 

23 Opposition. 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

4. Policies and procedures thought to be significant enough to warrant initial definition were spelled 

out in the Judgment and rules and regulations (i.e. assessment process and methodology, budget process and 

spending restrictions, investments satisfactory to public entities in the State of California, vote determination 

methodology). Subsequent implementation of the Judgment and the Watermaster process therein defined 

Declaration ofTraci Stewart 



facilitated development of consensus on and a means of providing policy and procedural direction to staff 

2 regarding items of interest and relevance to the basin producers. The Assessment Package uses the Judgment 

3 as the basis of accounting in that it provides a means of assessing the costs of Watermaster in compliance with 

4 the Judgment. 

5 

6 

7 
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10 

11 

12 
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14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

5. The initial Watermaster budget for FY 1996/97 was adopted by the Advisory Committee on March 

27, 1996. It contained an estimated amount for office lease of $48,000 per year or $4,000 per month. This figure 

was developed at the budget workshops subsequent to the January 25, 1996, action by the Advisory Committee to 

change Watermaster and it was known Watermaster Services staff would be relocating. This provided the 

guidance as to the allowable amount which could be expended. The lease was ratified by Watermaster on April 3, 

1996. 

6. To my knowledge, mileage reimbursements have never been included on employee W-2's by 

CBMWD as income. My understanding is that this is money expended by the employee on behalf of the employer, 

and it was already taxed prior to the employee's ability to use it in this manner. CBMWD staff was aware of my ca 

allowance, however, I was told they would not include it on my W-2 as income that had not been taxed, but that 

had been paid because it was not paid through the CBMWD accounting system. 

7. The proposed investment policy was approved by a greater than 80% vote of the Advisory 

19 Committee in October 1996 and again in January 1997. Additionally, it was reviewed by the Ad Hoc Finance 

20 Committee on January 16, 1997 and found to be acceptable. The Committee did not find that it contained items 

21 that are not good business practice (see attached list of Committee members). CBMWD did not send a 

22 representative to participate on the Committee even though they were specifically invited to do so by the Advisory 

23 Committee, and were again specifically asked to participate by the State of California Attorney, Marilyn Levin on 

24 January 23, 1997, at the special meeting where they took action to hire the firm of Soren McAdams & Bartells. 

25 
8. Regarding Resolution 96-2 and the authorized signatures on bank accounts, the Ad Hoc Finance 

26 
Committee recommended the elimination of an "exception checking account", which had never been established, 

27 
to prevent a bank from having to ascertain whether an employee was authorized to sign on other established 

28 
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accounts. Due to the recent change in Watermaster Board members and member duties, and this 

2 recommendation, the Watermaster has a new signature resolution before it for adoption on February 27, 1997. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

9. Regarding the check stock not being "secured against all individuals who should not have 

access", staff is in the process of obtaining quotes for an onsight safe. The check stock is always kept under lock 

and key in the interim. 

10. The "in excess of 100,000 copies" referred to relates to preparation for the June 18, 1996, hearing 

to appoint a new Watermaster. At that time, staff was unaware a post card was also able to be used in these 

types of matters for some parties to the Judgment. When the number of copies that could be made per hour on 

an average was calculated, it became apparent the service deadline would not be able to be met unless 

outsourcing occurred. The task required the use of five different Kinko locations to be accomplished on time. 

Watermaster staff member Jim Their! was directed by the Chief of Watermaster Services to deliver the originals to 

Kinkos. 

11. The computer consultant ordered a new printer for Watermaster when it was thought the old 

16 printer was unable to be repaired. This was done as directed by the Chief of Watermaster Services. All 

17 consultants receive their direction from the Chief of Watermaster Services to carry out the policies and 

18 procedures, and specific projects or requests made or authorized by the Advisory Committee. 

19 

20 
12. CBMWD ordinances are not applicable with regard to Watermaster consultants or contractors. 

21 
Direction from the Advisory Committee is applicable when given pursuant to the Watermaster process. On 

22 
numerous occasions over the years, consultants have been asked to attend meetings and perform services in this 

manner. Their were no contracts or agreements for the services provided by Guido Smith, Watermaster General 
23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Counsel until June 30, 1994, or for Art Kidman and Dan McKiney when retained as special counsel by the Ag Pool 

in the recent past. 

13. CBMWD staff submitted the RFP's for the audit, reviewed the responses, established the scope 

for the service to be provided, told the auditors that CBMWD policies and procedures applied to Watermaster, and 
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worked with the auditors to prepare and review the audit report. The Judgment and the Watermaster process 

2 have always set Watermaster policies and procedures as indicated above. This has been acceptable to a greater 

3 than 80% majority of the Advisory Committee since the Judgment was entered. This is evidenced by the fact that 

4 the budgets and assessments have always been adopted and implemented with one exception covering FY 90/91 

5 when the proposed budget used, but was never formally adopted based on a recent review of the committee and 

6 Watermaster minutes (see all annual reports). 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

14. With regard to independent contractor status of Patrick Park, I worked with Lee Penrice, former 

CBMWD accounting manager, to determine that Mr. Park is in fact an independent contractor. I requested Mr. 

Park to provide Mr. Penrice with copies of 1099's he received from other clients, a W-2 from the regular employer 

for the job he kept on weekends while establishing his consulting business, and his tax returns to demonstrate his 

status as a sole proprietor in the eyes of the IRS. With regard to Fernando Lopez, he is an employee of Mark 

Wildermuth. At the February 13, 1997, Advisory Committee meeting, the Advisory Committee directed the firm of 

Nossaman, Guthner, Knox & Elliott to draft an opinion with regard to this subject matter and to address whether 

there is potential liability to Watermaster from the procurement of services in this manner. The written opinion will 

be available in the near future. The initial conclusion is that he is an employee of Mark Wildermuth (and he was 

an employee of Stetson Engineers). The potential Watermaster liability with regard to an agent of Watermaster 

versus an employee of Watermaster would be addressed on a case by case basis, depending on the relevant 

circumstances, just like it would for any other business or public entity that had "outsourced" some of its work or 

that had contracted with a temporary staffing service. 

15. The auditors concluded I received no direct or continuous oversight during the last half of the 

year. During this entire year, there have been more Pool, Advisory Committee, Watermaster, Special meetings 

and workshops than there have been in any year since the Judgment was entered. Since I receive my direction 

from the Advisory Committee directly, and indirectly through the Watermaster process, I have had more oversight 

than any of my predecessors. 

16. The auditors included an organization chart prepared by CBMWD. When questioning me, I did 

28 indicate that Tina Cheng, CBMWD Senior Budget Officer, would have the appropriate chart. The one presented in 
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the audit report was specifically not acceptable to the Advisory Committee because it had a direct line from the 

2 Watermaster Board to staff. The Facilities and Services Agreement was specifically amended in the 1992 version 

3 to include paragraph 6 because of the Advisory Committee's concerns. I do not report to or receive direction from 

4 the CBMWD Board of Directors, nor does any consultant or CBMWD employee working for Watermaster. We 

5 receive our direction from and report to the Advisory Committee. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

17. The desalter agreement was approved by the Court on September 18, 1996. It provides the 

desalter with 12,000 acre feet of water a year to satisfy a replenishment obligation that the desalter would 

otherwise incur. The current value of this water is approximately $3,000,000 per year. The desalter is the 

beginning of cleanup of the lower end of the Chino Basin. The agreement was supported by more than an 80% 

vote of the Advisory Committee. 

18. I was in attendance at the Watermaster Board meeting held on January 9, 1997. At that meeting, 

a party to the Judgment informed the Watermaster Board that if the Board decided to pursue an audit, that it would 

probably invite legal action and that it may be through that legal action that you [CBMWD] might pay [for the audit]. 

This informed the Watermaster Board that action under the Judgment might be taken if they proceeded with an 

audit. It was this thought that they felt warranted closed session, which they later that day scheduled for January 

14, 1997. Between January 9 and January 14, 1997, the Watermaster Board was informed that closed session 

was contrary to Watermaster Rules and Regulations by Watermaster Counsel. They were again informed of this 

by Watermaster Counsel at the January 14, 1997 meeting. 

21 19. An audit of Watermaster operations as an individual entity has not been performed in the past and 

22 is not a part of the annual financial audit. Justification for the audit contracted for by CBMWD was verification of 

23 staff's implication in the fraudulent activity that occurred in December 1996. The final audit does not address that 

24 activity except on page 17, where it indicates that "Because the engagement was not intended to be a fraud 

25 investigation, we did not pursue the matter". 

26 

27 

28 
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20. The recent actions of Nossaman, Guthner, Knox & Elliott and attorneys Fred Fudacz and John 

2 Ossiff were pursuant to instruction given to me as Chief of Watermaster Services and to them as Watermaster 

3 Counsel by appropriate votes of the Advisory Committee. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

21. The statements in the audit regarding the independent contractor status of several people is 

addressed above and in other declarations included herein. 

22. Attached is Exhibit A is a true and correct copy of the July 31, 1989 Order entered in this action. 

Attached as Exhibit Dis a true and correct copy of the Amended Services and Facilities Agreement. Attached as 

Exhibit Eis a true and correct copy of excerpts of the minutes of the December 31, 1980 Watermaster meeting. 

Attached as Exhibit Fis a true and correct copy of excerpts of the minutes of the December 7, 1988 Watermaster 

meeting. Attached as Exhibit G is a true and correct copy of excerpts of the minutes of the April 3, 1996 

Watermaster meeting. Attached H is a true and correct copy of excerpts of the minutes of the July 10, 1996 

Watermaster meeting. 

15 I declare under penalty of perjury the foregoing to be true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

16 Executed this 27th day of February, 1997 at Rancho Cucamonga, California. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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Walter F. Reardon, City of Upland Telephone: (909) 985-7286 

CPA FAX: (909) 982-0487 

Ken Waring, JCSD Telephone: (909) 685-7434 

Auditor/Controller FAX: (909) 685-1153 

Shawna Whallon, Cucamonga Telephone: (909) 987-2591 
Dir.of Finance & Administration County Water FAX: (909) 941-8069 

District 
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Accounting Manager FAX: (909) 620-2269 
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DECLARATION OF ALICE W. LICHT! 

I, Alice W. Lichti, hereby declare as follows: 

1. I am the Interim Controller for the Chino Basin Watermaster (Watermaster). I have first hand knowledge of 

4 the matters set forth herein and, if called as a witness I would be competent to testify thereto. 

5 2. I submit this declaration in support of Chino Basin Watermaster's Advisory Committee's action to have the 

6 audit commissioned by Chino Basin Watermaster declared an expense of the Chino Basin Municipal Water District (District). 

7 3. In May, 1975, I passed all four parts of the Certified Public Accountant examination. [Board of Accountancy 

8 notification attached.] I did not pursue certification as, on, June 15, 1975 I had been appointed Controller for the Chino Basin 

9 Municipal Water District. I served in that capacity until my retirement on August 8, 1989. 

10 4. Following the January 27, 1978 adjudication of the groundwater basin, District entered into an agreement 

11 with Watermaster to provide staff and facilities for Watermaster activities. In conformance with the Judgment, District staff 

12 assigned to Watermaster on a part-time basis was instructed to act under the direction of the Advisory Committee. Under this 

13 agreement, Chino Basin Municipal Water District was fully reimbursed for all costs of services and facilities. Staff salaries 

14 were charged at actual hourly wages of personnel plus District's standard payroll burden and department overhead factors. A 

15 General and Administrative charge, computed as a percentage of total salary costs, was set to recover indirect 

16 Administrative and accounting time. Watermaster was also charged for all expenditures directly benefiting Watermaster. 

17 5. During my term as District Controller, I supervised a staff of 5 persons whose duties covered day-to-day 

18 accounting and bookkeeping duties. I personally handled contract administration, preparation of the District's Budget, grant 

19 accounting, debt issuance and retirement, preparation of year-end financial statements for the Annual Audit and preparation 

20 and filing of the Annual State Auditor Controller's report. Under my direction, the accounting staff was responsible for all 

21 accounting and investment activities of the District and the Watermaster; including, but not limited to: cash receipts, invoicing 

22 (including monthly billings to Watermaster for staff and expenses), cash disbursements including Watermaster invoices 

23 approved by the Chief of Watermaster Services (which at times were in the millions of dollars), overseeing the investment of 

24 District and Watermaster funds and preparing the payroll for all Chino Basin Municipal Water District employees including 

25 those assigned the task of working in the area of Watermaster Services. As a result of my position, I am familiar with the 

26 accounting and the bookkeeping of the Watermaster from 1978 until my retirement on August 8, 1989. 

27 Following the adjudication, I also prepared Watermaster's annual Budgets and Assessments for submittal to the 

28 Advisory Committee and the Watermaster Board. During the first few years, Budget and Assessment formats were designed 
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to meet the needs of the various Pools, and corollary charts of accounts were established for ease in tracking and a/locating 

2 expenditures. In 1985, with the purchase of the District's first personal computer, I developed a computer program to expedite 

3 computation of the Assessments and production of "Schedule 1" of the Annual Audit. "Schedule 1" is an unaudited 

4 supplemental statement developed to segregate revenues and expenses as appropriate between groundwater replenishment, 

5 the three pools and other categories as appropriate. Grand Total figures tie directly to the audited Comparative Statement of 

6 Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings. This schedule was, and will continue to be, a supplement to the 

7 Annual Financial Statements until all wells of the Agricultural Pool's are metered, eliminating the need to estimate production 

8 figures. Once all wells are metered, there will be an audit trail for the annual audit should it be considered cost effective for 

9 the Auditors to expend this effort. 

10 6. In May of 1996, I was retained as a<:ensultant-toreview-responses to a Request for Proposal for an 

11 Accounting Firm to provide Watermaster with part-time Treasurer, Controller and Bookkeeper services, thus removing all 

12 financial duties except payroll from the District. During my review, it became apparent to me that the actual amount of time 

13 necessary to perform the defined scope of work was not reflected in the low bids submitted by all proposers. Subsequent to 

14 reviewing and short-listing three accounting firms, I was requested to assume the duties of Interim Controller until such time 

15 as the full scope of work could be better defined and the books could be readily assumed by the firm selected. None of the 

16 proposals reflected sufficient time to cover implementation of new Watermaster accounting software, drawing up a new chart 

17 of accounts, recording outstanding 95/96 bills and invoices, and working with District staff to draft accurate year end financial 

18 statements. 

19 7. Effective July 10, 1996, I was appointed by the Watermaster Board to serve as Interim Controller. A full 

20 copy of the executed Letter Agreement is attached. 

21 I serve as an independent contractor, determining the days and hours I work dependent upon the work to be 

22 . accomplished. I have sufficient expertise in bothaccounting and financial reporting·thaH have shared with Ms Stewart, who 

23 handles cash receipts and disbursements in my absence. I work alone and am responsible only for the attainment of the 

24 scope of work for which I was contracted. The defined Scope of Work could be accomplished at my home, on my computer; 

25 however, it was my decision to work at the Watermaster Office to avoid hand carrying receipts, bills, checks and financial 

26 reports back and forth between sites. In addition to the work I perform for Watermaster, I also perform accounting services for 

27 two non-profit organizations. 

28 
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8. Although not enumerated in the Scope of Work, the first work to be done was the drafting of an Investment 

2 Policy and Financial Policies and Procedures to be followed by Watermaster's five (5) member Staff and Controller. These 

3 documents were reviewed by the three Pools on October 10, 1996. The Appropriative Pool requested the draft document be 

4 reviewed by District's Chief Financial Officer, Larry Rudder, prior to presentation to the Advisory Committee on October 16, 

5 1996. Mr. Rudder was contacted and his recommendations were incorporated in the final draft document. On October 16, 

6 1996, the Advisory Committee, approved this final draft Investment Policy subject to distribution of the document to all 

7 Appropriative Pool representatives to allow them to satisfy their internal review requirements. Comments were to be provided 

8 Watermaster by December 15, 1996. (No comments were received, and the Investment Policy is being submitted to the 

9 Watermaster Board for adoption at the February 27, 1997 meeting.) The drafts of both the Investment Policy and the 

1 o Financial Policies and Procedures have been substantially adhered to since July 10. 

11 9. Also not enumerated in the contract's Scope of Work, the Advisory Committee was assured that the 

12 financial transactions of 1995/96 would be reviewed for compliance with the Judgment. Annual and periodic Financial 

13 Statements are prepared by District Staff, who appear to be unfamiliar with the Watermaster program. For instance, the 

14 Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 1995, contained several discrepancies which significantly skewed the 

15 segregation of Pool Funds reflected on Schedule 1. Also, a "dump figure" had been used to balance the Comparative 

16 Statement of Cash Flows, thus tainting the 94/95, and eventually the 95/96, financial statements with noncompliance with 

17 generally accepted government audit standards. Review of these discrepancies with District's staff resulted in leaving the 

18 94/95 Statements as approved, restating the 94/95 column in the 95/96 statement without footnoting the correction, and 

19 moving forward from there. Copies of the two audits mentioned above are attached. 

20 10. During this period of transition, it is recognized that Ms Stewart's au1omotive allowance should have been 

21 paid through the normal bi-weekly payroll process, but was paid directly to her. She has been issued an IRS form 1099Misc 

22 for the amount paid during 1996, and is subject to full taxation including self-employment taxation (FICA and Medicare) 

23 on the full amoun. Ms Stewart's 1996 wages, without the car allowance, exceeded the FICA base of $62,700 and FICA 

24 would have simply cut off at an earlier date with the car allowance. Ms Stewart will, through receipt of a 1099Misc be 

25 required to pay both FICA and Medicare on the funds received as a car allowance. She has not benefited from this 

26 oversight. 

27 

28 
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11. The Operations Audit reflects negative findings occurring both prior and subsequent to July 10, 1996. The 

2 majority of these findings, if still in place at June 30, would have been noted in the 96/97 Annual Audit. Regardless, I have the 

3 following comments on the report. 

4 --Page 2--Regarding timeliness of reports, many Watermaster reports, including the Annual Report are tied to 

5 completion of the year end audit, which provides "beginning balances" for the assessment package and the next 

6 year's budget process. It is also a required part of the Watermaster Annual Report. The 95/96 Financia_l Report 

7 (audit) was received on October 16, 1996, weeks after the conclusion of the field work. Separation of the 

8 Watermaster accounts to a stand-alone system, will facilitate future audits and resolve such problems. 

9 --Page 6--Watermaster has been recognized since 1978 by California's Local Agency Investment Fund as a 

10 separate investor, i.e. a quasi governmental agency. 

11 --Page 6--Watermaster has been approved by the Public Employees' Retirement System for employee participation 

12 in the system. The Actuarial Study has been made, and the Watermaster Board will be taking action on the Contract 

13 at their February 27 and March 26, 1997 meetings. 

14 --Page 11--The Auditor has referred to a conversation wherein I am quoted as stating that the assessment package 

15 has no audit trail. My statement to the Auditor referred to "Schedule 1" of the annual audit. We did not discuss 

16 auditing the assessment package, which does depend upon estimated Agricultural production as does "Schedule 1 ". 

17 However, except for production, the Assessment package was always verified during all Audit periods through fiscal 

18 87/88. 

19 --Page 29-lndependent Contractor vs employee is responded to in Paragraph 7 above. 

20 The Auditor has stated that the Letter Agreement pertaining to my services was not signed. This Agreement was signed on 

21 July 10, 1996 by Mr. Anderson, Waterrnaster's Treasurer, President Hill was absent due to open heart surgery at that time. 

22 --Page,33-0 The final proposed Assessrnents·peragency are distributed to the members of the Appropriative and Non 

23 Agricultural Pools well in advance of their approval by the Watermaster. As such, each agency has an opportunity to 

24 object and/or recommend corrections should errors occur in either production or computation of amounts assessed. 

25 Any errors found after the levy are reviewed by the Pools and the Advisory Committee. Thus "oversight" is provided 

26 by thirty-seven producers. 

27 --Pages 36, 38, 40 & 41-The audit was performed to cover calendar 1996. District was responsible for the period 

28 January through July 10 when Watermaster financial transactions were transferred to the Controller. To truly reflect 
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11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

the effectiveness of Watermaster operations for the calendar year, sampling taken by the auditors should have been 

equal for the two six month periods. Sampling of disbursements for the year included 24 for the period prior to July 

1 0 and 68 for the period after July 10. And no cash receipt samples appear to have been reviewed for the first half 

of the year compared with 15 in the final half. [It is noted that although the resulting statistics for the July 10 -

December 31 period were better than the earlier period, no recommendations were made regarding District 

operations in this document.] 

--Page 37--Regarding capitalized equipment, Watermaster does indeed need to adopt a capitalization policy. 

Concerning capital equipment, it was only at my request that District reclassified the capital assets, including the 

screen projector, from the 95/96 "relocation" costs. The SAWPA Sun 4/330 was purchased in May of 1996 and 

should, indeed, have been capitalized. However it appears to have been overlooked by both District staff and the 

Auditor. If appropriate, capitalization of the Minolta leases will be done in 96/97. 

--Page 37--Coding errors as noted by the Auditor will be corrected, and we thank them for calling them to our 

attention. 

--Page 43--Watermaster established an account with Downs Oil Company late in 1996; however the subsequent 

invoice was not among those sampled by the Auditor. 

--Throughout--An insufficiency of checks and balances in the accounting system is known to be inherent with 

agencies with limited staff available to provide the optimum segregation of financial responsibilities. Segregation has 

been and will continue to be made to the best of our ability among the five person Watermaster staff. 

20 I declare under penalty of perjury the foregoing to be true and correct to the best of my knowledge. Executed on this 

21 26th day of February, 1997 at Rancho Cucamonga, California. 

22 

23 

24 

25 Alice W. Lichti 

26 

27 

28 

Declaration of Alice W. Lichti 5 





STATE OF CALIFORNIA-AGRICULTURE AND SERVICES AGENCY 

BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY 
1021 0 STREET, SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95814 

TELEFHONE, (916) 445-5347 

EDMUND G. BROWN JR:, Governo 

August 6, 1975 

Alice W. Lichti 
74 Gardenia Court 
Upland, CA 91786 

De~r Mrs. Lichti: 

On reviewing the results of the recent Certified Public 
Accountant examination, the State Board of Accountancy 
found that you have passed all four parts of the 
examination at your first sitting. 

On behalf of the Board, I am extending my congratulations 
for your excellent showing and I wish you continued 
success in your chosen profession. 

Very truly yours, 





LETTER AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER AND 

ALICE W. LICHT!, INTERIM CONTROLLER 

Upon appointment by Chino Basin Watermaster as Interim Controller, Alice 
Lichti agrees to perform the following tasks in the time and manner 
necessary to meet the needs of Watermaster and the Chief of Watermaster 
Services. 

SCOPE OF WORK. 
1. Keep and maintain adequate accounts of all financial transactions 

of Watermaster, make deposits and disburse such funds as may be 
received by the Watermaster. 

2. Invest funds of the Watermaster as authorized. 

3. Keep and maintain records allocating costs and expenses of 
Watermaster as between the several pools. 

4. Oversees payroll services to be provided by Chino Basin Municipal 
Water District or by an outside.contractor. 

5. Reconcile all bank accounts each month. 

6. Prepare monthly, quarterly and annual financial reports as mandated 
either by State or by the Advisory Committee. 

7. Assist Chief of Watermaster Services in reviewing, selecting and 
testing new accounting .software. 

8. Work with Chief of Watermaster Services in preparation of the 
1997/1998 Budget. 

9. Attend Advisory Committee, Pool or_ Watermaster meetings as 
requested for the purpose of presenting financial reports. 

REIMBURSEMENT FOR SERVICES. Services will be billed at the rate of 
$35.00 per hour (portal to portal) plus $10.00 for each hour's use of 
Mrs. Lichti's personal computer. 

TERMINATION OF SERVICES. It is understood that this appointment is for 
a undetermined period o~ time; therefore, Watermaster may terminate this 
agreement without notice at any time. Lichti may terminate upon giving 
thirty (30) days notice. 

ACCEPTED this tenth day of July, 1996 by: 

Alice W. Lichti (Mrs.) 
74 West Gardenia Court 
Upland, CA 91786-2213 

(1 Bill Hill, President 
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

Approved by those present by unanimous vote at the Watermaster 
Board Meeting held July 10, 1996 
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~~J Peat Marwick LLP 

Center Tower 
650 Town Center Drive 

Costa Mesa. CA 92626 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON FINANOAL STATEMENTS 

The Board of Directors 
Chino Basin Watermas\er: 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Chino Basin Watermaster as of and for 
the year ended Jure 30, 1995, as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the District's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinfon on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, en a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles us«:! and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a· 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the 1995 financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of Chino Basin Watennaster as of June 30, 1995 and the results of its operations 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the bask financial statements taken as a 
whole. The supplementary information included is presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
is not a required part of the basic financial statements; Such information has be?n subiecfed to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and in our opinion, is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

September 29, 1995 
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Assets 

Cash 

Short-term investments 

Accounts receivable 

Prepaid expenses 

Total assets 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Comparative Balance Sheet 

Jun~ 30, 1995 and 1994 

ASSETS 

1995 

$114,847 

2,788,000 

1,451,276 

3,509 

$4,357,632 

LIABILITIES AND RETAINED EARNINGS 

Liabilities 

•. ·· - - -- Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $3,012,831 

Retained earnings 

Unreserved 

- · -·-·~--~.-- - ·•·-··· Total liabilities and retained earnings 

- _._, _,,..,,..,..,..,.,.,,"' 

1344801 

$4,357,632 

1994 

$14,221 

1,133,791 

2,264,338 

3,695 

$3,416,045 

$2,134,706 

1,281,339 

$3,416,045 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

Comparative Statement o' levenue, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings 

for the Fi~~al Years Ended June 30, 1995 and 1 S 

Operating revenues 

Assessment revenue: 

Replenishment water assessments 

Adminisl!ative. assessments 

Spedal assessments 

Water sales: 

Stored waler 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses 
Direct operating expenses: 
Replenishment waler deliveries 
Water purchases• other 
Materials & suppfies 
Printing and mailing 
Conl!act labor and materials 
Engineering fees 
Aucfll fees 
Legal fees 
Insurance expenses 
Meeting compensation 
Other expenses 

Total direct operating expenses 

Chino Basin Municipal Water Disuic! (CSMWD) serl.ces contract 

Salaries, payroll bu[den & overheads 

Materials and suppfies 

Printing and maffing 
Legal expenses 

Other expenses 

General and administrative 

Total operating expenses 

Opera:ing income (loss) 

Nonoperatina revenues 

Miscellaneous revenues 

Interest revenue 

Total nonoperating revenues, net 

Net income 

Retained eatninos at beginnin1, cf yeat 

Retain.ed earnincs at end of year 

See accompanying no/es lo tho financlal statements 

1995 

S95,901 

842,985 

0 

5,813,219 

6,752,105 

95,901 
5,992,320 

1,258 
1,934 

177,806 
61,984 

3,800 

119,567 
12,221 
2,575 

25,657 
6,495,023 

234,398 

1,202 

3,938 
9,841 

7,931 

4,353 

6,756,686 

{4,581) 

5 

68,038 

68,043 

63,462 

1,281,339 

S 1.344,801 

1994 

$1,580,485 

666,875 

82,750 

4,008,596 

6,338,706 

1,578,974 
4,008,596 

0 
1,178 

264,567 
4,198 

3,800 
111,530 

9,585 
1,600 
7,539 

·. 5,991,567 

210,830 

1,398 

332 
4,180 

8,943 

2,291 

6,219,541 

119,165 

0 

69,507 

69,507 

188,672 

1,092,667 

$1,281,339 

-

3 
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CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Comparative Statement of Cash Flows 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 1995 and 1994 

Cash Flows from operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) 

-Adjusfrnenfs to reconcile operating income (loss) to 
net cash provided (used) by operating activities: 

Other non-operating expenses/revenues, net 

Change in assets and liabilities: 
{lncrease)/decrease in accounts receivable 
(lncrease)/decrease in prepaid expenses 
lncrease/(decrease) in accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities 
Total adjustments to operating income (loss) 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Payments for investments 
Interest income from investments 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

· Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ofyear -
Casli an~ cash equivalents at end of year 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 

1995 

($4,581) 

5 

799,221 
186 

878,125 -
1,677,537 
1,672,956 

{1,031,000) 
81,879 

723,835 

- ·1,148,012 
$1,871,847 

.. 

1994 

$119,165 

0 

(1,014,246) 
(3,431) 

{113,049} 
{1,130,726} 
(1,011,561) 

0 
69,507 

(942,054) 

2,090,066 
$1,148,012 

4 



rHINO BASIN lVATERMASTER 
NOTE.., TO THE FINANCIAL STA1 l1ENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1995 

(1) Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 
' 

Description of Reporting Entity 

The Chino Basin Watermaster ("Watermaster"), was established under a judgment entered in Superior 
Court of the State of California for the County of S2n Bernardino as a result of Case No. WCV51010 
(formerly Case No. SCV164327) entitled "Chino Basin Municipal Water Distnct v. City of Chino et al", 
signed by the Honorable Judge Howard B. Wiener on January 27, 1978. The effective date of this 
judgment for accounting and operations was July 1, 1977 .. 

Pursuant to the judgment, the Chino Basin Municip;.l Water District (CB}.:!WD) five (5) member Board 
of Directors is appointed "Watermaster" to administer and enforce the provisions of the judgment. Their 
term of appointment of Watermaster is for five (5) years, and the Court, by subsequent orders, provides 

· for successive terms or for a successor Watermasier:· Three· (3) Pool committees were formed: (1) 
Overlying (Agricultural) Pool which in.eludes the State of California and all producers of water for 
overlying uses other than industrial· or co=ercial purposes, (2) Overlying (Non-Agricultural) Pool 
which represents producers of water for overlying industri;,l or commercial (non-agricultural) purposes; 
and (3) Appropriative Pool which represents cities, districts, other public entities and public utilities. The 
three Pools act together to form the • Advisory Committee" which serves to make recommendations for 
formal action to the Chino Basin Watermaster. 

The \Vatermaster provides the Chino Groundwater Basin service area management services which 
primarily include: water appropriations, computes acre-footage of stored water by agency, purchase of 

· replenishment water, groundwater monitoring and development of special projects;; · 

\Vaterroaster expenses are allocated to the Pools based on the prior yea.r's production volume (or the 
same percentage used to set the annual assessments). Allocations for fiscal year 1994/95 expenses are 
based on the 1993/94 production volume, and ;,!locations for fiscal year 1993/94 expenses are based on 
the 1992/93 production volume: 

1993/94 1992/93 
Acre Feet -% Acre Feet % 

Appropriative Pool 101,012 67.4 100,024 66.8 
Overlying Agricultural Pool 44,298 29.5 44,093 29.5 
Overyling Non-Agricultural Pool 4,586 3.1 5,4-04 3.7 

Toul Production 149.896 100.0 149,581 100.0 

The Agricultural Pool members ratified 2n agreement with the Appropriative Pool at their meeting of June 
16, 1988. The agreement required the Appropriative Pool to assume Agricultural Pool administrative 
expenses including special project allocations in exchange for an accelerated transfer of unpumped 

. agricultural waier 'to ihe A.pproprfative Pool: .. In addition;· the Agricultural Pool transferred all pool 
adminisfrative re.serves at June 30, 1988 to the Appropriati\'e Pool effective July 1, 1988. 

Chino Basin Watennasrer 
.\'mn rn ,1,,. Fi,umcial S1a1emen1s 

' 



~::,_;..,,..-~----------
The accounting policies of the Watermaster conform to generally acce11«:d accounting principles as 
applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the more significant policies: 

Basis of Accounting 

The acrounts of the Chino Basin Watennaster are maintained on the accrual basis and are reported as a 
single enterprise. Separate accounting records are maintained to segregate the Watermaster activities, 
as well as to track cash and investment amounts for each individual fund's use, as required under the 
judgment and the rules and regulations of the Watermasier and each Pool. Investments are stated at cost, 
which approximates market. 

Reclassifications 
,. 
Certain reclassifications have been made to the 1994 memorandum column data to conform with the 1995 
financial statement presentation. 

·• ·c2;·cash,JJeposits, ·Short-Tenn and Pooled Investments 

State statutes and the Watermaster's investment policy authorize the Watermaster to invest in obligations 
of the U.S. Treasury and other U.S. agencies, banker's acceptances, commercial paper rated A-1 by 
Sundard and Poor's Corporation or P-1 by Moody's Commercial Paper Rerords, certificates of deposit 
with financial institutions having an operating branch within the Watermaster geographic area, repurchase 
agreements, and the state treasurer's investment pool. 

The Watermaster's deposits are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed at year end 
by the following three categories: 

Category 1 

• Includes deposits insured or collateralized with securities held in the Watermaster's name. 

• Includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the 
Watermaster or its agent in the Watermaster's name. 

Category 2 

• Includes deposits with collateralized securities htld by the pledging financial institution's trust 
department or agent in the Watennaster's name. 

• Includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker's or 
dealer's trust department or agent in the Watermaster's name. 

Category 3 

•... Inch.ides uncollateralized deposits or deposits ;ilh-~li~ieralizea~seciimies held by the financial 
institution or its agent, but not in the Watennaster's name. 

• Includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which securities are held by the broker or deale1 
---·of by7ts7.nlsntepartmentilr--agen~but not.in the Watennaster's name. 



In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 3 ("OA!>jj J J crn~na, µle 

Watermaster's custodial ere risk on deposits and investments are catr 0 orized as follows: 
" .. . 

C•tti:ot'lo . 
Df.fOSlTS 

Dun.and c:ti.h amount.a 
Certific:,tu of dcpo,iu 

Pool,d niols: 
Lxat Ar,tr,(."f Invutmcnt Fund• (I..AlF)" 

Tot.&1 depo,iu 

Leu Noc-Cuh Equivalccu: 
Ccrt.ifieatca o( dcpo,it 

Cuh and Cu~ £quiva1cnu 

SI00,000 
200,000 

0 

!l00,000 

B, Ilk B, h n«/ 
l 3 Contract Value 

123,475 so Sl23,47S 
831,003 0 1,031,000 

0 0 1,757,000 

SSS4,47S so $2,911,475 

• Mor.lea poo1~ with the Su~ Treu-urcr in the J..o.:al Agency l:;vcn.mc~t Fund (LA.IF) 1~ not r.:bjee:t to rid:: utcgorlution. 

Carrying 
A.mounl 

S 114,147 
1,031,()"..0 

l,7S7,000 

$2,902,847 

(1,031,00'.)) 

Sl.!71.!47 

· The bank balance reflects the amount credited by a fioan_cial i_ns,tit1:ti~~-to 0e W~termaster's account as oppo~e 
to the \Vatermaster's own lerlger bajance for the account. The carrymg value reflects the ledger value; wh1c 
includes checks written by the Watermasier which have ·not deared the bank as of June 30, 1995. 

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Chino Basin Watermaster considers cash and cas 
equivalents to be defined as demand deposits, savings accounts, LAIF investments and all securities wi1 
original maturities oftb.ree months or less from date of purchase. For financial presentation purposes, cash ar 
cash equivalents are shown as cash and short-term investments. 

(3) Appropriative Pool Interest Revenue Allocation 

On August 30, 1979 Ille Appropriative Pool un,.,'1iroously approved assessment procedures whereby any inter, 
earned from the Watermaster assessments paid by Appropriative Pool members would reduce the total curre 
assessment due from those members. Fiscal year 1993/94 interest revenue was allocated to the Appropriati 
Pool members based on the fuods received in payment of the 1993/94 assessments, resulting in a reduction 
the 1994/95 assessment. 

(4) Agricultural Pool Sale 

In June 1988, the Agricultural PooJ sold 2,000 acre feet of water in storage to Cucamonga County \V, 
District. Funds from.this sale are held and in\'ested by the Watermaster Tre..surer for future use as determi1 
by !he Agricultural Pool members. At iurie 30,' 1995 the proceeds from the sale and related interest ean 
thereon totaled S361,819. · 

(5) Replenishment· !Vater Deliven'es 

. The Wa!~rmaster assessed water producers 432 acre feet of replenishment water during fiscal year 1994, 
based on prior fiscal ye.fr production. During fiscaJ-ye.u- 1994/95, an additional 20,072 acre feet was purch: 
internally to avoid purchasing'waiedTOinMetropolitan Water-District {MWD) at a-higher price in the follov 
year. 

Chino Basin Wa1crmas1er 
,\'(')·'"~ r"' ,1,,.. Y:-in11nciaJ Sta.temenJs 

. 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Combining Schedule of Revenue, Expenses and Changen In Retained Earnings - Schedule I 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1995 

Wah:nMslcr Admlnl•tmUon Groundw;ltcr 2e!:mllona Poot Mrnlnlslmtlon and Spccfal Pr~eeis 
Admlnis- Jolnl WM s0222 Groundwater ,\pptopootlvc AgriculU.ltffl Noo-Aor 

lrallon AtM~!IDoonJ Toi.al Fund& Rcplenlahment Pool Pool Pool 
,,.,nu,, 

' ' AsSds.mtnt J~nvie 

Replcr,shment wa~tr ~s.s.eumcrh $0 $95,001 
AdmlnlslratM: usCurtttnl, 0 $022,291 no.69• 

Waler UlcS ' 
Store<d~lcr 0 5,013,219 

lnltre-St ~nuc 0 40,0S7 $IT.J21 1,742 
Mitootllatw:QUS ,~rives 0 5 

Total~nun / 0 0 0 0 5.909.120 671,1'8 IT.J21 1~<1-4_!__ 
E1~n~n 
RepfC"r.1hme:nl WIiler dclm:rt<:-4 

l 0 05,001 
O.hcf ..,..,er p.ll'C,hfscs 0 5,002,320 
CBMVVO ulf;tin. /payltlll tKJtdcn &. oYCrhcod S174,6JS n1.•10 100,105 .20.m 11,684 5,614 
CBMWO general •nd .admlni&lralMJ: J,4J1 012 3,753 JJ• 100 00 
M.attria! and 1utJPl1u 2,•00 2.-100 
Prnd"IQ and ma~ J,IGS :,00 J,473 Jl5 1.oos 119 
euit1ad \aW .~ malcri.ll& 0 0 St:i,GOO 00,~53 67,749 J,700 

El"!Qin«nng lctt / 61,904 61,004 

Audi!. rtt"I J.000 J.000 
uv~,,tfl 122.G02 122,G02 3,223 •·= '·"°" Mc-tlll'IQ compcns.a!ion 0 1.0--.,0 1,9::,0 25 000 

Jnsunincc ci:pens.cs. 12.221 12.221 

Vcl'IIC.'°! 1U1-C 6,114 G,71.li 
Qhcf tJ;JenM:1- 2S.J72 992 2G.JG• JS2 '"° 18 

lo(al Walcnnas.ter administraOon ewcnsn 416.46• 25,042 441.500 

Mmirwslralion cipense ~nslet 0 0 0 6J.115J (6J.115JJ 
AIJoea;tx:xl cl. odrnlnistr.tlm c,:pcn~ 1""·'6<! ps.0421 !•41.500! 427.99G IJ.510 

Tot,11 opeMcs 0 0 0 15,000 6,000,221 627,746 0 25,111 

Nd-{l<nS) (IS.GOO) (179. 101) 243.402 17.Jll (2.6701 

Rtt.all"IC'd umln;ls July 1, 199-4 167,253' 221.10• 511.769 3-44,490 28.282 

Rct.1ined umlrig, June ::xJ. 199'$ $0 $0 $0 S151_._~5 _ __ -~ s.<O.OOJ . __ . Sl~.111 S:>G1,819 $15.617 

, 

, 

Educallonal Cnand 
Fu- Twl 

'95.001 

1142.-

5.&1l,21SJ 
$111 611.0)11 

$ 

118 __ _6.8~, 148 

so.sen 
S,Wl.l20 

23'.>90 
4_)5) 

2,400 
$,672 

177,&0G 
Gt,96-4 

J.IIOO 
\29,406 

1.575 
12.22, 
6,7\4 

26,674 

0 
0 

0 6.756,""6 

110 63.452 
2.J5J 1.1&1.J.)9 

S?.471 S1,344.rot 

n 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT-ON FINANCIAL-STATEMENTS···•·· · • ··· · · 

The Board of Directors 
Chino Basin Watennaster 
Fontana, California 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Chino Basin Watennaster as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 1996, as listed in the accompanying table of contents. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Watennaster's management, Our responsibility is to 

· express an ~opiru6il'on these :financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. an 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 
our audit provides a·reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of Chino Basin Watermaster as of June 30, 1996 and the results of its 
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken 
as a whole. The supplementary information listed in the accompanying table of contents is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 

· · ·--·-of·the basic financial- statements;· and;--in our-opinio11;--is-fairly.--stated in all- material-respects in 
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Cypress, California 
October 4, 1996 

l 

Member of: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants • California Society of Certi~'ed Public Accountants 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Comparative Balance Sheet 

June 30, 1996 
With Comparative 1995 Totals 

Assets 

Cash 

Short-term investments 

Accounts receivable 

Prepaid expenses 

· • • "· 
0
•••• - Refundable deposits 

Total current assets . 

Fixed Assets 

Office furniture & equipment 

Accumulated de;:xeciation 

Total fixed assets 

Total assets 

ASSETS 

. ~--- '": .. ,, .. 

1996 

$162,453 

1,036,639 

515,318 

13,783 

3,120 

.. $1,731,313 

36,516 

(2,140) 

34,376 

$1,765,689 

LIABILITIES AND RETAINED EARNINGS 

Liabilities 

Unearned revenue 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Retained Earnings 

Unreserved 

Total liabilities and retained earnings 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 

$15,734 

634,107 

$649,841 

1,115,848 

$1,765,689 

1995 

$114,847 

2,788,000 

1·,451,276 

3,509 

0 

$4,357,632 

0 

0 

0 

$4,357,632 

$0 

3,012,831 

$3,012,831 

1,344,801 

$4,357,632 

2 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Comparative Statement of •venue, Expenses and Changes in R· · ,jned Earnings 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1996 
With Comparative 1995 Totals 

Operating revenues 

Assessment revenue: 

·---...- ---·--· _ ...... 

Replenishment water assessments 

Administrative assessments 

Water sales: 

Stored water 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses 
Direct operating expenses: 
Replenishment water deliveries 
Water purchases 
Material & suppfies 
Printing and mailing 
Contract labor and .materials 
Engineering fees 
Aucfdfees 
Depreciation 
Legal fees 
Insurance expenses 
Meeting compensation 
Other expenses 

Total direct operating expenses 

Chino Basin Municipal Water District {CBMWD) services contract 

· .:: Salaries, payroll burden & overhead 

Material and suppfies 

Printing and mailing 
Legal expenses 

Other expenses 

General and administrative 

-···--- -·- _____ Total operati_ng expenses. 

Operating income {loss) 

Nonoperating revenues 

Miscenaneous revenues 

Interest revenue 

Total nonoperating revenues, net 

Net income (loss) 

Retained earnings at beginning of year 

Retained earnings at end of year 

See· accompanying notes to the financial statements 

1996 

$713,652 

551,147 

1,859,291 

3,124,090 

700,957 
_1,858,949 

4,017 
13,661 

256,882 
64,494 

325 
2,140 

195,711 
11,259 

0 
28,601 

3,136,996 

279,013 

326 

2,537 
0 

19,859 

5,287 

3,444,018 

(319,928) 

0 

90,975 

90,975 

(228,953) .. 

1,344.M1 

$1,115,848 

1995 

$95,901 

842,985 

5,813,219 

6,752,105 

95,901 
5,992,320 

1,258 
1,934 

· ,n,aoa 
61,984 
3,800 

0 
119,567 

12,221 
2,575 

25,657 
6,495,023 

234,398 

1,202 

3,938 
9,841 

7,931 

4,353 

6,756,686 

(4,581) 

s 
68,038 

68,043 

63,462 

1,2-81,339 

$1,344,801 

3 



CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
Comparative Statement of Cash Flows 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 1996 and 1995 

1996 1995 

Cash Flows from operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) 

Add/(deduct) items not requiring, or generating 
cash during the current period: 

Depreciation expense 
·- .-_. ,_.(fncrease)/decrease in accounts rece_ivable 

(lncrease)/decrease in interest receivaore-- -" 
(lncrease)/decrease in prepaid expenses 

· (lncrease)/decrease in refundable deposits 
lncrease/(decrease) in unearned revenue 
lncrease/(decrease) in accounts payable and. 
accrued liabilities 
Total adjustments to operating income (loss) 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 

Interest income from investments 
· Net increase/(decrease) from investing activities 

Cash applied and other sources: 

($319,928) 

2;140 · 
947,844 

··- -"-(11,886) 
- · -(10,274) 

(3,120) 
15,734 

(2,378,724) 
(1,438,286) 
(1,758,214) 

90,975 
90,975 

Other non-operating expenses/revenues, net 0 
Office furniture and equipment purchases · (36,516) 

Net cash provided/(used) from other sources (36,516) 
--Net cash provided/(used)by-nonoperatlng activities - ...... -c·c.:c54,459 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,703,755) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

See accompanying notes /o /he financial statements 

2,902,847 
$1,199,092 

($4,581) 

0 
799,221 

13,841 
186 

0 
0 

878,125 
1,691,373 
1,686,792 

68,038 
68,038 

5 
0 
5 

68,043 
1,754,835 

1,148,012 
$2,902,847 

4 



CHINO BASIN 1VATERMASTEA .......... . 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1996 

(1) Reporting Entity and Sumnw,y.of Signi.ficant Accounting Policies:--~----···· 

D?cScription of Reporting Entity 

The Chino Basin Watennaster ("Watermaster"), was established under a judgment entered in Superior Court of 
the State of California for the County of San Bernardino as a result of Case No.WCVS1010 (formerly Case No. 
SCV164327) entitled "Chino Basin Municipal Water District v. City of Chino et al", signed by the Honorable 
Judge Howard B. Wiener on January 27, 1978. The effective date of this judgment for accounting and operations 
was July 1, 1977. 

Pursuant to the judgment, the Chino Basin Municipal Water District (CBMWD) five (5) member Board of 
Directors is appointed "W atermaster" to administer and enforce the provisions of the judgment Their term of 
appointment of W atennaster is for five (5) years; and the Court, by subsequent orders, provides for successive 

·-terms orfor a successorWatermaster, Three (3}Pool committees were formed: (1) Overlying (Agricultural) Pool 
which includes the State of California and all producers of water for overlying uses other than industrial or 
commercial purposes, (2) Overlying (Non-Agricultural) Pool which represents producers of water for overlying 
industrial or commercial (non-agricultural) purposes; and (3) Appropriative Pool which represents cities, districts, 
other public entities and public utilities. The three Pools act together to form the "Advisory Committee" which 
serves to make recommendations for formal action to the Chino Basin Watermaster. 

The Watermasterprovides the Chino Groundwater Basin service area with management services which primarily 
include: water appropriations, components of acre-footage of stored water by agency, purchase of replenishment 
water, groundwater monitoring and development of special projects. · 

Watermaster expenses are allocated to the Pools based on the prior year's production volume (or the same 
percentage used to set the annual assessments). Allocations for fiscal year 1995/96 expenses are based on the 
19_94/95 production volume, and allocations for fiscal year 1994/95 expenses are based on the_ 1993/94 · 
production volume: 

. t· 

1994/95 1993/94 
Acre Feet % Acre Feet % 

Appropriative Pool 97,641 62.196 101,012 67.388 
Overlying Agricultural Pool- , . - . -~- 55,022 .. ... 35.0~8 .. 44,298 29.552 
Overyling Non-Agricultural Pool 4.327 2.756 4.586 3.060 

Total Production 156,990 100.000 149,896 -100.000 

The Agricultural Pool members ratified an agreement with the Appropriative Pool at their meeting of June 16, 
1988. The agreement required the Appropriative Pool to assume Agricultural Pool administrative expenses 
including special project allocations in exchange for an accelerated transfer ofunpwnped agricultural water to 

· ·the Appropriative Poot In llddition;the·Agricultural Pool transferred all pool administrative reserves at June 30, 
1988 to the Appropriative Pool effective July l, 1988. 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
Notes to the Financial Statements 5 



The accounting policies of the Watermaster conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable 
to governmental units. The following is a swnmary of the more significant policies: 

.. ~., 

Basis of Accounting 

The accounts of the Chino Basin Watermaster are maintained on the accrual basis and are reported as a single 
enterprise. Separate accounting records are maintained to segregate the Watermaster activities, as well as 
to track cash and investment amounts for each individual fund's use, as required under the judgment and the 
rules and regulations of the Watermaster and each Pool. Investments are stated at cost, which approximates 
market • 

. Reclassifications 

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 1994 memorandum column data to conform with the 1995 
financial statement presentation. 

(2) Cash;,DepositsrShort~Tenn and Pooled Investments 

State statutes and the Watermaster's investment policy authorize the Watermaster to invest in obligations of 
the U.S. Treasury and other U.S. agencies, banker's acceptances, commercial paper rated A-1 b)"Standard 
andPoor's CorporationorP-1 by Moody's Commercial Paper Records, certificates of deposit with financial 
institutions having an operating branch within the Watermaster geographic area, repurchase agreements, and 
the state treasurer's investment pool. 

The Waterrnaster' s deposits are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed at year end by 
· the following three categories: 

Category 1 

• Includes deposits insured or collateralized with securities held in the Watermaster's name. 

• Includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the 
Watermaster or its agent in the Watermaster's name. 

Category 2 

• Includes deposits with collateralized securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department 
_., ______ o~.agent in the Watermaster's name. · 

• Includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker's or 
dealer's trust department or agent in the Watermaster's name. 

Category 3 

• Includes uncollateralized deposits or deposits with collateralized securities held by the financial institution 
------,·---~--~orits·agent;0butnot in the Watermaster's name. 

;:._.:., 
• Includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which securities are held by the broker or dealer or 

by its trust department or agent but not in the Watermaster's name. 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
Notes to the Financial Statements 6 



In accordance with Governme <\ccounting Standards Board Statement Nw-1-ier 3 ("GASB 3") criteria, the 
Watermaster's custodial credi, .,sk on deposits and investments are categol .d as follows:· 

DEPOSITS 
Demand ea.sh amounts 

INVESTMENTS 
Pooled funds: 
Local Ageney lnve,tmcnt Fund, (LAJF)• 

Total deposits and inve$Ullents 

SI00,000 

0 

SI00,000 

Cateeories 

2 3 

$85,693 $0 

0 0 

$85,693 so 

Bank Balance/ 
Contract Value 

5185,693 

Carrying 
Amount 

S 162,453 

1,036,639 1,036,639 

$1,222,332 $1,199,092 

• Monies pooled with 1hc State Treasurer in the Loeal Agcney Tnvcrunent Fund (LA.IF). arc not subject to risk categoriz.atfon. 

The bank balance reflects the amount credited by a financial institution to the Watermaster's account as 
opposed to the Watermaster's own ledger balance for the account. The carrying value reflects the ledger 

. ~ .. value, which includes checks written by 1he Waterrnaster which have not cleared the bank as of June 30, 1996. 

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Chino Basin Watermaster considers cash and cash 
equivalents to be defined as demand deposits, savings accounts, LAIF investments and all securities with 
original maturities of three months or less from date of purchase. For financial presentation purposes, cash 
and cash equivalents are shown as cash and short-term investments. 

(3) Appropriative Pool Interest Revenue Allocation 

On August 30, 1979 !he Appropriative Pool unanimously approved assessment procedures whereby any 
interest earned from the Waterrnaster assessments paid by Appropriative Pool members would reduce the total 
current assessment due from those members. Fiscal year 1994/95 interest revenue was allocated to the 
Appropriative Pool members based on the funds received in payment of the 1994/95 assessments, resulting 
in a reduction of !he 1995/96 assessment. 

(4) Agricultural Pool Sale 

In June 1988, !he Agricultural Pool sold 2,000 acre feet of water in storage to Cucamonga County Water 
District Funds from !his sale are held and invested by the Watermaster Treasurer for future use as determined 
by the Agricultural Pool members. At June 30, 1996 the proceeds from the sale and related interest earned 

_____ thereon.totaled.$387,168. __ From this_amo.w.it, ~10,Sp was aulhorized by the Pool for retention of special 
legal counsel for negotitations on the Desalter Agreement. This resulted in a· remaining unexpe.nded balance 
of $376,651 at June 30, 1996. 

(5) Replenishment Water Deliveries 

The Watermaster assessed water producers 3,061 acre feet ofreplenishment water during fiscal year 1995/96, 
.. -·· _b.~q_o_11.pdot:Jiscal1ear pcoductiol). Duringfisc~Iy7~ 1995/96, an additional 8,976 acre feet was purchased 

internally to avoid purchasing water from Metropolitan·Waier Dfairfcf (MWD) at a higher' price in the 
following year. 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
Notes lo the Financial Statements 
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,I 
ii 
:1 

Ii 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL AND RETAINED EARNINGS -SCHEDULE I 

For the Year Ended June 30, 1996 

. . 
wATERMASTER ADMINISTRATION GROUNDWATER OPERATIONS PooL ADMINISTRATION ANO SPECIAL PROJECTS 

ii 

i 'l 
APMINls.. JOINT WM SB222 GROUNDWATER APPROPRIATIVE AGRICULTURAL NON-A.GR EDUCATIONAL 

'· l 
Ravenu•i 
AsseUmenl revenue f ,. ' 
Repten~ water a~nts 

Administrative auesamenls 
I 

WaterSclles 

St«ed f,a1er 
lnlernl ~ttvenue 

Tota1r1eYenues 
' Expense~ i 

F umit~ & Equipment purehaaes 

Waler purchases. 

CBMWq sa&a.ties. payrol bufden & overhead 

CBM~ general and administraU\'e 

Ma1etial an4 supplies 

Prinlinaiand mailing ··~ 

eontradt labor and materials 

Engine~nng fees 

Audit rdes 
Legal f4es 

1nsurarlce expemes 
Ut.,;e,1' !\ 

I' . 
le.set. :: 

'l' .i. 

O<hef ~- . 1· 
', \ 

Totat'.Walermaster adminlslialioo expenses 
;, '· 

~ration eipenu tra~er 
AllocaUon or admin. expenses 

Talat expenses 

Net income llosS) 

Waddng capilal. beginning 01 period 

Working eapilal. end cl period 
Adjut,tmenl,s to retained earnings: 

Add bock: Furniture & equipment purchase• 
Subtract: Depredation expense 
~ earnings, end 01 period 

See accompanying notes lo the financial statements 

T_~TIQ_~ __ AOVISORV BRO 

11 0 

TOTAL 

$0 

0 

0 

11 
0 

. $36,516 $36,516 

0 0 

162,327 33,236 195,563 ' 

3,077 473 3,550 

4,343 •,343 

10,655 300 10,963 

73,306 73,306 

64,494 64,404 

325 325 

185,194 185.194 

11,259 11,259 

3,878 3,670 

12, 130 12, 130 

~1 -450 427 31 677 

. 598 956 34 444 633 400 

0 0 0 

(598.956) (3-4,444) {633,400] 

J) __ -- 0 0 

0 0 0 

so $0 $0 

FUNDS 

$6,014 

§,QH 

0 

6,014 

151 645 

157,659 

0 
0 

$157,659 

RE_rLENISHME_f'ff POOL 

$707,638 

$536,297 

1,659,291 

63594 

2 566 929 599 891 

2,559,906 

47,069 

715 

178 

70,963 

225 

156,585 

615 943 

2 559 906 891 698 

7,023 (291,607) 

-48063 755171 

55,106 463,364 

0 35,510 
0 (2,0611 

$55,106 $<196 793 

~OOL 

J25.~49 

1~;,\49 

31,536 

935 

5,008 

106,239 

10,517 

350 

(156,585) 

0 

25,349 

361819 

387,168 

0 
$387 168 

P09L 

$14,850 

1&_~ 

1filQ8_ 

4,645 

87 

•9 

4,352 

17 -457 

26790 

(10,0621 

25612 

15,530 

1,006 
159' 

$16,•77 

FUN05 

$174 

174 

0 

17• 
2 <471 

2,645 

0 
0 

S2,645 

'· 

GRAND 

TOT.Al. 

$713,652 

551,147 

1,859,291 

90 97" 

3 215l 

~.516 

2,559,906 

279,013 

,S,287 

!4,343 

16,198 

256,682 

'f4,494 

325 

195,711 

\1,259 

.3,878 

12,130 

32,452 

0 

3 476 394 

(263,329) 

1 34;,1 801 

1,061,472 

36,516 

f1,1•0; 
$1.115.646 
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DECLARATION OF PATRICK R. PARK 

2 I, Patrick R. Park, hereby declare as follows: 

3 1. I am a Computer Consultant for the Chino Basin Watermaster. I have been a Consultant 

4 for Watermaster since April of 1993, first through Thor Temporary Services and since June of 1993 under 

5 contract. I have first hand knowledge of the matters set forth herein, and if called as a witness, I would be 

6 competent to testify thereto. 

7 2. I reviewed portions of an operations audit report and a motion by Chino Basin Municipal 

8 Water District attorneys opposing the Watermaster motion that the cost of an audit is a District expense. 

9 3. As a Computer Consultant for the Watermaster, I provide services such as hardware and 

1 o software evaluation, installation, and maintenance, and I develop integrated applications for customers 

11 with special needs. I am also certified to administer several types of networks such as Novell and 

12 Windows NT, and to instruct classes on how to install and administer these networks by the software 

13 vendors. 

14 4. Chino Basin Municipal Water District was concerned early in my tenure with Watermaster 

15 as to whether or not I am an independent contractor or an employee. The former accounting manager for 

16 the District, Lee Penrice, applied the twenty factors summarized by the auditors starting on page 26 to my 

17 relationship with Watermaster and found that I am an independent contractor. 

18 5. The auditors state that I signed an order "in the customer signature area" which obligated 

19 the Watermaster to purchase the equipment for the price stated. I do not obligate Watermaster to 

20 purchase equipment. I do pick up equipment and software ordered on behalf of my clients. In the case 

21 referred to by the auditors, I was picking up a printer to replace one thought to be unrepairable by the 

22 service representatives. It was ordered pursuant to direction by the Chief of Watermaster Services, which 

23 is a normal part of the Watermaster process since my tenure began. 

24 6. I am unaware of any "credit" accounts for computer system related items. I have 

25 recommended the establishment of a relationship with a local vendor, similar to those maintained by the 

· ~ · 26" .. District, to facilitate-maintenance ofthe Watermastersystem in a more timely manner. ' 

27 

28 

Declaration of Patrick R. Park 



7. The auditors state they could not obtain a phone listing for my business as part of their 

2 test for independent contractor status. I do not list my numbers because most of my business comes 

3 from referrals and the classes I instruct. I only give my business number to those I wish to have it 

4 I declare under penalty of perjury the foregoing to be true and correct to the best of my 

s knowledge. Executed this 26th day of February, 1997 at Riverside, California. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Declaration of Patrick R. Park 
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1 GUIDO R. SMITH, ESQ. 
505 city Parkway West 

2 Suite 1000 FILED - Central District 
San fkrnardino County Cklrk 

\":'.'. C;;trict Fil ... ""'\ 

I.,. ! ·--
Orange, CA 92668-2958 

3 Tel.: (714) 978-6781 
State Bar No. 75055 

S:1 r··-··t:, c~•'"'.'! Clzrk JUL 3 1 1989 

for Chino Basin M. ~ ~T 1 2 1989 8 I'. .... ,, · 

4 

5 Attorney 
as CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER . y l..(.{T(.J7/.I. C, po/U 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

,... r .... -, <"1.: --~ Deputy 
,I'' •.:-\ ........... I()\ I_) ,.:.· ... -:h-r."""-t.,_;...:-·,,.:.-' • . . . • 

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDI,ti°: , ·• () 
\21.J-( •J ... \.) .'- • 

CHINO BASIN MUNICIPAL WATER 
DISTRICT, 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Case No. 164327 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

CITY OF CHINO, et al., 

Defendants. ______________ ) 

STATEMENT OF DECISION AND 
ORDER RE MOTION FOR REVIEW 
OF WATERMASTER ACTIONS AND 
DECISIONS FILED BY CITIES 
OF CHINO AND NORCO AND 
SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY 
WATERWORKS DISTRICT NO. 8 

Prior to 1978, various parties dependent upon the 

18 Chino Basin for water were engaged in litigation concerning 

19 their respective water rights and obligations. This litigation 

20 resulted in a judgment filed in this action on January 30, 1978 

21 (Judgment) • The Judgment defined the Chino Groundwater Basin 

22 and, pursuant to the authority of the California Constitution, 

23 put into effect a program for administration of the water rights 

24 within the basin under the Court's authority. The 

25 administration of the water rights included the imposition of a 

26 pliys ic:al solution· a·nd · del:egated·ther··adm•in'istration of the 

27 program to the Chino Basin Waterinaster with continuing 

28 jurisdiction and supervision of the Court. 

EXHIBITAl 
By agreement of the 

.003645 
AUG 16 1989. 



1 parties, the Chino Basin Municipal Water District Board of 

2 Directors was appointed to act as Watermaster. Watermaster 

3 appointments are for a period of five (5) years, unless sooner 

4 changed by order of the Court. Any party may request, by 

5 motion, that the Watermaster be changed, and should be changed 

6 if the request is supported by a majority of the voting power of 

7 the Adv:isory Committee. 

8 The Judgment declared the Safe Yield to be 140, ooo 

9 acre feet per year. This was allocated as follows: 

10 To· the Overlying· (Agricultural) Pool, an aggregate 

11 of 414,000 acre feet in any consecutive five (5) 

12 years; 

13 To the overlying (Non-Agricultural) Pool, 7,366 

14 acre feet per year; and 

15 To the Appropriative Pool, 49,834 acre feet per 

16 year. 

17 The Appropriative Pool is made up of primarily cities and water 

18 districts and consists of 22 producers, each of which has 

19 assigned specific rights which may be transferred. Each of the 

20 three pools is represented by a committee, members of which are 

2l elected on a yearly basis. All decisions are first submitted to 

22 the various pool committees. After they have acted on a matter, 

23 the matter is referred to the Advisory committee which is 

24 basically made up of almost all of the members of the 

25 Appropriative Pool and elected representatives of the Overlying 

26 (Agricultural) 't>ool arid Overlying· (Non"'Agricu'l.tural) Pool. At 

27 the present time, there are 100 votes in the Advisory Committee 

28 of which 20 belong to the Overlying (Agricultural) Pool, 5 

·003646 
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1 belong to the Overlying (Non-Agricultural) Pool, and 7 5 are 

2 allotted to the members of the Advisory Committee from the 

3 Appropriative Pool. 

4 The Advisory Committee takes actions on all matters 

5 considered by the various pools and submits its recommendations 

6 to the Watennaster. The Advisory Committee is the policymaking 

7 group for the Basin. Any action approved by 80 percent or more 

8 of the Advisory Committee constitutes a mandate for .action by 

g the Watermaster consistent therewith. 

10 Orf February 8 of this year, there was calendared for 

11 hearing a motion for review of Watermaster actions and 

12 decisions. This motion was filed by the City of Chino, City of 

13 Norco and San Bernardino County Water Works District No. 8 

14 {Moving Parties). The Moving Parties are members of the 

15 Appropriative Pool and are members of the Advisory Committee. 

16 The Moving Parties pointed out a great many areas in 

17 which they considered the activities of the Watennaster less 

18 than perfect. The matter was continued until March 1, and the 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

Court ordered the parties to meet and confer in order to narrow 

the issues. They did this, and the Court received a 

Consolidated Statement of Issues to be Determined by the Court. 

Although prepared by the Office of the Attorney General of the 

state of California, all parties stipulated to the definition of 

24 remaining issues as therein stated. The Consolidated Statement 

25 of Issues served as the pre-hearing Order of the Court. 

26 Before addressing··each of"the··unresol ved issues as set 

27 forth in the Consolidated Statement of Issues, the court wishes 

28 to observe that it is quite aware of the fact that we are 

003647 
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1 dealing with a problem of enormous proportions. The Chino Basin 

2 is a huge ground water basin which, although primarily in San 

3 Bernardino County, extends partially into or impinges upon the 

4 rights of several neighboring counties. The Moving Parties are 

5 located in the lower end of the basin. They are the recipients 

6 of all problems which have accumulated in the course of the 

7 circulation of water down to their end. They are particularly 

8 subject to the excess of nitrates in the substrata occasioned 

g partly because of their location in the lower end of the basin 

10 and partly because of the ·coricintration of dairy and 

11 agricultural activities in their part of the territory. 

12 The fundamental idea behind the Judgment was to 

13 guarantee, especially in times of drought, that there would be 

14 sufficient water for all legitimate users of the basin and that 

15 the water be of good quality. There was great concern that 

16 water of inferior quality (i.e., of high mineral content) would 

17 be imported into the basin and dilute the quality of water in 

18 storage. The basin constitutes a huge natural reservoir in 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

which excess water may be stored during wetter years for 

withdrawal during the drier years. This, of course, would 

contemplate that the groundwater would rise and fall depending 

upon the input and outtake of water. Unfortunately, this 

affects the Moving Parties somewhat adversely. When the water 

level rises, it apparently intercepts higher levels of the 

substrata which contain the nitrates which are being leached 

down into the basin. It dissolves these n:i.t.iat.es and produces 

an unsatisfactory level of nitrate for the pumpers at the lower 

end of the basin. This leave: ~t~em with~,..Ju~f:flfb'ssity . of 

4 



1 removing the nitrates at their pumping stations or building 

2 pipelines to bring water in from another area. The Moving 

3 Parties feel that this is an expense which should be borne by 

4 the entire basin, not just those at the lower end of the basin. 

5 The members of the basin who do not have this problem feel that 

6 they have their own problems to meet and that the Moving Parties 

7 should resolve their problems in whatever way they can. In any 

8 event, the rest of the basin has resisted the efforts to have 

g them contribute to the cost of purifying water produced at the 

10 lower end of the basin by removing nitrates. 

11 This nitrate problem is not one of easy solution. We 

12 cannot waste the great part of the storage capacity of the basin 

13 because to use it would dissolve more nitrates. And yet to use 

14 the storage capacity does affect the quality of the water. 

15 There is at the present time in progress the "Santa Ana River 

16 Nitrate Management Study" which is to be completed later this 

17 year and which, it is hoped, will provide assistance in 

18 evaluating the problem. 

19 The Court has been the beneficiary of the arguments in 

20 this case which were heard on March 1 and a large quantity of 

21 briefs suppliecl by the various interested parties. Having 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

carefully considered and reconsidered the points and authorities 

and other arguments submitted, the Court rules on the unresolved 

issues as set forth in the Consolidated Statement of Issues to 

be Determined by the Court as follows: 

Ill// 

I/Ill 

28 I/Ill 00364~) 
5 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

ISSUE NO. 1. : ''The standing of The 

Metropolitan Water District to respond to the Moving 

Parties' motion and the Moving Parties' motion to 

strike." 

The Metropolitan Water District is not a party to the 

7 Judgment. Metropolitan has entered into a Cyclic Storage 

8 Agreement and a Trust Storage Agreement with the Watermaster and 

9 exchange agreements with certain of the parties. 'I'.he Cyclic 

10 Storage Agreement and cTrust Storage,, Agreement were entered into 

11 with full approval of the Advisory Committee. The Moving 

12 Parties are attacking the Trust Storage and related exchange 

13 agreements. Metropolitan only claims the right to be heard on 

14 Issues 1 and 4 which significantly affect its agreements. 

15 The Moving Parties' contention that Metropolitan 

16 either must intervene as a full-fledged, active party to the 

17 Judgment or not at all is neither sound nor just. Metropolitan 

18 does have standing and, in fact, is an indispensable party to 

19 the proper determination of Issue No. 4 which relates to the 

20 validity of the aforementioned agreements. The Court finds that 

21 Metropolitan may intervene in connection with any motion hearing 

22 or other form of litigation to the extent that it affects 

23 Metropolitan's real and substantive interests. Therefore, the 

24 motion of the Moving Parties to strike Metropolitan' s response 

25 to the motion for review is denied. 

26 Ill/I 

27 ///// 

28 ///// 

6 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

ISSUE NO. 2.: "Adequacy of data gathering 

by Watermaster." 

The Moving Parties have failed to demonstrate by a 

5 preponderance of the evidence, or indeed by any substantial 

6 evidence, that the Watermaster has not fully complied with all 

7 requirements of the pool committees or of the Advisory committee 

8 or that its data gathering is not reasonable in view of the 

9 intent of the Judgment. The court finds that there is no basis 

10 for its intervention in this area. 

11 This brings up a matter of some concern to the Court. 

12 The Moving Parties are members of the Advisory Committee which 

13 under the Judgment is the controlling body of the ground water 

14 basin. The Moving Parties between them have slightly more than 

15 20 percent of the voting power of that body. The evidence 

16 before the Court seems to indicate that most of the actions of 

17 the Watermaster have been done with the unanimous approval of 

18 the Advisory Committee and nowhere have the Moving Parties 

19 indicated to the Court that they have requested the Advisory 

20 committee to vote to instruct the watermaster to do the things 

21 they are now urging the Court to order the Watermaster to do. 

22 The purpose of having the pool committees and the 

23 Advisory Committee is to have a representative assembly where 

24 the parties most interested can discuss the needs of the basin 

25 and vote on the best way of meeting those needs. This motion 

26 comes bef6:re "the-·court without··any' ap'];>arertt p:rev'ious efforts of 

27 the Moving Parties to accomplish their purposes by convincing 

28 the Advisory Committee of the wisdom of their requests. This is 

7 0036r-•1 u. 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

somewhat akin to resorting to the Court without having first 

exhausted one's administrative remedies and should be frowned 

upon. The Court particularly feels that Issue No. 2 could well 

have been resolved by discussion at the level of the Advisory 

committee rather than by coming to Court. In making the Motion 

for Review, the Moving Parties failed to provide the Court with 

any record of proceedings of any of the meetings or activities 

of the Watermaster, the· Advisory Committee, or any of the pool 

g committees, i.e., of any of the administrative record of the 

lO Watermaster and its.component pools and-committees. It was only 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

through the efforts of the Watermaster in providing such record 

that the Court was able to review the actions and decisions 

brought before the court for its review. 

The Court's ruling against the Moving Parties in 

connection with Issue No. 2 should not be taken to mean that the 

Advisory Committee and the Watermaster should not be constantly 

considering the adequacy of its data gathering procedures as 

needs and conditions change. 

ISSUE NO. 3.: "The Optimum Basin Management 

Program." 

The Moving Parties contend that the Watermaster has 

24 failed to develop an adequate Optimum Basin Management Plan 

25 (OBMP). The Watermaster, on the other hand, says that it has an 

26 excellent w6rking 'OBMP althoUgh~ it•-·has-·not been reduced to a 

27 single document. In any event, the Moving Parties feel that the 

28 OBMP needs to include the basis for greater flexibility in the 
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1 use of waters of varying qualities and that it must provide 

2 necessary safeguards to assure equity and water quality 

3 protection throughout the basin. 

4 Long before the Judgment was entered, it was 

5 recognized that water quality problems were present in the 

6 basin; however, no one could agree on exactly which problems to 

7 tackle and what to do about them. Where a point source has been 

8 located and identified there has been some mobilization to try 

g to cure it, but the pervasive nature of nitrate build-up from 

']0 dairy, farms and ,agricultural activities has not been adequately 

11 recognized until recently. The Moving Parties have not 

12 suggested any solution to this problem other than to keep the 

13 water level in the basin low so that it will not meet the 

14 descending nitrates and dissolve them and get them into 

15 circulation. The Moving Parties apparently feel that if we are 

16 going to raise the water level in the basin and thus aggravate 

17 the nitrate problem, that the entire basin should be responsible 

18 for curing that nitrate problem which apparently can only be 

19 done by proper treatment at the pump. Of course, long range the 

20 introduction of the nitrates can be reduced, and the nitrates in 

2! the soil will ultimately be leached out. But that will not be 

22 of much help to this generation or the next., The nitrate 

23 problem has its source primarily in the territory of the Moving 

24 Parties, particularly Chino. Whether or not the Judgment had 

25 ever been entered, the nitrate problem would be a problem to the 

26 Mci\1ing ~Partt-~s~- -However; , there,,is,, some,, justification to the 

27 concept put forward by the Moving Parties that the problems of 

28 the lower end of the basin should be the problem of the entire 
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1 basin. 

2 As to the immediate problem of the OBMP, it must be 

3 borne in mind that the primary goal of the Watermaster under the 

4 Judgment is to guarantee an adequate water supply in dry years 

5 as well as wet years for all users and to do everything it can 

6 
to improve, or at least not to degrade, the quality of that 

7 water. There is no claim that the Watermaster has not provided 

8 an adequate supply of water, and there is no claim that the 

g Watermaster has done anything to degrade the quality of the 

lO water.· Irt · other words, the Watermaster, has . not added poor 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

quality water to the basin. The only contention is that by 

adding water at all, the Watermaster is dissolving more nitrates 

and getting them into circulation more quickly than nature would 

normally do it. 

As indicated above, there are studies under way trying 

to at least define the problem and work out possible solutions. 

The Court finds no defect in the OBMP, although the Court does 

recommend that within two years the OBMP be reduced to a single 

integrated document approved by the Advisory committee. 

.ISSUE NO. 4.: "Validity of the Exchange 

Agreements." 

The Exchange Agreements and the Trust storage 

25 
Agreement were specifically anticipated in the Judgment 

26 (Paragraphs 12 and 28). 

27 
The agreements were considered and unanimously 

28 . approved by the Advisory Committee (including the 
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1 representatives of the Moving Parties). These agreements were 

2 approved by the Court without challenge. The time for 

3 challenging the approval of these contracts has long since 

4 expired. 

5 However, on the merits, the agreements fully comply 

6 with the letter and spirit of the Judgment, and provide proper 

7 and adequate safeguards to the rights of the parties. 

8 The request of the Moving Parties that these 

9 agreements be declared invalid and void is denied. 

10 

11 ISSUE NO. 5.: "The method and timing of the 

12 distribution of the Agricultural Pool transfer." 

13 
l4 The parties have agreed that the one-time 1988 

15 transfer of approximately 78,000 acre feet, or at least 28,000 

l6 acre feet, from the Agricultural Pool to the Appropriative Pool 

17 was valid. However, the Moving Parties ask that 50,000 acre 

l8 feet be placed in an Appropriative Pool holding account pending 

19 completion of an OBMP and a socio-economic study. 

20 The Court finds no illegality or inequity in this 

21 transfer. Procedurally, it complied with the requirements of 

22 the Judgment. The Judgment sets forth a scheme for the 

23 distribution of transferred waters and excludes this question 

24 from the continuing jurisdiction of the court. 

25 

26 ///// 

27 ///// 

28 ///// 

The request of the Moving Parties is denied. 
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11 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

ISSUE NO. 6.: ''Ontario's storage of 10,000 

acre feet of water.'' 

The Moving Parties request that Ontario• s recent 

agreement to store 10,000 acre feet be nullified. The Moving 

Parties seem to agree that this agreement was proper and legal 

under the Judgment, but only because the Judgment was defective 

in some way as to provide a "loophole". 

The Minutes of the Advisory Committee meeting of 

10 September l.5, l.988, show approval of. this. agreement with the 

· 11 City of Chino and Water Works District No. 8 (moving parties 

12 herein) voting for approval! 

13 The Moving Parties claim to be entitled to an order 

14 nullifying this agreement because the Watermaster has not 

15 prepared a proper OBMP or a socio-economic study, and has not 

16 commented on Metropolitan's draft EIR. None of these claims 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

would justify bringing the operations of the Watermaster to a 

halt by voiding contracts properly and lawfully entered into. 

The motion is denied. 

ISSUE NO .. 7 •. .:--2'-Is-there ,a ... mandatory duty of 

the Watermaster to comment on Metropolitan•s 

conjunctive use draft environmental impact report and, 

if so, to what extent?" 

The Watermaster is the Board of Directors of the Chino 

Basin Municipal Water District which acts under the policy 

28 direction of the Advisory Committee, Unless there is a clear 

.00365f.i 
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1 consensus of opinion as to a particular draft EIR among members 

2 of the Advisory Committee, there is no obligation to comment. 

3 In fact, to do so would be divisive and destructive to the 

4 primary function of the Watermaster and the Advisory Committee. 

5 It would be quite appropriate for the various parties to the 

6 Judgment to make their own comments. In this way, the divergent 

7 interests and views could be considered. 

8 The court finds there is no duty on the part of the 

g Watermaster to comment on the Metropolitan draft EIR. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

ISSUE NO. 8. : "The adequacy of the 

Eleventh Annual Watermaster Report." 

14 The Moving Parties complain of the Eleventh Annual 

15 Watermaster Report primarily because the socio-economic study 

16 has not been done and the Moving Parties are not satisfied with 

17 the OBMP. There is perhaps also a complaint that it does not 

18 contain a minority point of view. 

19 It is difficult for the Court to fault the report for 

20 not containing a minority point of view when there was no 

21 minority point of view. The report was unanimously approved by 

22 all parties prior to submission to the Court. This includes 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

approval by each of the Moving Parties. The report seems to 

fairly and accurately set forth what was done by the Watermaster 

during the period of the report. 

Ill// 

/Ill/ 

The report is approved. 

13 
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ISSUE NO. 9. : "Whether the impoundments of 

the '88-89 annual assessments with interest, costs, 

and penalties should be transferred to the 

watermaster, and how the transfer should be 

accomplished." 

7 The Judgment provides for assessments to be made by 

8 the Watermaster and further provides that challenges to the 

g validity of the Watermaster•s assessments must be made within 60 

lO days. In this .case, . certain • assessments were made, and the 

ll Moving Parties paid their assessments into an impound account 

l2 withholding them from use by the Watermaster for which the 

13 assessments were intended until determination of this action. 

l4 No challenge to the Watermaster•s assessments was ever made by 

15 the Moving Parties, and the time for such challen-qes. has long 

l6 since expired. It is clear -- in fact, the Moving Parties agree 

l7 -- that the withholding of the assessments was intended as a 

l8 political statement, a means of protest. 

19 

20 as does 

The Judgment provides legitimate avenues for protest, 

the general law. Withholding payment of proper 

21 assessments is a form of political blackmail which is not 

22 contemplated by the Judgment and which leads to the inevitable 

23 frustration and breakdown of the purposes of the Judgment. 

24 Under the facts of this case, such withholding of legitimate 

25 assessments was without any legal justification. 

26 Paragraph ·ss·of ·the· Judgment·mandateif a late payment 

27 penalty of ten percent per annum from 30 days after the date of 

28 billing. 

ooa65& 
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The impounded assessments together with all interest 

earned thereon (Metropolitan Water District v. Adams [1948] 32 

Cal.2d 620) and the ten percent per annum penalty required by 

Paragraph 55 of the Judgment are to be paid forthwith by the 

Moving Parties to the Watermaster. Interest and penalty 

assessments shall accrue until actually paid to the Watermaster. 

The Judgment also provides that the Watermaster may 

8 recover attorney fees and other costs of collection in 

9 recovering assessments which have been withheld. In recognition 

10 of the good, if·misguided; intentions,of-the·Moving Parties, the 

ll Court orders that no costs of collection or attorney fees in 

l2 connection therewith shall be paid. 

13 

14 

15 

ISSUE NO. 10.: "Attorney fees. 11 

16 There are two issues in connection with attorney fees. 

17 The first relates to whether the Moving Parties must share in 

18 the cost of defense of their own motion; and the second is 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

whether the Moving Parties should be required to pay the entire 

cost of the defense, including attorney fees. 

The Court is convinced that there are some legitimate 

concerns in the way of long-range planning for improved quality 

of the water of the basin and for an equitable method of 

24 spreading the costs of improving the quality. The motion filed 

25 by the Moving Parties has served to point out these problems and 

26 bring them to the surface';·• ·on 'the··oth.er·harid, the court is 

27 satisfied that the motion was improvidently filed in that there 

28 was apparently no efforts made by the Moving Parties to 

15 · 00365~} 
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accomplish their purposes through the procedures set up in the 

Judgment before bringing this lawsuit. They may have been 

3 · convinced that with only 20 percent of the vote they had no 

4 chance of getting the Advisory Committee to adopt their 

5 position, but that is no excuse for not presenting the issues 

6 properly and fairly to the Advisory Committee and trying to 

7 persuade all or some of the members of the Advisory Committee to 

8 agree with them on some issues. By filing this action and 

g particularly by almost burying the legitimate concern~ amidst a 

lO myriad .. of lesser concerns, they have cost the Basin a great deal 

11 of money and, of course; · taken considerable court time. 

12 Although the Watermaster is the prevailing party, the Court does 

l3 not award attorney fees to the Watermaster. The Watermaster's 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

27 

28 

legal expenses are a proper expense of the entire Basin, and the 

Moving Parties, along with all other parties, will have to pay 

their proportional share of the costs of defending this action, 

but the Court will not require them to shoulder the entire 

expense. 

A suggestion -- if not a warning -- will be made, 

however, that in the future, before any such motion be made, all 

reasonable efforts should be made to resolve the issue within 

the administrative set-up provided by the Judgment. Any motion 

filed should recite in detail what efforts have been made to 

achieve the desired results short of filing a motion in court, 

and such motion should be supported with copies of the agenda 

before the Court for review has first been calendared for 

discussion in the appropriate pool committee, before the 

16 003660 
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Appendix G 

CHINO BASIN GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT' 

BACKGROUND 

The Chino Basin adjudication is the latest example of management by adjudica­
tion. The stipulated judgment involving 1300 parties provides for several innova­
tions including Watermaster management by an overlying Municipal Water Dis­
trict, with important producer checks and balances on the exercise of its powers, 
and for separate management plans affecting different classes of users. 

The Chino Basin contains over 8 million acre-feet of water in storage and 
. includes portions of.Riverside; San Bernardinot and- Los Angeles Counties. It. col­
lects surface runoff from the .San Gabriel .Mountains and rainfall from the valley 
floor. It lies within the Santa Ana River Watershed upstream from Orange County. 
Groundwater use during 1975-76 totaled about 182,000 acre-feet and surface water 
about 36,000 acre-feet. While most water is still used for agriculture, urbanization 
has increased municipal and industrial uses. Agricultural production consists 
primarily of citrus crops and vineyards. Major industrial users are Kaiser Steel, 
Southern California Edison, and Sunkist. Major urban centers in the basin are 
Ontario, Pomona, Chino, Fontana, Upland, and Montclair. Pumping costs for appro­
priators in 1976 averaged between $25 and $30 per acre-foot, and for overlying 
agricultural users about $40 to $50 per acre-foot. Chino Municipal Water District, 
Western Municipal Water District, and Pomona Valley Municipal Water District 
overlie the basin. 

The Chino Basin has been in an overdraft condition for more than 20 years. This 
has resulted in lowering of water tables and increased pumping costs. Existence of 
nitrates constitutes a water quality problem, particularly in the western portion of 
the basin. There has been some subsidence, although this has not been regarded 
as a major problem. The question of what to do to manage the basin has been an 
issue for the last 10-15 years. While there are some important short-term water 
quality problems facing the area, continued overdraft and optimal use of groundwa­
ter and surface supplies constitute long-term problems affecting the entire overly­
ing area. 

There were two important steps that preceded the development of a groundwa­
ter management program for the Chino Basin. First was the formation of the Chino 
Basin Municipal Water District and its annexation to the MWD in 1951 to obtain 
supplemental imported water to meet the area's growing water demands, 

Second was an agreement governing the allocation of water supply in the Santa 
Ana River Watershed. This was accomplished by an adjudication action initiated 
by Orange County Water District in 1963 involving 4000 parties. The downstream 
users in Orange Countywanted.to . ..assure.thaUncreased water use by upstream 
users in the Chino area did not deplete their supply. A 1969 stipulated judgment 

1 Th.is summary draws from various sources, induding interviews with producers, Chino Basin MWD 
staff. consultants, and attorneys involved in the adjuctication including: Donald Stark, Fran Brommens­
chenkel, Ed Dubiel, Martin Whelan, Adolph Moscovitz, Fred Douma, Lee Travers, and Hoite Rugge. 
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resolving the interbasin conflict provides for a regional allocation of Santa Ana 
River system water supply in a way similar to that developed for the San Gabriel 
River system. Under this judgment, the Chino Basin Municipal Water District 
(along with the Western Municipal Water District in Riverside County and the San 
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District) is required to provide water to assure 
an average flow at Prado Dam for downstream use in Orange County.• The judg­
ment is monitored by a five-member Watermaster committee under court super­
vision. With this obligation to downstream users settled, Chino Basin water users 
were not in a position to formulate a groundwater management plan for the Chino 
Basin. 

EARLY PLANNING EFFORTS 

After settlement of its dispute with Orange County, the Chino Basin Water 
Users Association and the Chino Basin Municipal Water District took leadership 
to develop a groundwater management plan using imported water for replenish­
ment. There were four primary factors that stimulated the desire for groundwater 
management: 

1. Increased pumping costs because of higher pump lifts and increasing 
power charges. 

2. The fear that uncontrolled pumping would deplete the basin and would 
require future construction of expensive surface delivery systems. 

3. Recognition that controls were required to force local producers to use 
more expensive imported water. · 

4. Desire to make efficient use of basin transmissive and storage capacity. 

Since the basin could be managed without a production cutback through replen­
ishment, producers could have chosen not to adjudicate and instead to institute a 
program similar to that in Orange County using a pump tax. Most producers did 
not favor this approach. They wanted vested rights protected and accorded an 
economic value.• It was believed that new users would be the primary beneficiaries 
under a plan like the one operating in Orange County, since their water costs would 
be essentially the same as those with historic rights. 

Early negotiations during 1970-71 failed to result in an acceptable groundwater 
management plan. Initially, the Chino Basin Municipal Water District proposed a 
gross pump tax (i.e., a tax on all production) not only to fund studies necessary for 
development ofa management plan but also to pay the cost ofreplenishment water 
as part of an adjudicated settlement. However, this was opposed by agricultural 
producers. Later, during 1974, intensive negotiations by all producers were 
renewed at the behest of the Chino District and area municipalities, and an agree­
ment was reached to adjudicate the basin and to make the studies necessary to 
develop a management plan and to evaluate its effects using finances from a tempo-

1 Orange County Water District v. City of Chino et al., Orange County Superior Court, Case No. 
117628, April 17, 1969. 

a For example, the City of Upland had purchased water rights from a private water company and 
believed the value of its rights should be recognized and protected against new users. Similarly, other 
existing producers would benefit to the extent that their rights were established and recognized in the 
allocation of costs for replenishment water. 
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rary pump tax.• Under the agreement, the Chino Basin Municipal Water District 
was recognized as the lead agency to develop the plan in consultation with produc­
ers. Legislation was then requested and enacted in 1975 (S.B. 222, Ayala) authoriz­
ing a $2 per acre-foot pump tax for three years. This revenue was used to fund 
special studies to verify past production and to determine basin hydrology, other 
preliminary steps toward adjudication. The program authorized by the special 
legislation would provide a test of how a pump tax would work. The legislation 
required appointment of an advisory committee of producers and existing agencies 
by the board of the Chino District to develop the details of a plan. Special producer 
subcommittees were set up to explore ways of allocating the costs of providing 
supplemental water to overlying agricultural users, overlying non-agricultural us­
ers, and appropriators. The state participated in the negotiations as a major pump­
er in the basin because of its correctional and Department of Fish and Game 
facilities. It also is the largest owner of land overlying the Chino Basin. 

Basin negotiators faced several major hurdles' before a settlement could be 
reached. They had to organize a diverse set of producers; find an acceptable means 
of determining their water rights, and allocate the costs of more expensive import• 
ed water among them. This represented a difficult challenge, since so many of the 
parties were small agricultural users. They also had to define the boundaries of the 
basin hydrologically and geographically, and to determine what type of institution­
al arrangements would be set up for basin governance. In addition, they had to deal 
with uncertainty introduced into their negotiations by the 1975 State Supreme 
Court San Fernando decision. 

IMPACT OF THE SAN FERNANDO DECISION 

The early Chino negotiations were based on the mutual prescription theory 
developed in the Raymond Basin. The San Fernando case made substantial changes 
in legal theory that governed previous adjudications and changed the negotiating 
ground rules for the Chino Basin adjudication. Probably the biggest impact of the 
San Fernando case was that mutual prescription could no longer be automatically 
applied and imposed on the parties. This was because the court ruled that in an 
overdrafted basin private pumpers could not obtain prescriptive rights against 
public entities and that overlying users retained their rights by use rather than 
prescription. The San.Fernando decision strll!lgthen~the position of cities, since 
they could not Jose rights by prescription. It also implied that overlying rights were 
for use only on overlying lands and therefore might not be separately transferred. 

The superior position of cities was constrained by a changed legal notice re­
quirement that complicated determining where adverse use began, making it diffi­
cult to effectuate prescription against overlying users. In fact, because of the notice 
qualification in the San Fernando decision, Chino Basin planners assumed that the 
rights of agricultural users would not be prescripted or. reduced to a share of safe 
yield. Overall, San Fernando made the determinatioµ of overlying and appropria• 
tive rights highly uncertain. 

While the decision created uncertainty, it also helped resolve problems between 
large and small farmers that had stymied previous negotiations and aided elimina· 

... "Memorandum of Agreement Chino Basin Plan," colltained in First Annual Report of Chino Basin 
.. , ... Municipal.. Water District, November 1976. 
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tion of some inequities that might have resulted from strict application of the 
Raymond Basin formula. For example, strict application of mutual prescription 
would have given some farmers with large patterns of historic use large rights and 
new farmers none. This caused a major split between farmers during the early 
negotiations. The court's determination preserving overlying rights put all farmers 
in the same boat. It eliminated the windfpcll that might have gone to some of them 
and helped pave the way for a settlenient between them. The solution to this 
problem was not to specify rights for individual agricultural producers and to work 
out a plan for equitable distribution of assessments among them. 

San Fernando also removed an inequity affecting Kaiser industries. Appli­
cation of mutual prescription with rights based on five years continuous use after 
the overdraft began would have seriously impaired the rights of Kaiser industries 
because they had a strike that reduced their use for one year. The decision also 
complicated determination of appropriators' rights, since it eliminated interparty 
prescription among them. To solve this problem a negotiated agreement was 
worked out under which all appropriative rights were of equal priority. 

ALTERNATIVE MANAGEMENT PLANS 

The legislatively established advisory committee considered a variety of basin 
plans that had been developed elsewhere, and retained attorneys and consultants 
with experience in the development of other Southern California conjunctive use 
management programs. The stipulated judgment arrived at in the Main San Gabri­
el Basin helped serve as a model for their deliberation as did the method oflevying 
assessments used in Orange County. DWR and Santa Ana Watershed Project Au­
thority studies were also examined to help define water demand and quality prob­
lems. • 

To stimulate resolution of outstanding issues, an action was filed on January 
2, 1975, by the Chino District to adjudicate the basin with the approval of produc­
ers. Its purpose was "to act as a unifying mechanism for all producers within the 
basin" to develop a long-term basin plan under Watermaster management.• 

The major objectives of the plan were to halt unregulated overdraft and stabil­
ize the basin, to secure a long-term future water supply making efficient use of 
ground and surface waters, and to develop an equitable means of financing replen­
ishment water. It was agreed that the adjudication would not be pursued unless • 
agreements could be reached on the elements of a basin plan as part of the planning 
process authorized by S.B. 222. As part of this process three overall management 
approaches were evaluated: 

1. No Control.• This option assumed continued mining of the basin without a 
recharge program. It was rejected after serious consideration because all major . 
producer groups, and especially the appropriators, believed the continuous over­
draft would eventually have serious consequences for the basin. They favored a 
long-term management approach that would protect their future water supply and 
economic interests. 

• Ibid. 
• See Department of Water Resources, Meeting Water Demands in the Chino-Riverside Area. BulJe­

tin 104-3, Sacramento, California, Mey 1971. The work of the committee was made somewhat easier by 
the existence of production records required by the Recordation Act . 

• 
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2. Strict Adjudication. Under this option producers would be restricted to safe 
yield and would have to separately purchase supplemental surface supplies. This 
approach was rejected primarily because it would involve major contested litiga­
tion expense, delay, and major uncertainty as to outcome. 

3. A Physical Solution. The negotiated physical solution controlling pumping, 
using pump taxes, and using ground and surface supplies conjunctively became 
more attractive as a compromise that benefited each producer group enough to gain 
their support. Also, one of the major objectives of the physical solution was to 
preserve the environmental values of the Chino area. Those involved in the 
negotiations wanted to preserve agriculture and to protect open space while assur­
ing the long-term water supply necessary to permit controlled growth. Cost analysis 
of the three approaches strengthened the case for a physical solution. 

It was estimated that by 1990 total costs to supply basin requirements without 
controls would be about $31 million in 1976 constant dollars, whereas imposition 
of a strict injunction would cost $32 million and a physical solution $26.6 million.' 

Appropriators, such. as the .. cities of Pomona and Chino, several water districts 
(e.g., Cucamonga County Water District and Monte Vista County Water District), 
and private water companies (e.g., Fontana Union Water Company), spearheaded 
the effort to arrive at an acceptable physical solution. They had water problems and 
were interested in assuring a long-term water supply without being forced to bear 
the cost of a surface delivery system. They recognized the need to protect the 
agricultural economy and were willing to bear a large share of the costs of a 
physical solution in part because they could more easily spread these costs among 
many users and saw themselves as "inheritors" of the basin with the anticipated 
decline of future agricultural water use. 

A "strict injunction" applying the principles of San Fernando would have in­
volved expensive litigation with an uncertain outcome. From the appropriators' 
viewpoint, no control and a "strict injunction" were unacceptable. They were will­
ing to shoulder the added costs of implementing a physical solution in return for · 
basinwide management in which they would have a predominant voice. 

Initial efforts were made to put industrial users with overlying rights into the 
appropriators' pool. This proposal was beaten back and the industrial users were 
placed in a separate pool. The stake of the industrial users in the outcome was not 
as great as the other producers. The industrial users, Jed by Kaiser industries, 
supported the need for management to protect the area's water supply and were 

........ ·•-~·••·willing.to go.along.with.an_ approachJhatgave.someheJp to agriculture as long as 
they did not have to assume a disproportionate share of the costs of a physical 
solution. 

Agriculture, .which accounted for the largest share of use in the basin, was 
facing the cost of higher pump lifts, which would continue to be the case under no 
control. Agricultural producers believed they would be better off under the 
proposed physical solution than under no control, because they would face in­
creased pump costs that would probably cost more than any replenishment assess-

·•· ............................ ,, .. -, met1tJh!lY might haveJ9pay.,They ,:,vere, vvi!ling to.tak.e Jess safe yield than they 
might have gotten under a "strict injunction" to gain the overall benefit they 

' Economic Evaluation of Proposed Physical Solution for the Chino Groun.d Water Basin, Ultra 
Systems, Inc., Irvine, California, March 1977, Table 3-11, p. 31. 
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anticipated receiving in reduced pump costs. Moreover, their replenishment assess­
ment would be minor compared to appropriators' because they received the lion's 
share of safe yield. As long as agriculture did not expand, their assessments in the 
future would be minimal. As overall agricultural use declined, their replenishment 
assessments would disappear altogether because total pool rights are guaranteed 
in perpetuity. With use by appropriators expanding, they would pay the future 
increased costs of basin replenishment. 

When it appeared that agreement could be reached among the parties the 
adjudication was activated. Spurred in part by the 1977 drought, a stipulated 
judgment was agreed to by them on January 27, 1978, three years after the case 
was filed. 

THE JUDGMENT 

The judgment establishes a framework for Jong-term basin management under 
a plan aimed at assuring "that all water users dependent upon the Chino Basin will 
be allowed to pump sufficient waters ... to meet their requirements."• Its primary 
objective is to permit management by replenishment with replenishment costs 
distributed among producer groups. 

Three Management Pools 

One of the unique aspects of the Chino adjudication is the division of users into 
three separate management groups or "pools": overlying agricultural, overlying 
non-agricultural (industrial users), and appropriative, with each pool allocated a 
share of the basin safe yield. In accord with the physical solution, each pool oper­
ates under its own pooling plan and pays a replenishment assessment to purchase 
water used in excess of its share of the safe yield or operating safe yield defined 
as the appropriators' share of the safe yield plus controlled overdraft authorized 
by the Watermaster. This permits flexibility in basin management to conserve 
water over wet and dry cycles. However, the initial operating safe yield was set for 
five years by the judgment, which also provides for limits on accumulated overdraft 
of the basin and on operating safe yield. Thus, flexibility is limited during the early 
years of basin management primarily because of appropriators' interest in main­
taining an assured supply while the new program was being phased in. After five 
years, unused agricultural water is available for reallocation to the appropriative 
pool to supplement operating safe yield. 

Transferability of Rights 

Another special characteristic of the Chino Basin adjudication is that water 
rights for individual producers in the agricultural pool are not determined as they 
are for overlying non-agricultural users or for appropriators. Since agricultural 
rights are not specified, they cannot be transferable. Overlying non-agricultural 
rights are determined but they are considered "appurtenant to the land" and not 

• Chino Basin Municipal Water District v. City of Chino, San Bernardino Superior Court, Case No. 
16437, January 28, 1978. 
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separately transferable. Only appropriative rights can be transferred within the 
appropriative pool with Watermaster approval. 

Some agricultural producers (dairies) were opposed to transferability of rights 
because this would complicate their anticipated relocation within the basin. They 
wanted rights to be transferred with the land, which would assure them their 
required water supply. They were also concerned that transferable rights would 
inflate their water costs. Their position was strengthened by the Supreme Court's 
San Fernando ruling. Although transferability would have given agricultural 
rights value, this would have required the application of a formula like mutual 
prescription to establish them. In addition to disputes between large and small 
farmers that this engendered, many believed it also would reduce agriculture's 
share of safe yield, benefit appropriators, and result in higher agricultural costs. 
Overall, agricultural producers concluded that they would be better off under the 
proposed physical solution, anticipating that they would pay little or no replenish­
ment assessment. 

Some appropriators were also .concerned .. about transferability of agricultural 
water rights. They feared that one appropriator might gain dominance by acquir­
ing them. Also, they were concerned about uncertainty that might result from 
rights transfers. The judgment ties rights of overlying users to overlying land and 
provides a method for allocating unused agricultural rights to appropriators. 

BASIN GOVERNANCE 

One of the major objectives of the Chino Basin negotiators was to devise a plan 
for unified basin management. They explored how this might be attained within the 
framework of an adjudicated settlement. 

The expansion oflocal district boundaries by special act of the legislature was 
unacceptable because confilcts with other overlying districts could not be resolved, 
For example, the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District would lose 
assessed value, some of which was being taxed to pay for State Project Water, if 
all the area overlying the Chino Basin were annexed to the Chino Basin MWD. 

A joint powers agreement was also unacceptable, since it would involve estab­
lishing another overlying agency with attendant unnecessary administrative com­
plexity. The Department of Water Resources was considered as Watermaster but 
wasrejecte.d . .primarily .. becauseJocaU11terests did not want the !ltate involved in 
management of their basin. They also were concerned that state management 
might impose higher costs on them. Instead of these approaches, the negotiators 
chose the Chino Basin Municipal Water District as Watermaster, expanding its 
powers by the terms of the proposed stipulated judgment. 

One of the most interesting aspects of the Chino Basin judgment is the intricate 
system of governance established by it. The negotiators spent considerable time 
formulating an institutional structure "which would give a controlled balance of 

.... authority.andresponsibilit;i,.between ChinQBasin Municipal Water District, Qn one 
hand, and producers from Chino Basin, on the other.'" 

Some Qpposed district management because they feared there would be a CQn· 

• First Annual Report of Chino Basin Municipal Water District, Chino Basin Water Production 
Auesament Op,rationa for 1974-1975, p. 3. 
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. flict between the district's role as a surface water purveyor and operator of sewage 
treatment works and its role as a groundwater manager. Some felt this might lead 
to overreliance on imported MWD water or transfer of costs to groundwater pump­
ers that should instead be charged to other water users.10 However, the district was 
acceptable to most producers because they were already governed by it (its bound­
aries covered about 75 percent of the groundwater basin), and it had also defended 
their interests in the Santa Ana River adjudication initiated by Orange County 
Water District. It had the capability to implement a groundwater management 
program and had taken leadership to de\'elop a long-range groundwater manage­
ment plan. Moreover, the district had existing authority to purchase replenishment 
water from the MWD and had agreed to drop the surcharge it had previously levied 
on use of this water ifit were selected as Watermaster. It also made known that 
it would drop the adjudication if it were not selected. In addition some producers 
believed that management by public district would have greater legitimacy and be 
more acceptable than management by a committee of producers, such as that 
established in the Main San Gabriel Basin. Although producers agreed on the 
district as Watermaster, they placed a number of conditions on its operations to 
assure that their interests were protected. In fact, there is little the Watermaster 
can do without producer approval. 

The judgment establishes the Chino Basin Municipal Water District as Water-· 
master but requires review and approval of all major discretionary actions by a 
producer advisory committee representing the three producer pools. Moreover, the 
Watermaster is appointed for the limited term of five years and may be removed 
by a motion of the advisory committee supported by a vote from the majority 
(where the majority represents the majority of assessments paid). Also, any party 
can request court review of a Watermaster action and is entitled to full court review, 
with no presumption of fact in favor of the Watermaster. In addition, the advisory 
committee can mandate the Watermaster to take certain actions if favored by so·· 
percent of the eligible voters. If the Watermaster does not adhere to the advisory 
committee's recommendations on non-mandated actions, a public hearing must be· 
held before a decision can be reached. Furthermore, separate pool committees, 
elected on the basis of member assessments, make recommendations on policies for 
their respective groups. The actions of the Watermaster are also limited by policies 
set forth in the judgment, many o(which specify management parameters and limit 
discretion. Thus, the sophisticated institutional structure places substanpal checks 
on Watermaster discretion and appears to assure that primary policy control re­
mains in the hands of producers on the advisory and individual pool committees. 

Inasmuch as appropriators are expected to pay the lion's share of replenish­
ment assessments and advisory committee voting is based on these assessments, 
appropriators appear to be assured a primary voice in basin policymaking. 

Within this institutional framework just described, the Watermaster is given 
the following powers: 

1. To adopt rules and regulations after public hearing upon recommendation 
of the advisory committee. 

10 Recently, some pumpers have objected to the district's proposal to tax pumpers to pay for legal 
costs to defend itself in a waste discharge action of the Regional Water Quality Control Board. Since 
the suit involved the district's role as operator of a sewage treatment plant, they felt groundwater 
pumpers should not pay the cost. 



82 

2. To acquire facilities, employ experts and agents, borrow, contract, account 
for stored water, and cooperate with public agencies. 

3. To require parties to install measuring devices or meters and to inspect 
them. 

4. To levy assessments as provided for in the separate pooling plans and 
physical solution. 

5. With concurrence of the advisory committee, to conduct studies and adopt 
rules for storage agreements. 

6. To submit and adopt a budget after public hearing and advisory commit­
tee review and recommendation. 

Assessments 

As pointed out above, a key factor in the negotiations was how the cost of 
replenishment water would be shared among'prodU:cer groups. Under the judg­
ment, each user pool's replenishment'<:ostis based on the relationship of its share 
of the basin's safe yield to actual production. Safe yield was set at 140,000 acre-feet 
per year for 10 years with overlying agricultural rights set at 82,800 acre-feet (85 
percent of their average use for the two previous years) and overlying non-agricul­
tural rights at 7366 acre-feet (97 percent of average use for two previous years). 
Appropriators receive the remaining 49,834 acre-feet of safe yield as a residual (68 
percent of average use for the two previous years), but their rights were increased 
to 54,834 acre-feet (72 percent of two previous years' average use) by the physical 
solution. 11 By this method overlying users will pay a lesser share ofreplenishment 
cost than appropriators because their share of the safe yield is a higher percentage 
of actual production. Moreover, since overlying use is expected to decline and 
appropriators' use increase, this disparity will continue until unused overlying 
rights are reallocated to appropriators. 

In addition to resolving how replenishment costs would be allocated between 
users' pools, negotiators also had to determine how to distribute costs among users 
in each pool. 

Members of the overlying agricultural pool pay a gross assessment on all pro­
duction. Nonagricultural overlying users pay a net replenishment assessment on 
excess production over their share of safe yield. There was some disagreement 
among appropriators about how to distribute the costs of repleniJ!hment. This was 

· ····· ··-· resolved by a eompromiseunderwhidr15-percent·ofreplenishment water costs was 
to be recovered by a gross pump tax and the remaining 85 percent from a net pump 
tax. 

Appropriators may also pay a facilities equity assessment for added facilities 
needed to import water and to recompense those accomplishing recharge by taking 
surface supplemental supplies in lieu of pumping. The judgment established one in 
lieu area, including the cities of Upland, Ontario, and Montclair, in which the 
Watermaster buys unpumped water at a price based on a predetermined formula. 
New pumping is permitted witlr-the·payment,-ofthe-appropriate assessment with 
new producers assigned to the proper pool. 

New non-agricultural producers will pay a gross pump tax on all production, 

" Appropriators' use was cut back 27 percent during the 1965-74 production period. Non-agricultural 
overlying users were cut back 21 percent. 

d 
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since they have no previously adjudicated right. New agricultural producers share 
in the safe yield of the agricultural pool and pay a gross pump tax based on the 
extent to which agricultural use exceeds the safe yield assigned to it. 

Basin Storage 

The state's interest in using the Chino Basin for storage ofSWP water was an 
added incentive promoting a local management solution incorporating the power 
to enter into storage agreements. The San Fernando decision also helped clarify the 
right to store and recover such water from an underground basin. 

It was estimated that the lower pump lifts that resulted from state storage of 
water would save local pumpers from $225,000 to $450,000 in 1985 costs (assuming 
that storage would range from 500,000 to one million acre-feet). However, this 
benefit could probably not be realized unless there was local management of the 
basin. In addition, some were concerned that failure to develop a local management 
plan might be used to justify state control of the basin, a choice most producers 
wished to avoid. 

The judgment recognizes the existence of unused storage space and the need 
for Watermaster control to permit both storage and conjunctive use of basin and 
supplemental water under conditions that would protect both stored and basin 
water. It allows groundwater storage agreements with approval of the advisory 
committee under guidelines requiring determination of amounts to be stored and 
withdrawn, and priority of storage rights. 

Costs of Adjudication 

The agreement approved by the courts involves 1300 parties. Legal and study 
costs to the district from assessments raised by the Ayala bill were $626,000. This 
includes about $190,000 in district in-house staff and other costs, $230,000 in legal 
costs, and $206,000 in engineering costs. It is estimated that additional-mostly 
legal-easts to the parties ranged between $150,000 and $250,000. Thus the adjudi· 
cation costs for the three year period of serious negotiations were between $750,000 
and $850,000 or between $5 and $6 per acre-foot of adjudicated right . 

CONCLUDING COMMENT 
.. 

The Chino Basin is the most complex and sophisticated adjudication yet de­
vised. It is noteworthy for several reasons. There were more parties involved than 
in previous basin adjudications (1300), most of them small agricultural producers. 
The case was settled by stipulated agreement only three years after the action was 
filed. However, negotiations were begun in earnest only after an interbasin adjudi• 
cation determined the allocation of Santa Ana River flow among upstream and 
downstream users. The management plan contains several important innovations 
including the creation of separate management controls for different producer 
groups and an intricate institutional structure for basin governance, which married 
district Watermaster management with checks and balances over the exercise of 
Watermaster powers that appear to assure producer policy control. 
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Under the plan farmers, industrial users, and appropriators are permitted 
different pump taxes and water rights of different users are treated differently. 
They are not specifically determined for farmers and all overlying rights are non­
transferable, whereas appropriative rights are transferable with Watermaster ap­
proval. 

Like past adjudications, this adjudication was stimulated by the problem of 
basin overdraft, and several management tools developed in other adjoining areas 
were put to use here. The Main San Gabriel agreement served as the model for 
extending the role of Watermaster from ministerial duties to broad policymaking, 
and previous experience with pump tax management in Orange County was helpful 
in designing pooling plans. The availability of imported water and the transmissivi­
ty of the basin permitted management by replenishment and a physical solution 
that did not require pumping cutbacks. The key issue was how to share the cost 

. of more expensive imported water. 
Interestingly,. farmers who initially opposed management by pump tax were 

willing to accept it as part of an adjudicated settlement under which they were 
guaranteed a firm Jong-term water supply with appropriators paying a large share 
of replenishment costs. 

The development of a basin plan was by local producers through their water 
users' association and by the Chino Basin Municipal Water District, which took 
leadership to help negotiate an acceptable settlement and was designated Water­
master. 

The adjudication action served as the basis for unifying producers as part of the 
process of developing a long-range basin management plan for the area. Appropria­
tors took the lead among producers in negotiating a settlement that was acceptable 
to farmers and industrial users. 

· The negotiations were made more complex by the Supreme Court's San Fer­
nando decision, but eliminating the automatic application of mutual prescription 
did not derail the negotiations. In fact, while the San Fernando decision introduced 
uncertainty, it also made possible the elimination ofinequities and the development 
of a more flexible management plan. It also clarified the ability to store and retrieve 
imported water. However, one important impact of the court decision was to limit 
transferability of overlying water rights. 

.. 
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Santa Ana Rivef
3
iudgment, Base Flow at Prado averaged over 50,000 acre• 

feet per year. At the end of twelve years of operation, Chino Basin 
Municipal Water District and Western Municipal ~ater District of 
Riverside County had a cumulative r3;dit to their Base Flow obligation 
at Prado Dam of 261,083 acre-feet. 

Similar reiults have been obtained at Riverside Narrows. Frorn the 
1943-44 water year to the 1965·66 water year, Base Flow at Riverside 
Narrows declined, reaching a low of 13,450 acre-feet in 1965-66, In the 
ensuing years, the Base Flow at Riverside Narrows has increased. In :he 
first ten years of operation, the Base Flfw at Riverside Narrows 
averaged about 20,000 acre-feet per year. 38 After twelve years of 
operation, San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District had a 
cumulative credit j? its Base Flow obligation at Riverside Narrows of 
59,974 acre-feet, 1 

The Chino Basin Adjudication 

The issue of Chino Basin's water-supply obligations as part of the 
Santa Ana River watershed were essentially settled by the Santa Ana 
River Judgment at the end of the 1960s. And, as observed above, the 
Santa Ana River Judgment left the Upper Area water users (including 
Chino Basin water users) free to manage, conserve, and use their water 
supplies as they desired, as long as the Lower Area received its 
specified share. 

Beginning the Process of Negotiation. In Chino Basin, the issue of 
managing, conserving and using their water supplies moved to the 
forefront as the Santa Ana River adjudication proceeded through the 
1960s. Basin water users remained overwhelmingly dependent on their 
local groundwater basin for their water supply, and that basin was in a 
continuing state of overdraft. 

According to the California Department of Water Resources, in the 
mid·l960s, the water supplied to the Chino-Riverside area was 70% from 
groundwater, 18% local imports from the Bunker Hill·San Timfl8o area, 6% 
from surface diversions, and 6% imported supplies from HWD. Assuming 
that most of the local imports from the Bunker Hill-San Timoteo area on 
the other side of the San Jacinto Fault were used in the vicinity of 
Riverside, Chino Basin water users in the 1960s were probably depending 
on groundwater for 80 percent or more of their water supply. 

The long-range stability of this situation was in question, with 
the groundwater yield of Chino Basin being overdrawn by an amount 
estimated between 25,000 and 50,000 acre-feet per year by the end of the 
1960s. The consequences of overdraft were longer pumping lifts and 
higher water production costs for Chino Basin water users, and the loss 
of hundreds of thousands of acre-feet of ground water in storage, 
creating a tremendous quantity of available underground water storage 
capacity within Chino Basin. 
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Yet, movement toward increased use of imported water supplies 
continued to be impeded by the unwillingness of water users to reduce 
their reliance on the local groundwater supply, which remained 
substantially less expensive than imported water from Ml<D. Chino Basin 
water users and water agencies had observed the examples of neighboring 
southern California groundwater basins, and learned from them that water 
users would reduce reliance on local groundwater, even under overdraft 
conditions and with imported supplies available, only when withdrawals 
of groundwater were limited by some sort of management program. 

Discussion of the development of some manner of Chino Basin 
management plan was facilitated by the Santa Ana River Judgment and by 
the area's heavy dependence on an overdrafted groundwater supply, and bv 
the presence of the Chino Basin Municipal water District, the Pomona 
Valley Municipal water District, and the western Municipal water 
District of Riverside County. These three municipal water districts, 
all M1,lD member agencies with access to imported water supplies, covered 
the entire Basin. In addition, a new water users' association was 
formed during the 1960s, the Chino Basin water Association. (The old 
Chino Basin Protective Association had dissolved after the creation of 
the Chino Basin Water Conservation District in 1949.) 

The Chino Basin water Association and the Chino Basin Municipal 
Water District became the fo[al organizations in the discussion of a 
Chino Basin management plan. 41 The earliest negotiations were 
unsuccessful. The Chino Basin Municipal water District had proposed the 
idea of using an assessment against all water production (i.e., a "gross 
pump tax") to fund studies toward the development of a management plan, 
and for purr~,ses of replenishment water as part of an adjudicated 
settlement. 

This idea met opposition from the numerous agricultural water 
users in the Chino Basin. These producers had the longest history of 
use in the Basin, and claimed their water rights based on their 
ownership of the overlying land. They perceived the increased demands 
on the Basin's water supply as having come primarily from the 
appropriators •· the cities and the water companies and water districts 
•· who had increased their production of water to serve the growing 
population that had accompanied the urbanization of the area. To the 
agricultural producers, using an equal tax on all water production to 
purchase replenishment water to offset the overdraft shifted onto them 
replenishment costs that the appropriators should have to pay. 

Investigation of a wider range of management plans ensued, led by 
the Chino Basin Water Association and the staff of the Chino Basin 
Municipal water District. In December 1970, the Chino Basin Municipal 
water District staff prepared "Study Documents on Proposed Basin 
Management Plan," and submitted it to the Chino Basin Water Association, 
whose Executive Committee and Board of Directors studied it for 9 
months. The Chino Basin Municipal water District agreed to furnish 
staff assistance for study of feasibility of developing a basin 
management program, within the context of a stipulated adjudication to 
limit production and define water rights within the Basin. 
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A Negotiating Committee was formed to review management 
possibilities for the Chino Basin. The Negotiating Commictee consisced 
of the 13 members of the Executive Committee of the Chino Basin ~ace: 
Association, a representative from the State of California (for the 
correctional institutions), a representative from Pomona Valley ~acer 
Company, a representative of agricultural producers in che San. 
Bernardino County portion of Chino Basin, and a representative of 
agricultural producers from the Riverside County portion of Chino Basi~. 

The Negotiating Committee began with some baseline principles of 
agreement. Based on a report from the Chino Basin Municipal Water 
District staff, the Committee noted that, Chino Basin was in overdraft 
in the magnitude of least 50,000 acre-feet per year and that this 
magnityg3 of overdraft could be expected to double in the next 20 
years. Other principles were to restrict the use of ad valorem taxes 
to funding capital construction projects, and to not use them for wacer 
purchases. A gross assessment on all water production in the Basin 
would pay for Watermaster administrative expenses and for increases in 
ground water in storage (i.e., things felt to benefit all producers more 
or less equally). A nee assessment would pay for replacement water for 
overpumping. le was also recognized that diversion rights to the 
surface waters of San Antonio Creek and Cucamonga Creek had already been 
adjudicated and needed only to be reaffirmed in any Chino Basin 
adjudication. 

Reviewing the Management Possibilities: Building on the Lessons of 
Raymond, West, and Central Basins the Orange County Water District, and 
the Example of the Main San Gabriel Basin. A 1971 working memorandum of 
the Negotiating Committee reviewed the management options used in 
neighboring groundwater basins. The "mutual prescription" approach to 
adjudicating water production rights by stipulated judgment in the 
Raymond, West, and Central Basins of Los Angeles County formed a basic 
premise for the plan to determine water production rights in the Chino 
Basin. Consideration of financing replenishment operations drew upon 
the programs used in the Central and West Basins and the Orange County 
Water District. Possibilities for organizing the replenishment and 
ongoing management and monitoring of the Basin drew upon the examples of 
the Central and West Basin Water Replenishment District, the Orange 
County Water District, and the emerging plan for the management of the 
Main Sar ~abriel Basin adjacent to the Chino Basin in Los Angeles 
County. 4 

Chino Basin water producers could have foregone adjudication, 
financing replenishment with a gross pump tax. The producers rejected 
this alternative, because thrl "wanted vested rights protected and 
accorded an economic value." 5 The Negotiating Committee working 
memorandum observed: "Adjudication appears to offer the only decisive 
method of meeting and resolving the quit~ion of ownership and control of 
unused ground water storage capacity." That adjudication was to be 
based on the "mutual prescription" doctrine, with managerial control 
reposed in a watermaster under continuing jurisdiction of the court. 
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The memorandum also offered some procedural guidelines for an 
adjudication. The Negotiating Committee sought to reap the advantages 
of a stipulated adjudication while avoiding some of the dtfficulties 
that had been experienced by water users in other basins: 1 ~ 

A major procedural premise for the adjudication technique 
should be: adjudication will be undertaken only after 
agreement has been reached by a majority (perhaps 75 to 80%) 
of all production rights in the basin. On this basis, it 
should be possible to proceed to a decree without major 
adversary litigation. The examples of expense, time and 
waste in poorly managed adversary water litigation are 
legion. However, the few instances of carefully planned 
stipulated adjudications indicate that this course can be 
followed without major adversary proceedings. 

Basically, the approach should be to develop a plan 
for implementation of the management program which would be 
incorporated in the form of a stipulated judgment. Only 
after the form of judgment had been essentially agreed upon 
would the complaint be formally filed and legal proceedings 
undertaken. In this way, the trial time should be 
restricted to a matter of days. After the general agreement 
on approach to the solution, those parties willing to do so 
should furnish their attorneys for participation in a 
committee organization to work quickly on finalization of 
the stipulated judgment .... Since the fact of overdraft in 
Chino Basin is long standing and of general notoriety, no 
major factual or hydrologic issue should be involved. 

The 1971 Memorandum to the Negotiating Committee included an 
Appendix which contained a study draft of a stipulated judgment. The 
study draft used the assumption that the Chino Basin Municipal Water 
District would use its statutory powers to act as plaintiff ~rgnging the 
adjudication, with all known producers joined as defendants. 4 The · 
memorandum also laid out assumed prescriptive rights of parties based on 
water production from 1953 through 1969 reported by producers to the 
State Water Rights Board under the 1955 Recordation Act. It included a 
Table showing the annual reported production figures for pumpers with 
annual rights in excess of 1,000 acre-feet per year. There were 33 such 
parties listed, accounted for 59.7 percent of the assumed 170,000 acre• 
feet of mutually prescriptive rights in the basin. Their estimated 
prescriptive rights totaled 101,481 acre-feet. Their reported total 
annual production ranging from a low of 76,248 acre-feet in 1958 to a 
high of 117,051 in 1961 (see Table 7-6). 

With respect to financing the management plan in Chino Basin, the 
Negotiating Committee remained largely confined to the baseline 
agreement concerning the use of ad valorem revenues, a gross pump tax to 
finance improvements of benefit to all water producers, and a net pump 
tax to finance purchases of replenishment water to replace water pumped 
in excess of adjudicated rights. The one addition made by the 
Negotiating Committee concerning financing was to recommend the 
elimination of "minimal producers" from reporting and assessment. This 
addition was adapted from the proposals for management of the Main San 
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Gabriel Basin, and was intended to avoid problems encountered bv t~e 
Central and •,.;est Basin Water Replenishment District in billing ~nd 
keeping track of nUfz9ous p::oducers with production righcs of one or ::·,.;0 

acre-feet per year. 

With respect to the mechanism for monitoring the judgment and 
setting bas i.n e1anagement policy, the ~egotiating Committee obviouslv 
watched the developments in the pending Main San Gabriel Basin · 
adjudication closely. They noted that a broadened concept had been 
developed of the use of the stipulated decree and physical solution 
there. Under this concept, the jurisdiction of the court and the 
conception of the ~atermaster 1 s function were used to overcome several 
problems of a more sophisticated nature and to furnish a semi· 
legislative, as well as administrative, function for the watermaster in 
the development of flexible basin management planning. They noted that 
the use of a discretionary, policy-making Watermaster gives the parties, 
who are all of the interested water entities affected by the management 
plan, an opportunity to unitize and democratize the formation and 
specification of powers, and delegation of discretion, in the er§oty 
which will develop, modify, and administer the management plan. 

The negotiating committee considered two principal alternatives co 
the policy-making watermaster mechanism that was unfolding in the Main 
San Gabriel Basin. One alternative was titled the "political approach," 
which was to empower one of the special districts within the Chino Basin 
to act as the management authority for the Basin, along the lines of the 
Orange County \.later District's role in managing groundwater supplies 
there. The other alternative was the formation of a water replenishment 
district along the lines of the Central and West Basin \.later 
Replenishment District in Los Angeles County, using the authority 
granted by the California Legislature in the \.later Replenishment 
District Act of 1955. 

The Negotiating Committee's evaluation of the "political approach" 
noted first its basic inconsistency with the premise of an a firm 
determination of property rights through adjudication. While 
acknowledging that the "political approach" was being successfully 
employed in Orange County, the Committee observed that it was "premised 
on a 'utility' approach to water and water resources, as distinct from 
the traditional 'private property' approach observed elsewhere in the 
State. 111 :::i 

The Negotiating Committee's evaluation of the "political approach" 
focused second on the difficulties inherent in the division of Chino 
Basin among three existing municipal water districts, which reflected 
the fact that the Basin extends into three counties. The Committee 
acknowledged that "Practical politics indicate the improbability that 
any existing political entity wou11

5
~e able to.annex territory across 

county lines to cure this defect.• A conceivable alternative was the 
formation of a joint powers agency by the three over~ying municipfS 3 
water districts, This was not without its difficulties, as well: 

Because of the substantial difference in magnitude of 
interest between the three districts, there might be some 
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considerable problem with regard to voting and 
representation on the managing board of such a joint powers 
agency. Such a joint powers agency could appoint the 
district with the major interest in the basin (CBWJD) as the 
managing agency. ~nether this is a realistic assumption 
(particularly as to W'"Mw'D, which has a separate interest in 
Chino Basin outflow under the Orange County settlement) 
might well be questioned. In any event, administration of a 
strong management program in this manner portends many 
problems. 

Financing under a joint powers approach would need to find means to 
integrate ad valorem taxing powers of existing overlying water districts 
with pump tax powers for basin management plan. This would be 
especially challenging in Pomona Valley Municipal Water District and 
Western Municipal Water District, only small parts of which overlie 
Chino Basin. 

The Committee described three difficulties in the use of a water 
replenishment district. First, in the twelve years of existence of the 
Central and West Basin Water Replenishment District, the only one formed 
under the \./acer Replenishment District Act, "the act has become a 
1 capcive act' of that one district and any amendments or modification of 
the act would require concurrence. (The same is true of ch! Metropolitan 
Water District Act and the County Water Authority Act.)" 15 Another 
difficulty was "the current reluctance of the Local Agency Formation 
Commission (LAFCo) and the voters to approve the creation of any 
additional overlapping Sgecial districts -- with duplication of taxing 
powers and functions." 1 Furthermore, any attempt to create another 
type of special act district to perform these functions for Chino Basin 
alone was likely to run into current ggposition in the Legislature to 
the creation of more such districts. 1 

After consideration of these alternatives, the Committee concluded 
in favor of the management approach that was emerging in the Main .San 
Gabriel Basin, which was management by a watermaster under the 
continuing jurisdiction of the court. They viewed this alternative as 
the on! ~est suited to overcoming the jurisdictional complexity of Chino 
Basin: 5 

The Watermaster, as the managing agency, has the ability to 
allocate costs with relation to pumping and to make other 
basin-wide management decisions. Political boundaries no 
longer are of consequence. The exterior geographic 
boundaries of the Watermaster's jurisdiction are defined by 
the hydrologic unit adjudicated. 

Furthermore, the Committee concluded that the use of a watermaster 
with policy-making powers, especially the power to set an "operating 
safe yield" that would account for changes in physical conditions from 
year to year, would impro158the flexibility and adaptability of the 
basin management program. And, the Co1111llittee concluded that control 
and management of the. storage capacity of the Basin required some sort 
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of determination of rights and som~ ~onn ~5
9

representation of water 
users in the making of storage decisions. 

The Committee acknowledged that it was conceivable that a public 
agency could be designed and equipped with adequate basin manageme~t 
powers, but that no public agency would exhibit one strongly desired 
characteristic-· self-governance of the Basin by Basin water users: 

The basic distinction is in the control of the exercise of 
discretion by the managing agency. In the case of the 
political solution, control resides in the entire community 
and is exercised through the registered voters. This 
compares to the adjudicated solution wherein the control 
lies in the court, subject to petfg0on and appeal from the 
producers and water right owners. 

Clearly, the water producers on the Negotiating Committee were 
interested in a basin management program that would be under the control 
of the water producers alone. 

Moving the Process Into Court. After the consideration of alternative 
and the development of this management model for the Chino Basin in late 
1971, the negotiation process slowed for a while. It was revived in 
1974 with the encouragement of the cities and the Chino Basin Municipal 
Water District. During 1974, a "Memorandum of Agreement on the Chino 
Basin Plan" was reached within the Chino Basin Water Association and 
signed. It called for the Chino Basin Municipal Water District to 
proceed with the adjudication of the Basin, and with the remaining 
studies needed to develop a practicable management plan, in consultation 
with the Association. It further provided for the financing of the 
studies and the development of the management plan using a temporary 
gross pump tax. 

Authority to levy a gross pump tax came from the California 
Legislature. State Senator Ruben S. Ayala of Chino, a very active 
member of the State Senate on California water issues, introduced Senate 
Bill 222 in January 1975. S.B. 222 authorized the levying of a $2 per 
acre-foot pump tax for three years. The revenue was to be used to fund 
studies to determine Basin hydrology, to verify the past production of 
water producers within the Basin, and to study the socio-economic 
characteristics of the Basin with a view toward the changing nature of 
its land and water use. The legislation also required the appointment 
by the Chino Basin Municipal Water District's Board of Directors of an 
advisory committee of water producers to develop the details of the 
Chino Basin management plan. Ayala's bill passed the Legislature and 
was signed by Governor Reagan on June 28, 1975. Its pump 6~x provisions 
were made effective to begin with the 1974- 75 water year . 1 1 

The advisory committee called for by the legislation was formed 
and resumed the process of studying management alternatives and water 
conditions within Chino Basin. The advisory committee met regularly, 
with over 100 names on the mailing list throughout the negotiation and 
study period. Producer subcommittees were established within the 
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rights and basin management costs among the different cy-pes of wace-r 
producers within the Basin. The three producer subcommittees 
represented: agricultural water users with water rights appurtenant :o 
their OIJtlership of overlying lands within the Basin; non-agricultural 
(primarily industrial) water users with water rights appurtenant to 
their 01Jt1ership of overlying lands; and water purveyors (primarilv 
cities, water companies, and water districts) with w~ter rights a~quired 
by actual diversion and use (i.e., appropriation). 16 < The three 
subcommittees came to be knolJtl as the Overlying (Agricultural) Pool 
Committee, the Overlying (Nonf~Sicultural) Pool Committee, and the 
Appropriative Pool Committee. 

To provide a spur to the resolution of the remaining issues 
outstanding, the Board of Directors of the Chino Basin Municipal Water 
District also filed a complaint on Jfn~ary 2, 1975, thus formally 
initiating the adjudication process. 6 The adjudication was tno1Jt1 as 
Chino Basin Municipal Water District v. City of Chino et al. 16 ' The 
complaint sought "an adjudication of wafg[ rights, injunctive relief and 
the imposition of a physical solution." 

Adjudication of water rights in the Chino Basin was certain to be 
complex. There were 1300 parties named in the ad{u9ication, and at one 
point as many as 93 different attorneys involved. 6 Thus, the Chino 
Basin adjudication promised to involve more pumpers and lawyers than any 
of the previous groundwater basin adjudications. Nevertheless, early 
agreement among the parties and the negotiating committee members on the 
fact of the presence of the overdraft in Chino Basin and on the basic 
theory of the adjudication ·- i.e., "mutual prescription" ·· offered the 
prospect inn January 1975 of a relatively smooth process of resolution 
of this large and multi-party adjudication. Within a few months, 
however, it became clear that the process would not be as smooth as 
originally hoped. 

The Impact of the San Fernando Decision. The negotiations toward a 
Chino Basin management plan had been, since the end of the 1960s, 
premised on the use of the "mutual prescription" doctrine developed in 
the Raymond Basin adjudication in the 1940s and used as the basis of 
stipulated judgments in the other basin adjudications to which the Chino 
Basin negotiators had referred. On May 12, 1975, four months after the 
initiation of the Chino Basin adjudication, the California Supreme Court 
issued its decision in City of Los Angeles v. City of San Fernando et 
AL,, reversing the trial court's application of a "mutual prescription" 
solution to the determination of water rights in the San Fernando Valley 
groundwater basin. The San Fernando decision precipitated an entf[g 
restructuring of the planned stipulation in the Chino Basin case. 

There were two key elements of the San Fernando decision that 
affected the planned determination of rights in the Chino Basin. First, 
the California Supreme Court had ruled that the water rights of 
overlying lando1Jt1ers could not be reduced to a specific quantity, but 
were limited only by "beneficial use" and the "correlative rights" of 
other overlying landolJtlers. Therefore, the water rights of overlying 
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Maintenance and improvement of water qualitv is a 
prime consideration and function of management de~isions by 
WTatermaster. 

Financial feasibility, economic impact and the cost 
and optimum utilization of the Basin's resources and the 
physical facilities of the parties are objectives and 
concerns eqy~; in importance to water quantity and quali:y 
parameters. ,, 

Watermaster. with the advice of the Advisorv and Pool 
Committees. is granted discretionary powers in order to 
develop an optimum basin management program for Chino Basin, 
including both water quantity and quality considerations. 
Withdrawals and supplemental water replenishment of Basin 
Water. and the full utilization of the water resources of 
Chino Basin. must be subject to procedures established by 
and administered through Watermaster with the advice and 
assistance of the Advisory and Pool Committees composed of 
the affected producers. Both the quantity and quality of 
said water resources may thereby be preserved!?~ the 
beneficial utilization of the Basin maximized. 

It is essential that this Physical Solution provide 
maximum flexibility and adaptability in order that 
Watermaster and the Court may be free to use existing and 
future technological. social. institutional and economic 
options. in ord19 to maximize beneficial use of the waters 
of Chino Basin. 4 

The Governance Structure for Chino Basin: The Chino Basin Watermaster 
the Watermaster Advisorv Committee. and the Pool Committees. The 
governance structure for the Chino Basin involves the participation of 
the three producers" pools. their selection of representatives to a 
Watermaster Advisory Committee. and the designation of a Chino Bas(n 
Watermaster. Although the Chino Basin water producers had given 
consideration to the development of a multi-member court-appointed 
Watermaster that would cross water district boundary lines in similar 
fashion to the Watermaster created in the Main San Gabriel Basin. they 
settled instead upon the designation of one of the overlying municipal 
water districts. 

The Judgment appoints the five-member Board of Directors of the 
Chino Basin Municipal Water District (which overlies about 15 percent of 
the Chino Basin) to serve as the Chino Basin Watermaster. The court 
appoints the Watermaster. which serves at the pleasure of the court. 
The initial appointment in the Judgment was for five years. After that 
initial appointment, the Watermaster could be reappointed or could be 
changed at any time at the direction of either the co~g~ or a majority 
of the members of the Watermaster Advisory Committee. 

The Chino Basin'Municipal Water District "was acceptable to most 
producers because they were already governed by it (its boundaries 
covered about 75 percent of the groundwater basin), and it had also 
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defended their interests in the Santa Aga river adjudication initiate~ 
by che Orange Councy Wacer DisCricc.• 19 In addition, che District had 
been involved in che early development of che Chino Basin managemen: 
plan throughout the pre-adjudication period, and already had most of the 
powers needed for che management of the basin, including access to 
imported water supplies from Ml,lD. However, chere was apparencly some 
expression of concern about the selection of the District as Watermas~e~ 
from those Chino Basin wacer producers in Riverside and Los Angeles 
Counties (and thus not within the District and unable to vote for its 
Board of Directors), because during the consideracion of the Watermaste, 
designation in the negotiations accompanying the adjudication, the 
District "also ~,de kno1.m that it would drop the adjudication if it were 
not selected.• 1 

While agreeing to the designation of the Chino Basin Municipal 
Water District Board of Directors as the Chino Basin watermaster, the 
producers also placed a representative structure around the Watermascer, 
and placed a nwnber of conditions on Watermaster operations, such as 
requiring the approval of the Wacermaster Advisory Commiccee before the 
taking of any substantive basin managemenc actions. This allows all 
producers, within the District boundaries and without, to exercise a 
check upon the District's actions as Watermaster. ''In faf~a there is 
little the Waterrnascer can do without producer approval." 

The Judgment direccs the Watermaster to organize a Pool Commictee 
of producer representatives for each of the Pools created under the 
physical solution in the Judgment. In fact, of course, chis was merely 
a formal insticucionalization of the Pool Commictee that had been in 
existence since the beginning of the adjudication. The Pool Commitcees 
are Che governing bodies for che individual Pools of producers, and may 
decide matters affeccing che internal administration of their respeccive 
Pools. The Pool Commiccees, ·in curn, choose representatives to serve on 
the Watermaster Advisory Commitcee referred Co above, which reviews 
Watennaster activities, may recommend or require Watermaster actions, 
and w~g~h can also serve co decide issues affeccing more Chan one 
Pool. In addicion co the wacer producer represencatives, the other 
overlying municipal wacer discricts (Pomona Valley Municipal water 
District, San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District, and Western 
Municipal Water Discrict of Riverside County) are allowed co place one 
representative each on the Watermaster Advisory Commictee. 

Pool Commitcees shall be composed as specified in the respective 
pooling plans, and Che Advisory Commiccee shall be composed of noc to 
exceed cen (10) vocing represe~33cives from each-pool, as designated by 
the respeccive Pool Commiccee. 

The producers in Che Overlying (Agricultural) Pool annually elecc 
a 20-member Overlying (Agriculcural) Pool Commiccee. In this process, 
voting is based on one vote per 100 acre-feec of ~O~duccion in che 
previous year, as shown in Watermaster 1 s records. 

The Overlying (Nonagriculcural) Pool Commitcee consists of che 
entire Overlying (Nonagriculcural) Pool, which had only 12 members ac 
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the time of the Judgment. Voting in the S'{erlying (Nonagricultural) 
Pool is on a one member, one vote basis. 2 

All producers in the Appropriative Pool (22 at the time of the 
Judgment) are members of the Appropriative Pool Committee. Voting in 
the Appropriati~e Pool Committee is allocated by a scheme totaling l,OCO 
votes, with 500 votes apportioned among the members by production rigb:: 
and 500 votes apportioned among the members by assessments paid. To 
prevail in a weighted vote, one must have the support of a majority of 
the votes and at least one-third of the members. ~nen no members 
object, the Appropriative Pool Committee may conduct business on the 
simpler one member, one vote basis, bu:! ~he weighted voting method ,,us: 
be used when called for by any member. O 

The Pool Committees each select their representatives to the 
Watermaster Advisory Committee. The Overlying (Agricultural) Pool has 
chosen 10 representatives to the Watermaster Advisory Co~mittee,· the 
Overlying (Nonagricultural) Pool has chosen 3 representatives to the 
Watermaster Advisory Committee, and the Appropriative Pool has chosen 10 
representatives to the Watermaster Advisory Committee (although 8 of t:,e 
10 Appropriative Pool representatives on the Watermaster Advisory 
Committee are designated in the Judgment: the Cities of Chino, Ontario, 
Pomona, and Upland, the Cucamonga and Monte Vista County Water 
Districts, and the Fontana Union and Pomona Valley Water Companies). 

On the Watermaster Advisory Committee, total voting power is 100 
votes allocated among the three pools in proportion to the total 
assessments paid to Watermaster during the preceding year, provided that 
the least the Overlying (Agricultural) and Appropriative Pools can have 
is 20 vote~ zach and the least the Overlying (Nonagricultural) Pool can 
have is 5. O This voting scheme reflects an additional inducement to 
the Appropriative Pool. Because of the allocation of Basin safe yield 
and the replenishment assessment formulas, it was known beforehand that 
the Appropriative Pool members would be paying the great majority of the 
assessments under the Chino Basin management program. This voting 
scheme on the Watermaster Advisory Committee assures the Agpropriative 
Pool· members of "a primary voice in basin policymaking. "20 

The Watermaster Advisory Committee, and each of the Pool 
Committees, are led by a President, a Vice-President, a Secretary, and a 
Treasurer. By tradition, but not by requirement, the Secretary of the 
Watermaster Advisory Committee (and of each of the pool committees) has 
been the Chief of Watermaster Services. The Treasurer of the 
Watermaster Advisory Committee has been the CBMWD Treasurer. 

Yater Management in Chino Basin Since the Adjudication 

The Governance Structure Since the Judgment. Administration of the 
Judgment was underway soon after its formal entry. The first meeting of 
the Chino Basin Municipal Water District's Board of Directors as the 
Chino Basin Watermaster was held on February 15, 1978. At that meeting, 
the Watermaster signed a "services and facilities contract" with the 
Chino Basin Municipal Water District. In other words, the Chino Basin 
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AMENDED SERVICES AND FACILITIES CONTRACT 

THIS CONTRACT made and entered into this 5th day of August 

1992, by and between the chino Basin Municipal Water District, 

hereafter referred to as "District," and Chino Basin Municipal 

Water District acting in its capacity as watermaster pursuant to 

appointment of the Court in Judgment entered, Chino Basin Municipal 

Water District vs. city of Chino, et al., San Bernardino Superior 

Court case No. WCV51010 (formerly Case No. SCV164327), hereafter 

referred to as "Watermaster"; 

Ji I T N .F; s 2 .F; T .!f: 
WHEREAS, District is willing and able, through its staff and 

facilities, to provide certain services necessary in the 

performance of Watermaster's duties; and 

WHEREAS, it is deemed to -be in the _best interest of 

Watermaster to contract with the District rather than to procure 

independent personnel and facilities for said services; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, 

covenants and agreements herein made and contained, the parties 

hereto agree as follows: 

1. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT. 

and facilities as designated 

reasonably requested from 

District agrees to provide services_ 

in paragraph 5. hereof and as may be 

time to time and consistent with 

District's primary obligation to serve the needs of District, and 

its Watermaster function, to be performed for and on behalf of 

Watermaster, pursuant to the conditions imposed hereby unless 

terminated as set forth herein. 

2. REIMBURSEMENT FOR SERVICES. 

a. It_ is agreed by the parties that District shall be 

reimbursed -by Watermaster -·for ·the cost · of all services 

performed and facilities utilized pursuant to this Contract. 

Such costs shall be determined through the application of 

generally accepted accounting principles and in compliance 

with the following guidelines: 

1 
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1) All direct labor costs and related labor costs 
of personnel involved. 

2) The cost of materials and/or supplies utilized. 
3) The cost of computer time, postage and special 

photocopy runs. 

4) A percentage charge to cover general and 
administration overhead shall.be added to items 1) - 3) 

above. The general and administration overhead shall be 
computed as set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

b. District shall be reimbursed the actual cost of 
insurance, materials and/or supplies purchased exclusively for 
Watermaster use. 

c. District shall submit to Watermaster a monthly 
statement for services rendered by District to Watermaster no 
later than the fifteenth (15) of each next succeeding month. 
Payment thereof to be made by Watermaster to District within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of such statement. 

3. CONTRACTED SERVICES. Consulting services shall be 
contracted for independently by Watermaster, including but not 
limited to legal, engineer'ing and audit. 

4. SUPPLEMENTAL WATER. Supplemental water for replenishment 
purposes as may be required by the Judgment, shall be sold by 
District to Watermaster at District's actual cost. 

5. SERVICES AND FACILITIES TO BE PERFORMED BY THE DISTRICT. 
The services and/or facilities as set forth hereafter constitute a 
general outline of the _duties that may or.may not be requested by 
Watermaster, for District to perform from time to time. District 

.......... .ishereby--requested--by-Watermaster-to.do .. and .. faithfully perform the 
following services and make facilities available as may be 
reasonable from time to time, for and on behalf of Watermaster 
throughout the term of this Contract: 

a. Make available for the holding of Watermaster 
meetings and/or public hearings from time to time, the 

··facilities·- of•District; ·- Prepare, ·-copy• and mail written 

2 



,(: 

~~. · .. 
..... :;•· .. 

f--

findings and decisions of Watermaster public hearings, 
minutes, and other documents as may be necessary from time to 
time. Maintain and make available for inspection all records, 
including· minutes of any meeting of Watermaster, the 
Watermaster Advisory Committee, and/or any Pool Committee. 

b. Make available to Watermaster said facilities, 
telephone equipment, supplies, other equipment, utilities and 

personnel, as may be necessary and requested by the 

Watermaster to perform the day to day operations of the 
Watermaster. 

c. Prepare, 
agendas for all 

upon request of Waterrnaster, appropriate 
meetings of Waterrnaster. Prepare and 

distribute the annual Waterrnaster report. Process all the 
Watermaster correspondence. 

d; Coordinate, 

service, carry-over 
withdrawal procedures, 

maintain, and administer the meter 
rights, ground water storage and 

supplemental water purchases and 
assignment, transfer and lease of decreed rights. 

e. Receive and analyze producer reports and compile, 
organize and distribute production data summaries as needed. 
Compile necessary historical data for safe yield purposes. 

f. conduct in lieu and other negotiated procedures and 
coordinate such programs upon implementation. 

g. Provide such incidental general engineering support 
as may be required·. 

h. Keep and maintain adequate accounts of all financial 
transactions of Watermaster, make deposits and disburse such 
funds as may be received by the Watermaster, and invest funds 
of· th·e-watermaster as authorized. 

i. Keep and maintain the appropriate fidelity and other 
bonds required by the Judgment and/or appropriate insurance as 
necessary. Keep and maintain records allocating costs and 
expenses of Watermaster as between the several pools. Issue 
assessments as levied by Watermaster, including notice thereof 
and perform collection procedures if required. 

3 



j. cause to be performed an independent annual audit of 
Watermaster funds. 

k. Prepare and distribute the annual Administrative 
Budget and incidental reports. 

6 • DISTRICT EMPLOYEES WORKING FOR WATERMASTER. Any District 
staff working on or providing assistance to the Watermaster program 
shall receive their direction from and report to the Advisory 
Co:rnroittee. 

7. SPECIAL PROJECTS. 

hereto that special projects, 
It is anticipated by the 

in addition to the day 
parties 

to day 
administrative duties set forth in paragraph 5. hereof, may be 
required from time to time. All such special projects will be 
initiated only by separate work orders approved by the Watermaster 
Advisory Committee and Watermaster. 

8. LIABILITY. District shall list Watermaster as an 
additional named insured on its policies of liability insurance, or 
secure, if necessary, separate policies of liability insurance. 

9. ENTIRE CONTRACT AND MODIFICATION. This Contract 
expresses the whole agreement between the parties, there being no 
representations, warranties or other agreements not herein 
expressly set forth or provided for. No change, or modification 
of, or condition to this Contract shall be valid unless the same 
shall be in writing and signed by both parties hereto. 

10. BINDING CONTRACT. This Contract shall be binding. upon 
and inure to the benefit of District, its successors and assigns, 
and shall 

11. 
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Watermaster. 
PARAGRAPH HEADINGS /COUNTERPARTS.. All paragraph headings 

herein are inserted for the convenience of the parties only. This 
Contr:a,c::_t ... may .... be. .. executed .... in--seve:ira¾-·-ceunt-erparts, 
shall be deemed to be an original and which 
constitute one and the same instrument. 

each of which 
together will 

12. TERMINATION. This Contract may be terminated by either 
party, with or without cause, by giving six (6) months written 
notice to the other party. This Contract shall be automatically 
terminated whenever District ·sha11··cease · to be· Watermaster. 

4 



13. WAIVER. The waiver of, or failure to enforce any 
provision of this Contract, shall not operate as a waiver of such 
provisions, or any future breach of any such provisions. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Contract to 
be executed by their duly authorized representatives on the date 
first above appearing. 

ATTEST: 

By/JL/,~-
tJ?ecretary 

_.,... 

he Board of 
Directors of CHINO BASIN 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

ATTEST: 

of the Board of 
Directors of CHINO BASIN 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

APPROVED BY WATERMASTER ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

coatnet 

5 
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ADOPTED BUDGET 1991/92 
General Fund 

NOTES TO GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE ABATEMENTS 

The General and Administrative (G&A) Expense is a charge made to 
each and every non-General Fund or General Fund Special Project to 
cover the cost of administration of the District as a whole. These 
costs cannot be directly charged against a plant or a project and 
include such costs of operations as follows: 

Administration of the District 
Purchasing and paying the bills of the District 
Issuing statements and receiving payment therefore 
Routine customer Services 
Collection and distribution of receipts among the taxing funds 
Engineering services of general benefit to the District 
Gen.eral office maintenance, utilities and insurance 
Preparation of payroll for all employees » 

Accounting work pertinent to all funds but not distinct to any 
(budget control; ·trial: balance. work, etc.) 

Any coverage or shortage incurred in arriving at a proper per­
centage for direct charges for payroll burden 

And anything left over in the General Fund at the close of 
audit. 

The General and Administrative Expense percentage is derived from 
the prior year's audit, in this instance the audit for the year 
ended June 30, 1991. 

Total 
Expenses 

Less Net 
Depreciation Expenses 

Internal General Fund 
(Unabated) $ 3,909,720 

697,454 
$455,180 $3,454,540 

Water Fund 
Regional Waster Water 

Funds 
Tertiary Funds 
Co-Composting Fund 
Non-Reclaimable Waste 

, system 
AD #1 Fund 

Total Expenses - · 
Less G&A Applied 
Total Expenses per 

Audit 

17,037,816 
4,220,680 

269,016 

2,816,785 
1,820 

$35,223,291 
2,028.331 

$33,194,960 

$3,454,540 = 10.41% Actual Percentage used for 1991/92 
$33,194,960 

EXHIBIT "A" 
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3, Third Annual Report To The Court 
And Interventions 

l 

' 

r, 
.. , I 
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Staff presented the final draft of the Watennaster Third Annual Report 
as approved by the Watermaster Advisory Comnittee. By motion and unanimous 
vote: .. 

(the Watermaster Third Annual Report was approved). 

Discussion ensued regarding the intervening parties listed in Appendix "G" 
of the Third Annual Report. By motfon and unanimous vote: , 

(the intervenfog parties listed on Appendix "G" of the 
Third Annua 1 Report were 'approved). . 

4. OC-59 Agreement and Draft Memorandum 

· Sta ff presented the. OC:--59 .. Agreem.ent .. as signed by the Chi no Basin MWD 
and a draft Memorandum of Understanding as approved by the Watermaster Advisory 
Colllltfttee. Staff stated the intent of the Memorandum was to set forth the 
rights and obligations of the Chino Basin MWD and Chino Basin Watermaster 
pertaining to.the acquisition of use rights in the MWD OC-59 Connection to the 
Foothill Feeder. Discussion ensued on Paragraph 4 of the Memorandum and it 
was suggested the wording be amended to reflect the use of OC-59 by other parties 
to apply only to .. the u'se righ~ as .. acqu.lred and-contro1led by CBM11D. ·sy· motion and 
unanimous vote: 

(the Memorandum of Understanding be approved subject to 
the language modification in Paragraph 4), . 

5, Guasti Park Agreement 

Staff reported the Watennaster Advisory Committee, at its meeting of 
December 23, 198D, recommended Watermaster not.participate in the Guasti Park 
Agreement at this time because the percolation rate of these basins is, for 
the most part, non-measurable and staff time.necessary to compute the benefit 
is not justified. It would, however, be in· the interest of Watennaster to 
enter into such an agreement if the percolation rate (determined by actual 
field studies) was sufficient to make a measurable impact in Watermaster's 
annual recharge program. By motion and unanimous.vote; it was decided: 

- -(Waternlaster ~not parficipafe fo tlie Guasti Park Agreement 
negotiations at this time). . · 

6, Retention of Legal Counsel 

, 1_,....., Staff reported the Waterrnaster Advisory Committee, at its meetfog of . 
,,>f December 23, 1980, recommended Watermaster maintain the firm of Donald D. Stark, r A Professional Law Corporation, as legal counsel. By motion _and unanimous 
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vote, it was decided: -
(the firm of Donald D. Stark, A Professional Law Corporation, 
be maintained as legal counsel for Watermaster). 

7. Status Reports 

Spreading Activities - Staff reported the SBCFCD has contracted with 
E. L. Yeager Co. to remove 150,000 yards of material from the number one 
basin at San Sevaine. When this work is completed, the percolation rate 
should double. At East Etiwanda, SBCFCD is cleaning out some of the smaller 
dikes to provide additional and improved spreading areas. The spreading 
basins completed at Day Spreading Grounds are being utilized and the percolation 
rate has been excellent. Basins 1 and 2 at Montclair Basins are being used 
for spreading. The work on the spillway into Basin 3 is expected to begin 
in January by the SBCFCD. 

Replenishment Water for Oct./Nov. 1980 was reviewed by staff and a 
summary of the replenishment schedule discussed. · Staff ' stated that transfer 
of cyclic storage water will no longer befnadEfto·satisfy the monthly 
replenishment schedule as originally requested by MWD. The probable increase 
of intake rate, after basin renovation, may provide an adequate replenishment 
rate to satisfy the requirements plus add water to our cyclic storage account. 

Meter Installations are being achieved and there are approximately 
200 wells remaining to be metered. 

8. Other Business 

Staff introduced Norm Johnson, owner of the Fourth Street Rock Crusher, 
and Tom Paradise of the Planning and Engineering Firm of PBR, and noted they 
are working on a project in the north Fontana area which might create a 
groundwater recharge site. Staff informed the Board the project was being 
reviewed by the Watermaster Advisory Committee. 

9. Adjournment 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 10:15 AM. 

10. Documents Distributed 

Minutes of October 29, 1980 
Treasurer's Reports 
Final Draft Watermaster Third Annual Report 
OC-59 Agreement and Draft Memorandum 
Oct. /Nov. 1980 Rep 1 eni shment Water Summary_ 

,72,-,,£ ,::/ ,¼d:~"--
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D, Accept the proposed amendments to the 1988-89 budget. 

E. Approve the Eleventh-Annual Report of the Chino Basin 
watermaster ., .. 

::.r .:.· 1 
• F, Award the contract for the Chino Basin Groundwater 

Monitoring Program to James M, Montgomecy consulting 
Engineers and authorize a budget transfer of $35,675 from 
the SB-222 account to cover costs, · · · • 

. -
G. Approve·the one year lease agreement betwee.n cucamonga 

county Water District and west san Bernardino county 
',..,:.:"• water Distriet in the amount of 1,561.826 acre feet. 

. ::. .. : .. ' .: .. 
H, Approve the l,ocal storage Agreement for Southern 

California Water Company in the amount of 500 acre feet • 
• : 1:·~ • .:~.:-;-i, .:: ·~.::· :~./::-,:.1 .. :. ' • • '."! .• • , • • 1 • 

Motion_carried by unanimous vote. 

Consent calendar Item A - Minutes of October s, 1988, . 
•, 

Chief Peters noted minor corrections to the Minutes. There being 
no discussion, the following motion was made by Director ounihue, 
seconded by Director Andersen: 

( 

MOVED, the Minutes of October s, 1988 be approved as 
corre0ted. 

Motion carried by unanimous vote, 

( 

c· 
' 

2, Vouchers 

Vouchers 2250 through 2258 were presented for ratification, There 
"being no diseussion, the following motion was made by Director Borba, 
seconded by Director Dunihue: 

MOVED, Vouchers 2250·through 2258 be approved as presented. 

Motion carried.by unanimous·vote; 

3, Notice of Motion and Motion for Review 
of· Watermaster Programs 

Mr. Peters presented his December 7, 1988 letter advising the 
Watermaster of the Motion filed by Attorney Susan Trager on behalf of 
the Cities of Norco and Chino, and waterworks District No. 8 asking 
the court to review certain decisions and actions taken by 
Waterrnaster. Chief Peters stated the Advisory committee had directecl 
Water-master Attorne Guido Smi to review the motion and develop a 

curse o aot on o e followed. Mr, l?eters further stated an advisory 
ad hoc col\\l!littee had been formed to work with Mr, Smith and any cours~ 
of action to be taken would be recommended to Watermaster fo 

0, ,- ' 
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approval. Following brief discussion, the Motion was received 
filed. 

4. Other Business 

Chairman French reviewed the draft report released by the Si 
Water Resources Control Board on the San Francisco Bay-Delta Estt 
which threatens the economy and well being of southern California. 
French detailed the impacts on Southern California if the report • 
approved, specifically restricting the State Water Project delivet 
to 1985 levels. After brief discussion, Staff was requested to rev 
the report and prepare a written summary to the Board detailing 
impacts on the Chino Groundwater Basin if the report were approv 
and a proposed course of action to mitigate the impacts. 

There being no further business to come before the meeting, 
meeting was adjourned to January 4, 1989 at 8:30 a.m. 

/hLL {h.c4~ C Secretary 
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MINUTES 
OF THE 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER MEETING 
April 3, 1996 

The meeting of the Chino Basin Watermaster was held at the offices of Chino Basin Municipal Water District, 9400 
Cherry Avenue, Building A, Fontana, April 3, 1996 at 8:07 A.M. 

Watermaster Members Present 
Bill Hill 
John L. Anderson 
Wyatt Troxel 
Anne W. Dunihue 

Watermaster Members Absent 
George Borba 

Watermaster Staff Present 
Traci Stewart 
Michelle Lauffer 
Mary Staula 

Others Present 
Steve Arbelbide 
Paula Barron 
Victor Barrion 
Gerald Black 
Martha Cannon 
Robert Deloach 
Eric Gamer 
Joe Grindstaff 
Sal Gumina 
Roger Larkin 
Mike McGraw 
Martin Pastucha 
Robb Quincey 
Larry Rudder 
Tom Shollenberger 

Chairman 
Secretaryffreasurer 
Member 
Member 

Vice Chairman 

Chief of Watermaster Services 
Water Resources Specialist 
Administrative Assistant 

California Steel Industries 
Chino Basin Municipal Water District 
Southern California Edison Co. 
Fontana Union Water Company 
Kaiser Ventures, Inc. 
City of Pomona 
Kaiser Ventures, Inc. 
Monte Vista Water District 
Chino Basin Water Conservation District 
State of California, CIM 
Fontana Water Company 
City of Upland 
Chino Basin Municipal Water District 
Chief Financial Officer 
Cucamonga County Water District 

Chairman Hill called the meeting to order at 8:07 A.M. 

He asked if there were any members of the public that wished to address the Board. There being none, Chairman 
Hill asked if any Consent Calendar ttems needed to be pulled for discussion. There being none, he asked if all 
Consent Calendar items had been approved by the Advisory Committee. Ms. Stewart responded they had. 

Secretary Anderson said that in reading Consent Calendar Item No. F, Watermaster Office Lease, he noticed there 
are only eight vehicle parking spaces at the new location. Ms. Stewart explained that the eight spaces shown on the 
building lease are assigned, full-time employee parking spaces and that there is ample parking available for meeting 
attendees. 

1. CONSENT CALENDAR 

Chairman Hill said the first order of business was the Consent Calendar. 

Motion by Mr. Troxel, second by Ms. Dunihue and by unanimous vote: 

Moved, to ratify/approve Consent Calendar, Items A through Fas follows: 

A. Vouchers Numbered 3117 through 3170 in the amount 0($581,891.36. 
B. Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for period ended December 31, 1995. 
C. Proposed F. Y. 1996/97 Budget 
D. City of Upland's Intent to Sell Stored Water. 
E. Cyclic Storage In-Lieu Exchange to allow Metropolitan Water District of Southern 

California to increase its cyclic storage account by in-1/eu exchange. 
F. Relocation of Watermaster Administrative Offices and Watermaster Services staff, 

and ratification of office lease. 

EXHfBIT G 



Watermaster Meeting Minutes 
April 3, 1996 

Chairman Hill said that due to confusion over the Court re-appointment of CBMWD as Watermaster, he 
would ask Tom Shollenberger lo reaffirm the understanding that the Board's past actions were based upon 
the thought that they were Watermasler and that they would continue to act as Watermaster by motion of 
the Advisory Committee until a new Court appointment is made. Mr. Shollenberger acknowledged the 
motion was made at the Advisory Committee and that the terms were acceptable. 

2. STAFF REPORT 

A. SAWPA SUN 4/330 WORK STATION RELOCATION 
Ms. Stewart reported that the SUN Work Station was relocated by SAWPA to the Watermaster 
Service's office. She explained that the SUN Work Station contains the IGSM Model that was 
developed during the Water Resources Management Study. 

B. SPECIAL COUNSEL TO THE OVERLYING (AGRICULTURAL) POOL 
Ms. Stewart said that on February 8, 1996, the Ag Pool took action lo approve the retention of 
special counsel, Dan McKinney, to represent their interest regarding the Desalter Agreement, and 
to cover the expenses incurred by them in utilizing special counsel. Ms. Stewart asked the Board if 
they saw any problems with the Chief of Watermaster Services approving payment on the special 
counsel invoices, going back to December, 1995, for approximately $2100.00. These funds will be 
taken out of the Ag Pool Reserves. 

Chairman Hill asked if anyone had any problems with Ms. Stewart's proposal. There were none. 
He then confirmed with Financial Services Officer, Larry Rudder, that the lease check for the new 
Watermaster office space had been mailed. 

C. DESAL TER AGREEMENT 
On behalf of Kaiser Ventures, Inc., Eric Garner with Best, Best & Krieger, expressed some 
concerns regarding the Desalter Agreement. Chairman Hill explained that the concerns he 
expressed were between Kaiser Ventures, Inc. and the Regional Water Quality Control Board and 
that this agreement had no bearing on Kaiser's offset agreement. He asked that a clarification be 
made on Paragraph 5 and Chairman Hill explained that Watermaster does not have that option. 
He said they could only approve ii as presented because it had been approved by a unanimous 
vote· of the Advisory Committee. He entertained a motion to approve the Desalter Agreement. 

Motion by Wyatt Troxel, second by John Anderson, and by unanimous vote; 

Moved to approve the Advisory Committee's actions on the Desa/ter Agreement. 

3. OTHER BUSINESS 

Mr. Grindstaff thanked the CBMWD Board acting as Watermaster for their help during this difficult transition 
time. He provided an update on the appointment of a new Watermaster and the relocation of the staff. 

Chairman Hill said that CBMWD would continue to do the things necessary to ensure a smooth transition 
for staff. He said that CBMWD would continue to pay the bills and make sure that everybody is protected 
on their retirement, health benefits, etc., according to the agreement worked out between Mr. Quincey and 
Mr. Shollenberger. 

Mr. Shollenberger pointed out literature available in the back of the room that shows the correspondence 
that has been sent between the staff, members of CBMWD and the Watermaster Advisory Committee. He 
explained that Mr. Quincey's punch list should be satisfactory to the Advisory Committee for the balance of 
the fiscal year and as it relates to PERS and those employee-related items that will extend past June 30, 
1996. 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:30 a.m. 

t1/5ecretary 
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MINUTES 
OF THE 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER MEETING 
July 10, 1996 

The meeting of the Chino Basin Walermaster was held al the offices of Chino Basin Municipal Water District, 
9400 Cherry Avenue, Building A, Fontana, July 10, 1996 at 8:00 A.M. 

Watermaster Members Present 
John L. Anderson Secret a ryff reasurer 

Member Wyatt Troxel 
Anne W. Dunihue Member 

Watermaster Members Absent 
George Borba Vice Chairman 

Chairman Bill Hill 

Watermaster Slaff Present 
Traci Stewart Chief of Watermaster Services 

Administrative Assistant Mary Staula 

Others Present 
Steve Arbelbide 
Paula Barron 
Martha Cannon 

California Steel Industries, Inc. 
Chino Basin Municipal Water District 
Kaiser Ventures, Inc. 

Jean Cihigoyenetche 
Douglas D. Drury 
Larry Rudder 

Attorney for Chino Basin Municipal Water District 
Chino Basin Municipal Water District 
Financial Services Officer 

Tom Shollenberger Cucamonga County Water District 

Secretary Anderson called the meeting to order at 8:10 A.M. 

I. CONSENT CALENDAR 

Secretary Anderson asked if any consent calendar items needed to be pulled for discussion. 
Mr. Troxel asked for more information relating to Items B.2 and 8.3. 

Ms. Stewart reported that Item 8.2., the Desalter Agreement, was approved by the 
Watermaster Board in AprH and is scheduled for adoption by the Regional Water Quality 
Control Board (RWQCB) this Friday. In the interim, Kaiser Ventures', Inc. attorney had 
requested, and the Advisory Committee concurred, that Section 6 of the Agreement be 
modified to exempt the Overlying "Non-Agricultural" Pool from assessments resulting from this 
agreement. Kaiser's obligation to the desalter is defined in a separate agreement with the 
RWQCB. With respect to Item 8.1, Ms. Stewart handed out a copy of the moving expenses 
approved by the Advisory Committee in April, 1996. 

Mr. Troxel requested Items B.3, 4, 7, 9, 1 O and 11 be pulled for discussion. 

Motion by Ms. Dunihue, second by Mr. Troxel, and by unanimous vote: 

Moved, to approve/ratify Consent Calendar Items A, B.1, 8.2, 8.5, 8.6, B.8, 8.12, 
8.13 and 8.14 as follows: 

A.1. Minutes of the Chino Basin Watermaster Meeting held March 20, 1996. 
2. Minutes of the Chino Basin Watermaster Meeting held April 3, 1996. 

B.1. Vouchers numbered 3171 through 3286 in the amount of $2,104,492.83. 

2. Desalter Agreement: Addition of "and the Overlying (Non-Agricultural) 
Pool" to Section 6 of the Desalter Agreement among Watermaster, the 
Pools and the RWQCB, as requested by BB&K Attorney, Anne Thomas, 
representing Kaiser Ventures, Inc. 



Watermaster Meeting July 1 o, 1996 

5. Lease of Water Rights from the Santa Ana River Water Company to the 
Jurupa Community Services District for the period of July 1, 1995 
through June 30, 1996, in the amount of 1 BOO acre-feet. 

6. Notices of Sale or Transfer of Right to Water in Storage from: 
a. Monte Vista Irrigation Company, through Watermaster, to the 

City of Chino, in the amount of 500 acre-feet of water. 
b. City of Pomona, through Watermaster, to Southern California 

Edison Company, in the amount of 2,976 acre-feet of water. 
c. City of Upland, through Watermaster, to the City of Chino, in the 

amount of 500 acre-feet of water. 
d. City of Upland, through Watermaster, to the Jurupa Community 

Services District, in the amount of 2,500 acre-feet of water. 
e. City of Upland, through Watermaster, to the City of Ontario, in 

the amount of 2,000 acre-feet of water. 
f. City of Upland, through Watermaster, to the City of Chino, in the 

amount of 48 acre-feet of water. 
g. Southern California Water Company, through Watermaster, to 

Fontana Water Company, in the amount of 500 acre-feet of water. 
h. Marygo/d Mutual Water Company, through Watermaster, to 

Fontana Water Company, in the amount of 2,500 acre-feet of 
water. 

B. Agency Agreements for the Provision of Water Service: 
a. Between the County of San Bernardino and the City of Chino, in 

the amount of 133.87 acre-feet. 
b. Agreement "8" between Praxair, Inc. and Fontana Water 

Company, in the amount of 427.446 acre-feet. 

12. Budget Encumbrance of funds remaining in the F. Y. 1995/96 Adopted 
Budget after June 30, 1996, in the engineering services, groundwater 
monitoring, meter installation and compensation accounts. 

13. Resolution No. 96-3 to Financially Support the Development of 
Additional Desalting in Chino Basin to Protect the Safe Yield of th,e 
Basin, when economically justifiable. 

14. Interest Payments accrued on invoices that were not promptly paid to 
CCWD and the City of Pomona. 

Discussion ensued on the following consent calendar items: 

3. Watermaster Relocation Budget 
Mr. Troxel asked how much of the $50.000 relocation budget had been spent 
to date. Ms. Stewart explained that the relocation budget was prepared to 
demonstrate anticipated expenses to facilitate the move and, therefore, 
expenses and fixed assets were combined. To date, $45,000 to $46,000 of 
that budget has been spent, with the purchase of a budgeted desktop 
computer still pending. The Board requested an update be provided at their 
next quarterly meeting. 

The Board agreed to take action on this item in conjunction with those 
remaining to be discussed. 

4. Facilities & Services Agreement 
Mr. Troxel asked for clarification and a status of those items listed in the letter 
serving as an Interim Facilities and Services Agreement dated March 13, 1996 
between Chino Basin Watermaster and Chino Basin Municipal Water District. 

2 
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Ms. Stewart said the intent was to complete, to the extent possible, all items 
relating to the separation by the end of the fiscal year to facilitate a smooth 
transition of accounting records, etc. She said that the transfer of accounting 
functions, as well as a major portion of the remaining items, are complete. 

Several Board members expressed confusion surrounding the separation 
since the Court ruled that CBMWD was to continue serving as Watermaster 
until September. Ms. Stewart advised them of the Judge's interest in the 
transition process moving forward so ·insurance, etc. would be in-place prior to 
the appointment of a new Watermaster. Mr. Troxel said he did not feel this 
Agreement could be formally adopted as it contains deadlines that had already 
slipped. Instead, he suggested the letter dated March 13, 1996 be used as a 
guideline for transitioning activities. When asked about the transfer of PERS, 
Ms. Stewart explained that a separate entity account had been applied for 
and, as indicated on the face of PERS' application, it will take approximately 
nine months to process the application. 

Mr. Shollenberger asked to address the Board. He explained that his letter to 
the CBMWD Board of Directors was based on concerns for the employees 
who would be affected by the separation process, to ensure their benefits 
remain in effect. He quoted a conversation with Chairman Hill where he was 
told that while Mr. Hill had no objections to the transition, he did not 
necessarily agree with the appointees that were being recommended, but that 
he would instruct staff to cooperate. Mr. Shollenberger said that the Interim 
Agreement came out of that conversation and that his intent, as Chairman of 
the Advisory Committee, was primarily to promote cooperation during the 
transition. He agreed that, rather than formal action, the Board could receive 
this as an information item, however, some barriers continue to exist that need 
to be corrected. 

Motion by Mr. Troxel, second by Ms. Dunihue, and by unanimous vote. 

Moved, to receive Item No, 4 as an information item and where 
new schedules for the transition of activities are appropriate, 
they be developed, 

7, Watermaster Controller 
Ms. Stewart said that, recognizing the need to hire a new provider for 
accounting services as a result of the separation, Requests for Proposals 
(RFP) were sent out. She requested Alice Lichti (Watermaster Controller from 
1978 until she retired in 1989), to review the RFP, the proposals received, and 
make a recommendation. Ms. Lichti attended an Advisory Committee Meeting 
on May 22, 1996 where she was asked to serve as Interim Controller. Upon 
her acceptance, a motion was made and approved, with the assumption it 
would go forward to whomever was appointed Watermaster at the June 18, 
1996 Court Hearing. Subsequently, Resolution 96-2 (Item 8.10) was 
approved by a greater than 80% vote of the Advisory Committee. 

Ms. Dunihue said that until the Court ruling is decided, she was uncomfortable 
with the Board taking action on any of these items. Ms. Stewart explained that 
the CBMWD Board can serve as Watermaster without a provision for the 
ancillary services. She said there should not be a challenge with the 
separation of the functions from the physical entity serving as Watermaster. A 
consensus had been reached among the producers that CBMWD would not 
be acting in the capacity of Watermaster in the future. At the June 18, 1996 
hearing, the Judge asked how transition activities and day to day operations 
were being handled and he was advised that everything was moving forward. 

3 



Watermaster Meeting July 10, 1996 

Discussion ensued regarding the Board's fiduciary responsibility. Mr. Troxel 
reminded the Board members that their role was to provide general oversight 
from a policy standpoint, and that they are not in the position of Controller. He 
also pointed out that the transition activities discussed under Item 4 included 
the accounting activities. Ms. Stewart explained that the direction received by 
staff was to enter into a letter agreement with Ms. Lich ti to provide services as 
a consultant on an interim basis to help transition from CBMWD to a new 
provider of this service. It was pointed out that this agreement was approved 
by the Advisory Committee by a greater than 80% vote, with only one 
opposing vote. 

Further discussion ensued. Mr. Shollenberger said that the last question 
asked at the Court hearing, before the gavel went down, was "What about 
services and the administrative end of it?" and the Judge said "I understand 
that is proceeding." Mr. Shollenberger interpreted that to mean the Judge 
acknowledged that as the proper process. 

Mr. Cihigoyenetche, CBMWD's counsel, said that he considers this an 
administrative decision that falls within the parameters of Watermaster and 
not a policy consideration of the Advisory Committee. Ms. Stewart said the 
City of Chino's attorney raised that question at the Advisory Committee 
meeting and it was pointed out to him that all of the contracts and agreements 
that have been entered into by Watermaster have been at the 
recommendation (or mandated direction) of the Advisory Committee. She 
provided the example in which the Watermaster Board did not participate in 
the retention of Watermaster's General Counsel. The Board was not involved 
in the request for proposals or the interview process. The Advisory 
Committee selected a group of people to interview the applicants, the Advisory 
Committee made a recommendation by greater than 80% vote, and the 
Watermaster Board signed the contract. She said that over the past 18 years, 
that is how the retention of all Watermaster outside services have been 
conducted. The retention of Ms. litchi was not perceived as anything different 
and is considered to be within the purview of the Advisory Committee, as is 
the setting of policy and direction for the Watermaster. 

Mr. Troxel reiterated that his initial question was not whether the Board should 
or should not approve this item, but in the absence of a contract, what exactly 
are they being asked to approve. If a contract is to be signed, it should be in a 
form that is amenable to CBMWO's format. Secondly, his concerns were 
whether an individual could replace a function that has been performed by a 
group within CBMWD, if CBMWD would be expected to support a shortfall if 
one occurred, and who would ask for help if it is needed? He added that he 
felt their role was to provide support whenever a need might occur during the 
transition so that the service is not disrupted or doesn't get stalled somehow. 

Ms. Stewart assured the Board that Ms. Lichti has already provided excellent 
service and was retained because of her expertise in the area of 
Watermaster. Additionally, through the years, Watermaster has entered into 
various contracts with different types of formats that were acceptable. She 
said that, with regard to form, there really is not an issue. As far as Ms. lichti 
being able to provide the service, if the number of invoices Watermaster 
processes in a year were added up with the combined effort of the little pieces 
of specific CBMWD employees performing accounting services to 
Watermaster, it totals approximately one day per week. It is not beyond the 
realm of what one individual is capable of doing. 

Mr. Shollenberger added that initially, the accounting services were to be 
provided by staff, however the agreement with Ms. Lichti grew out of a 
concern for checks and balances and an overview of whatever was being 
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done in-house. Looking at this as a transition process, it was entered into as a 
letter agreement based on services rendered, as opposed to a contract, and 
stipulates that the services can be terminated at any time. 

Ms. Dunihue said that since the Board had no part in hiring Ms. Lichti and if 
they are only the interim Watermaster, she did not understand why they were 
being asked to ratify the item. She said that if the Advisory Committee can 
make this type of a decision, ratification should wait for the new Board instead 
of pulling CBMWD into it. 

Ms. Stewart explained that CBMWD asked the Court to appoint them 
Watermaster for the interim period and the Judge complied. The Judgment 
specifies that Watermaster will meet quarterly and act upon the 
recommendations and actions of the Advisory Committee. Therefore, this 
meeting is in conformance with the Judgment and the Board is acting in its 
capacity as Watermaster. The actions requested are not any different than 
those the Board has acted on over the last 18 years. Watermaster has a 
history of retaining their own counsel, retaining engineering services, and 
retaining other consultants as necessary in order to carry out Watermaster 
activities when the producers consider it appropriate, which are supported by 
Watermaster assessments. Then Watermaster, acting on the 
recommendations or mandates of the Advisory Committee, ratifies them. 

Although CBMWD Counsel agreed with Ms. Stewart as to past practice, he 
did not agree that past practice was done properly. He said that if 
Watermaster has concerns over what happens in the future, they have full 
authority to act in accordance with those concerns. In their capacity as 
Watermaster; they can approve an item, disapprove an item or consider it a 
mandated item. 

Mr. Shollenberger concurred that the Watermaster Board has those privileges. 
However, he pointed out that, if they approve an item, it becomes a reality; if 
they decide to put an item off, Watermaster staff would have to look at an 
alternative; if they disapprove an item, the Advisory Committee would need to 
look to their attorney. At that time, the Watermaster attorney could p·etition the 
Court stating that the Advisory Committee wanted to institute something that 
CBMWD acting as Watermaster objected to, creating another cause of action 
before the Court. He said the Board's action can cause the Advisory 
Committee to react to their decision. 

When asked why Watermaster Counsel was not present, Ms. Stewart replied 
that the need for an attorney was not anticipated. She said that historical 
records show Watermaster counsel attended Watermaster Board meetings 
less than 20 times in 18 years. A need to invite Counsel Fudacz to a 
Watermaster meeting has not come up in the past two years. Additionally, 
she said that Watermaster was recently criticized for spending too much 
money on legal services. Now the Board is suggesting counsel attend a 
meeting that normally lasts five to twenty minutes and where the action items 
have already received a vote greater than 80% by the Advisory Committee . . 
Mr. Troxel asked again if CBMWD would be expected to provide a safety net 
behind Ms. Lichti. Ms. Stewart said the answer to that question is probably 
yes, based on the direction of the Court regarding services and facilities. 
However, she explained that does not mean that the need is anticipated and 
to the extent that it can be avoided, it will be. 

The Board agreed to take action on this item in conjunction with those 
remaining to be discussed. 
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9. Increase of Maximum Accrual of Vacation Leave. 

Ms. Stewart received a letter from CBMWD's Human Resources stating that 
she must take vacation time or lose the ability to accrue additional vacation 
hours. Due to the activities resulting from the action taken by the Advisory 
Committee in January, she reported she had been unable to take time off. Mr. 
Shollenberger said that the Committee members recognized that staff was 
being required to live within the context of what was taking place politically and 
did not want staff to suffer or be damaged as a result of their actions. 
Because they did not want Ms. Stewart to be penalized for serving at the will of 
the Advisory Committee, the Committee approved an increase in her 
maximum accrual of vacation leave from 160.0 to 200.0 hours. 

Mr. Troxel said he did not have a problem approving this item because it was 
a circumstance that created the situation, not the individual. Discussion 
ensued and the Board members agreed to approve the increase of 200 hours 
but recommended the addition of a sunset clause. 

Motion by Mr. Troxel, second by Ms. Dunihue, and by unanimous vote: 

Moved to approve Item 9 with the aqdition of a sunset clause that 
this apply only until the transition of Watermaster or until 
December 31, 1996, whichever occurs first. 

10. Resolution No. 96-2 Authorizing and Designating Signatories of 
Depository Agreements, Depository Cards and Deposits, Transfers and 
Withdrawals of Funds. 

Mr. Troxel inquired as to what was currently in place for signature authority. 
Mr. Rudder said that CBMWD already has signatories on the accounts in 
question. Secretary Anderson asked why a change needed to be made. 

Ms. Stewart stated that it is necessary because the Advisory Committee has 
changed who the Watermaster Controller is and Watermaster is transitioning 
away from CBMWD. Mr. Rudder concurred that if a new Watermaster 
Controller is approved, this Resolution would also need to be approved. 

Secretary Anderson asked if this would eliminate Mr. Rudder altogether. Ms. 
Stewart replied "yes". After further discussion, the Board members wanted to 
delay taking action. However, Ms. Stewart reminded them that it would not 
make sense to agree to the appointment of Ms. Lichti as Controller and to 
continue moving in the direction Watermaster is going, and not revise the 
signature authority. Mr. Rudder agreed that if the Controller function moves, 
this should move also. Mr. Anderson again asked if Mr. Rudder would 
continue to be responsible for Watermaster's financial matters. Mr. Rudder 
explained that he would be phased out of the picture, but he did not know the 
legalities involved with remaining Treasurer. Ms. Stewart said that Secretary 
Anderson is the Treasurer of Watermaster and Mr. Rudder was the Financial 
Services Officer and explained the discussion that ensued at the Advisory 
Committee regarding the titles and functions being served by CBMWD. 

Mr. Shollenberger said that Mr. Rudder was the "Treasurer of the Advisory 
Committee". He said that if the Board felt there was reason to oppose this 
Resolution, tt would fall back to the Advisory Committee and the Committee 
would need to go to Court with a separate filing to have this take place. 
Otherwise, the Board could approve it, in which event the Financial Services 
Officer, Mr. Rudder, would step away from the responsibility for Watermaster 
funds. Mr. Rudder said he could comply with that. 
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11. Representation on the Advisory Committee 
Ms. Stewart explained the change in the number of Appropriative Pool 
representatives to serve on the Advisory Committee which will be based on 
safe yield rights or production greater than 3000 acre-feet. 

Discussion ensued wherein Secretary Anderson expressed concern that their actions 
today were going to set a precedence for the new Board. Ms. Stewart and Mr. Troxel 
assured him that the new Board will be able to make changes as requested by the 
Advisory Committee in the same manner that they always had been. 

Motion by Mr. Troxel, second by Ms. Dunihue, and by unanimous vote: 

Moved to approve Consent Calendar Items B.3, B.7, 8.10 & B.11 as 
presented. 

II. STAFF REPORT 
A. Watermaster Transition Activities: 

Ms. Stewart said that most of the Watermaster transition activities were thoroughly 
discussed during the course of reviewing consent calendar items. She provided an 
update with regard to insurance and expressed her appreciation for the support they 
have given and promise to continue giving through the transition process. 

Ill. OTHER BUSINESS 
A. Mr. Rudder reported that the Advisory Committee requested he, Ms. Lichti and Ms. 

Stewart meet to discu_ss and facilitate transitioning the accounting activities from 
CBMWD as a provider to Ms. Lichti as the Interim Controller. That meeting is 
scheduled for Friday, July 12. 

Meeting adjourned at 9:40 A.M. 

(J'8cretary 
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